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4 November 26, 1999
S Via Overnight Delivery
32789
PO. Drawer 200 Mr. William Bullard, Jr.
Winter Park, L Executive Director
South Dakota Public Utilities Commission
7
e 500 East Capitol

Pierre, South Dakota 57501
Tel: 407-740-8575

Fax: 407-740-0613 Re:  Registration of Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc. for Authority to
tmi@tminc.com Provide Intrastate Telecommunications Services within the State of
South Dakota

Dear Mr. Bullard:

Enclosed for filing are the original and ten (10) copies of a Registration for Authority
to Provide Intrastate Telecommunications Services, filed on behalf of Bell Atlantic
Communications, Inc. Also enclosed is a check for $250.00 to cover the filing fee.

Please return, date-stamped, the extra copy of this cover letter in the enclosed self-
addressed stamped envelope provided for this purpose.

Any questions you may have regarding the above filing should be directed to me at
(407) 740-8575.

N
Sincerely,

/)

/
Connie Wightman
Consultant to
Bell Atlantic Corimuysfications, Inc.

CW/dm

cc: John Broten, BACI
Calvin Whetstone, BACI
BACI-SD
$d09900
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BEFORE THE
SOUTH DAKOTA
PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

Application of

Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc.
for Authority to Provide Intrastate
Telecommunications Services

within South Dakota

Docket No.

' ' '

Pursuant to Rule 20:10:24:02 of the Commission's Telecommunications Services Rules, Bell
Atlantic Communications, Inc. ("BACI" or "Applicant”) submits the following application
information:

1. The name, address and telephone number of the applicant.

Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc.
1320 N. Courthouse Road, 9* Floor
Arlington, Virginmia 22201
Telephone:  (703) 526-3075
Facsimile: (703) 526-3624

2. The name under which the Applicant will provide these services if different than in
subdivision (1) of this section;

Not applicable.

3. If ti.e applicant is a corporation:

(a)  The state in which it is incorporated, the date of incorporation and a copy of its
certificate of incorporation or, if it is an out-of-state corporation, a copy of its
certificate of authority.

Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc. was incorporated in the State of Delaware on
May 4, 1995. A copy of the Applicant’s certificate of authority to operate in South

Dakota is provided in Attachment 1.




(b)  The location of its principal office, if any, in this state and the name and address
of its current registered agent.

Principal office in South Dakota:  None
Registered Agent: CT Corporation System

319 S. Coteau Street
Pierre, South Dakota 57501

(c) The names and addresses of any corporation, association, partnership,
cooperative, or individual holding a 20 percent or greater ownership or
management interest in the applicant corporation and the amount and
character of the ownership or management interest;

BACI is a wholly owned subsidiary of Bell Atlantic Corporation.

(d) The names and addresses of subsidiaries owned or controlled by the applicant:

None

If the applicant is a partnership, the name, title and business address of each partner,
both general and limited.

Not applicable.

South Dakota Apphcation
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A specific description of the telecommunications services the applicant intends to offer.

BACI intends to offer intrastate interexchange telecommunications services, including but
not limited to: outbound intrastate toll service on a presubscribed basis to customers, and
operator services. BACI also intends to offer travel card service for intrastate calls. Service
is to be provided through underlving camer(s) who have been selected for the best
combination of quality and price. BACI plans to use Sprint Communications Company,
L.P. 1o provide intrastate interexchange network and operator services in South Dakota -
BACI may also use other network and operator service providers. Each customer will be
presubscribed to BACI's CIC code which is routed to the underlying camier’s network. In
turn, the underlying carrier will identify the ANI of the BACI customer and peniodically send
the call detail to BACI for billing. BACI's name and customer contact information will

appear on customer bills.

A copy of BACI's services are described more fully in its proposed tanff provided as
Attachment. IV.




A detailed statement of the means by which the applicant will provide its services,
including the type and quantity of equipment to be used in the operation, the capacity,
and the expected used of the equipment.

BACI does not intend to install or operate any switching or transmission facilities in South

Dakota. The Company will resell transmission services of other carriers.

The geographic areas in which the services are, or will be, offered, including 2 map
describing the service boundaries.

BACI intends to offer service throughout the State of South Dakota.

A current balance sheet and income statement; a copy of the applicant’s latest annual
report; a copy of the applicant’s report to stockholders; and a copy of the applicant's
tarifl with the terms and conditions of service.

BACI is a relatively new enterprise which began marketing its long distance services on a
limited basis outside the mid-Atlantic and Northeastern states on July 31, 1996. BACI
receives financing through Bell Atlantic Financial Services, Inc., a nonregulated financial
services subsidiary of BACI's parent company, Bell Atlantic Corporation. The most recent
annual report and consolidated financial disclosure statements of Bell Atlantic Corporation
are provided in Attachment IIl. The switchless reseller operations of BACI in South Dakota
will not require a significant outlay of funds from the company. The underlying carrier
expenses will be the only significant cost to BACI since BACI's capital investment

requirements for adding this incremental traffic is low.

The terms and conditions of service as well as all rates are provided in the Applicant's
proposed tariff in Attachment IV.

South Dakota Application
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9. The names and addresses of the applicant’s representatives to whom all inquiries
should be made regarding complaints and regulatory matters, and a description of how
the applicant handles customer billings and customer service matters.

For inquines regarding this application and tanff, contact:

Connie Wightman

Consultant to Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc.
Technologies Management, Inc.

P.O. Box 200

Winter Park, Flonda 32790-0200

Telephone:  (407) 740-8575

Facsimile: (407) 740-0613
cwightman@tminc.com

For all other matters, contact:

Dorothy L. Jones, Acting Director - Regulatory
Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc.

1320 N. Courthouse Road, 9* Floor

Arlington, Virginia 22201

Telephone:  (703) 526-3356

Facsimile:  (703) 526-3624

Email: djones@ba-Id.com

BACI will bill customers for its services, either directly or on a local exchange company bill.
BACT’s name and toll free number for inquiries will appear on all direct bills and on all local

exchange company bills where the billing company has the capability of listing the camier.
BACI plans to use billing and collection services provided by expenienced billing and

collection services providers, e.g., Affiliated Computer Services, Inc. and Zero Plus Dialing,
Inc., d/>/a US Billing.
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reasons for the denial.

The following is a list of states where BACI is authorized to provide telecommunications

services or has an application for certification or registration pending:

STATE

Alabama
Arizona
Arkansas
California
Colorado
Florida
Illinois
Idaho
Indiana
lowa

Kansas
Kentucky
Louisiana
Michigan
Minnesota
Mississippi
Missouri
Montana
Nebraska
New Mexico
North Carolina
North Dakota
Ohio

APPROVAL DATE

11/4/99
7/21/99
9/14/99
2/5197
8/21/96
5/29/96
4/10/96
10/28/99
172297
No authorization required
9/20/99
10/30/96
3/3197
4/12/96
10/27/99
11/8/99
121297
No authorization required
10/6/99
10/19/99
3/11/96
8/11/99
4/18/96

South Dakota Application
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Cont’d.
STATE APPROVAL DATE
Oregon 4/2/96
South Carclina 6/10/96
Tennessee 6/26/96
Texas 5/1/96
Utah 9/30/96
Washington 12/11/96
Wisconsin 10/17/96
Wyoming 10/18/99

BACI is also seeking certification in several additional state jurisdictions.

BACI has not been denied certification by any state utility commission nor has its certificate been
revoked in any state. BACl is also authorized to provide domestic interstate interexchange services
and international services. International authority was granted on July 24, 1996. International
facilities-based authority was granted on February 7, 1997.




12.

A detailed description of how the applicant intends to market its services, the
qualifications of its marketing sales personnel, its target market, whether the
applicant engages in any multilevel marketing and copies of any company brochures
used to assist in the sale of services.

BACI does not have plans in place for directly marketing to South Dakota customers.
BACI seeks authority to provide telecommunications services in South Dakota as part of
the Company's objective to become a nationwide service provider. By serving the entire
country, BACI can more effectively serve Customers who also operate in multiple states,
as well as those Customers who travel extensively. No marketing materials are available
as of the date of this filing. Qualifications of key management personnel, including
ma keting and sales personnel, are set forth in Attachment Vii. BACI does not engage in
multilevel marketing of its services at this time and does not plan to do so in South

Dakota.

Cost support for rates shown in the company's tariff for all noncompetitive or
emerging competitive services.

Cost support information is provided in Attachment VI.

South Dakota Apphcation
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As evidenced by the foregoing application, Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc. is fully
qualified to offer and provide long distance service within the State of South Dakota. Therefore,

BACI respectfully requests that the Commission grant this application at its earliest convenience.

Dated this ___ day of 1999.

Respectfully Submitted,

Ninswrn Olon—

Maura C. Breen
President and CEO
Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc.

South Dakota Apphcation
Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc.
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ATTACHMENT I

Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc.

Authority to Operate in South Dakota
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OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I, JOYCE HAZELTINE, Secretary of State of the State
of South Dakota, hereby certify that the Application for
a Certificate of Authority of BELL ATLANTIC
COMMUNICATIONS, INC. (DE) to transact business in this
state duly signed and verified pursuant to the provisions
of the South Dakota Corporation Acts, have been received
in this office and are found to conform to law.

ACCORDINGLY and by virtue of the authority vested in
me by law, I hereby issue this Certificate of Authority
and attach hereto a duplicate of the application to
transact business in this state under the name of BELL

ATLANTIC COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have
hereuntec set my hand and
affixed the Great Seal of the
State of South Dakota, at
Pierre, the Capital, this
April 18, 1996.
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Secretary of S e

\ -

-

. - Ak T e\
SRS AR : 3
o 4 N =N\t :?_7\.5 =




ATTACHMENT Il

Bell Atlantic Commuprications, Inc.

Articles of Incorporation




State of Delaware it
Office of the Secretary of State

I, EDWARD J. FREEL, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF
DELAWARE, DO HEREBY CERTIFY "BELL ATLANTIC COMMUNICATIONS, INC."
IS DULY INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE AND

PRt

IS IN GOOD STANDING :-u;ouas A;x.mu CORPORATE EXISTENCE SO FAR
AS THE RECORDS OF Wct”smu(:&s (pr mnxm DAY OF
AUGUST, A.D. 1996.” : :

AND I DO HEREBY FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THE-ANNUAL REPORTS HAVE
BEEN PILED TO DATE. | - ~ ,

AND I DO ammmé{mn CERTTFY THAT THE FRANCHISE TAXES
HAVE BEEN PAID TO n;n.

e e
L

'iiaégz?kdﬁkaumyqﬁﬂhk

AUTHENTICATION:
2504192 8300 8062222

DATE:
960233320 08-09-96




State of Delaware oy

Office of the Secretary of State

I, EDWARD J. FREEL, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF
DELAWARE, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THE ATTACHED IS A TRUE AND CORRECT

COPY OF THE CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT OF "BELL ATLANTIC LONG

e
DISTANCE, INC."™ MGING_,ITS..NA%E FROM "BELL ATLANTIC LONG

L
~4<3 T
DISTANCE, INC."™ m‘wm‘m.h'rrc cumgucnxons, INC.", FILED

IN THIS OFFIC'K ON ‘!'RE SBVENTEENTH DAY QF OCTOBER, A.D. 1995, AT

9 0'CLOCK A.M.

-
o
-

p

B T R, Ly

‘é‘n{md tate

2504193 8100 AUTHENTICAT e 8062217

DATE:
960233320 08-09-96




1071798 TUE 07:16 FAX 215 963 6440 BAC CORP. SEC

mm.ummawauc«mum
by striking Asticle 1 in its entirety and replacing thersfor:

o B mmd“cmdbnbhlw
Communications, inc.”

mmssmmov.ummmmmm
m%buwumn-wmnqud
October, 1985.

BELL ATLANTIC LONG DISTANCE, INC.

SRy G

Barbera £ Grafton (V4
Assistart Secretary




State of Delaware P

Office of the Secretary of State

I, EDWARD J. FREEL, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF
DELAWARE, DO HEREBRY CERTIFY THE ATTACHED IS A TRUE AND CORRECT

COPY OF THE CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION OF "BELL ATLANTIC LONG

—— T Boaas .o s -
DISTANCE, INC.:;#PILED :S'THIS ngIC! ON THE FOURTH DAY OF MAY,
- o 4 N A

-

A.D. 1995, AT 9:36 0 ’___..hl\*‘""i &
- “'/ x.- y

-

Lata]

. Freel, Secretary of State
2504193 8100 AUTRNTICATION: 8062215
DATE:

960233320 08-09-96
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CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION

BELL ATLANTIC LONG DISTANCE, INC.

1. The name of the corporation is Bell Atlantic Long Distance, Inc.

2. The address of its registered office in the State of Delaware is 1209 Orange
Street in the city of Wilmington, County of New Castle. The name of its registered agent a2 such
address is The Corporation Trust Company.

3 The nature of the business or purposes to be conducted or promoted is to
m;‘qwnumuﬁquuwmmw
Corporation Law of Delaware.

4 The total umber of shares of all classes of stock which the corporation
shall have authority to issue is cne share of Common Stock without par value.
- ¥ The name and mailing address of the incorporator are as follows:
Barbara E. Gnafton
1717 Arch Street, 32ad Floor South
Philadeiphia, PA 19103
6. The business and affairs of the corporstion shall be managed under the
direction of .)e Board of Directors.




05/04/95 THU 08:17 FAX 215 963 6440 BAC CORP. SEC. @oo03

7. The Board of Directors is expressly suthorized from time to time to make,
alter or repeal the by-laws of the corporation.

8.  Election of directors need not be by written ballot unless the by-laws of the
corporation shall s0 provide.

9. To the fullest extent that the General Corporation Law of the State of
Delaware, as it exists on the date hereof or as it may hereafter be amended, permits the Emitstion
or elimination of the Hability of directors, no director of this Corporation shall be Eable to this
Corporation or its stockholders for moastary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director.
No amendment to or repeal of this Asticle shall spply to or have any »ffact on the Eability or
alleged br bility of any director of this Corporation for or with respect w any acts or omissions of *
such director occurring prior to such amendment or repeal.

10.  The corporation reserves the right to amend, alier, change or repeal any
provision contained in this certificate of incorporation, in the manner now or bereafter prescribed
by statute, and all rights conferred upon stockholders berein are granted subject to this




05/04/95 THU 08:17 FAX 215 963 6440 BAC CORP. SEC. Qoos

Delaware, does make this certificate, hereby declaring and certifying that this is her act and deed
and the facts herein stated are true, and accordingly has caused to be set hereunto her hand, this
4th day of May, 1995.




ATTACHMENT Il

Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc.

Financial Information

BCl is arelatively new enterprise which began marketing its long distance services
on a limited basis outside the mid-Atlantic states on July 31, 1996. BACI receives
financing through Bell Atlantic Financial Services, Inc., a nonregulated financial
services subsidiary of BACI’s parent company, Bell Atlantic Corporation. The most
recent annual report and consolidated financial disclosure statements of Bell Atlantic
Corporation are provided in Attachment IIl. The switchless reselier operations of
BACI in South Dakota will not require a significant outlay of funds from the
company. The underlying carrier expenses will be the only significant cost to BACI
since BACI's capital investment requirements for adding this incremental traffic is
low.
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Documents incorporated by reference:

Portions of the registrant’s Proxy Statement prepared in connection with the 1999 Annual Meeting of Shareowners (Part I11).




Table of Contents

PART |

1. Business

2. Properties

3. Legal Proceedings

4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
Executive Officers of the Registrant

EEESE

PART 1t

5. Market for the Registrant's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

6. Selected Financial Data

7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operaticas
7a. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Aboat Market Risk

8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosare

PART

10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

11. Executive Compensation

12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management
13, Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

PART Iv
14. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K

Unless otherwise indicated, all information Is as of March 29, 1999




e 1. Business

Bell Atlantic Corporation was incorporated in 1983 under the laws
of the State of Delaware and completed a merger with NYNEX
Corporation on August 14, 1997, Our principal executive offices are
located at 1095 Avenue of the Americas, New York, New York 10036
(telephone number 212-395-2121)

Bell Atlantic is a telecommunications company that operates in 2
region stretching from Maine to Virginia. Our principal operating
subsidiaries are: New York Telephone Company, Bell Atlantic - New
Jersey, Inc., Bell Atlantic - Pennsylvania, Inc., New England
Telephone and Telegraph Company, Bell Atlantic - Marvland, Inc.,
Bell Atlantic - Virginia, Inc., Bell Atlantic - West Virginia, Inc., Bell
Atlantic - Delaware, Inc., Bell Atlantic - Washington, D.C, Inc. and
Rell Atlantic Mobile.

We have four reportable segments, which we operate and manage as
strategic business units and we organize by products and services.
Our segments and their principal activities consist of the following:

Domestic Telecom | Domestic wireling telecommunications services -
primarily our nine operating telephone subsidianes that
frovide local telephone services from Maine 0
Virginia, including voice and data transport, enhanced
and custom caling features, network access, directory
assistance, private ines and public telephones. This
segment also provides Customer premises equipment
distribution, systems integration, billing and collec
tions, and Internet access services

Wireless telecommunications services 10 customers in
24 states in the United States and foregn wireless
investments servicing customers in Latin America,
Europe and the Pacific Rim

Domestic and international publishing businesses
including print directories and Internet-based shopping
guides, as well as website creation and hosting and
other electronic commerce services. This segment has
operations principally in the United States and Central
Europe.

Other Dusin Inter al wireline telecommunications investments
primarily in Europe and the Pacific Rim and lease
financing and other businesses

You can find financial information with respect to our segments in
Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Proposed Boll Atlantic—GTE Merger

Bell Atlantic and GTE Corporation (GTE) have announced a
proposed merger of equals under a definitive merger agreement dated
as of July 27, 1998 Under the terms of the agreement, GTE sharchold-
ers will receive 1.22 shares of Bell Atlantic common stock for cach
share of GTE common stock that they own. Bell Atlantic sharcholders
will continue 10 own their cxisting shares after the merger

We expect the merger to qualify as a pooling of interests, which means
that for accounting and financial purposes, the companies will be
treated as if they had always been combined. The completion of the
merger is subject to 2 number of conditions, including certain regula-
tory approvals, receipt of opinions that the merger will be tax-free,
and the approval of the sharcholders of both Bell Atlantic and GTE.

We believe that the merger will result in significant opportunatics
for cost savings, revenue growth, technological development and
other benefits. The combined company will achieve synergies
through economies of scope and scale, the climination of duplica-
tive expenditures and the consistent use of the best practices of Bell
Atlantic and GTE in cost control and product offerings.

Based on anticipated revenue and expense synergies, we expect that
the merger will improve carnings per share, excluding merger-refated
charges, in the first year following the completion. We estimate that
the merger will also generate significant capital synergies, producing
higher capital efficiency and higher cash flow and margin growth. By
the third year following the completion of the merger, we expect:

+ annual revenue synergies of approximately $2 billion, primarily
from improved market penetration for value-added services and
faster development of our data and long distance businesses,
which, at an estimated operating margin of 25%, will produce
$500 million in incremental operating income;

+ annual expense savings of approximately $2 billion, with savings
generated from operating and procurement synergies, reduced
corporate overheads, the migration of long distance traffic onto
GTE's network, and greater efficiency in wireless operations; and

+ annual capital synergies of approximately $500 million through
volume purchasing and the elimination of certain capital costs
associated with building a data network in our current territory.

We are targeting revenue growth of 8-10% and earnings per share
growth of 13-15% (excluding merger-related charges) in each of the
first two years following the completion of the merger. By the third
year after the completion of the merger, we are targeting revenue
growth in excess of 10% and earnings per share growth in excess of
15% (excluding merger-related charges).

As a result of the merger, the combined company will incur direct
incremental and transition costs currently estimated at $1.6 billion
to $2.0 billion (pre-tax) in connection with completing the transac-
tion and integrating the operations of GTE and Bell Atlantic. These
costs consist principally of systems modification costs, costs associ-
ated with the elimination and consolidation of duplicate facilities,
employee severance and relocation resulting from the merger,
branding, compensation arrangements, and professional and regis-
tration fees. While the exact timing, nature and amount of these




costs is subject to change, we anticipate that the combined company
will record a charge of approximately $375 million (pre-tax) for
direct incremental costs in the quarter in which the merger is
completed. Transition costs of approximately $1.2 billion to $1.6
billion (pre-tax) will be incurred over the three years following
completion of the merger.

Domestic Telecom

OPERATIONS

Our Domestic Telecom segment, primarily comprised of our nine
operating telephone subsidiaries, provided approximately 81% of
1998 operating revenues. The operating telephone subsidiaries
presently serve a territory consisting of 31 LATAs, or local access and
transport areas, and provide mainly two types of teleccommunica-
tions services: exchange telecommunications and exchange access.

* Exchange telecommunications service is the transmission of
telecommunications among customers located within a local call-
ing area within a LATA. Examples of exchange telecommunica-
tions services include switched local residential and business
services, local private line voice and data services, and Centrex
services. We also provide toll services within a LATA, including
Wide Area Telecommumications Service and intral ATA toll (long
distance) service

» Exchange access service links a customer s premuses and the trans-
mission facilities of other tefecommunications carners, generally
interLATA (long distance) carmers. Examples of exchange access
services include switched access and special access services.

We have organized our Domestc Telecom segment mto business
units operating across our telephone subsidianies. The business unats
focus on specific market segments. We are not dependent on any
single customer. The telephone subsidianies remain responsble
within their respective service areas for the provision of telephone
services, financial performance and regulatory matters

The Consumer unit markets communications scrvices to residential
customers, as well as operator services, within our ternitory (22
million houscholds and 63 million people’ 1998 revenues were
approximately $10 billion, representing approximately 39% of
Domestic Telecom's aggregate revenues. These revenues were derived

primarily from the provision of telephone services to residential users.

The General Business unit markets communications and informa-
tion services to small and medium-sized businesses, as well as pay
telephone services, within our territory. The General Business unit
has approximately 2.1 million customers in our territory and gener-
ated approximately $5 billion in revenues in 1997, representing
approximately 19% of Domestic Telecom’s aggregate revenues.

The Enterprise Business unit markets communications and informa-
tion technology and services to large businesses and to departments,
agencies and offices of the executive, judicial and legislative branch-
es of the federal and state government. These services include voice
switching/processing services (e.g., dedicated private lines, custom
Centrex, call management and voice messaging), end-user network-
ing (e.g., credit and debit card transactions, and personal computer-

based conferencing, including data and video), internetworking
(establishing links between the geographically disparate networks of
two or more companies or within the same company), network
optimization (disaster avoidance, 911 service, intelligent vehicle
highway systems), video services (distance learning, telemedicine,
videoconferencing) and interactive multimedia applications
services. The Enterprises Business unit also includes the Daia
Solutions Group which provides data transmission and network
integration services (integrating multiple geographically disparate
networks into one system), as well as IP based solutions (communi-
cations using internet protocol and internet seivices, including
high-speed internet access and web hosting). Global Networks, a
unit of Data Solutions Group, is building a next generation long
distance network using ATM (asynchronous transfer mode) tech-
nology. 1998 revenues were approximately $5 billion, representing
approximately 19% of Domestic Telecom's aggregate revenues.

The Network Services unit markets (i) switched and special access to
the telephone subsidiaries’ local exchange networks, and (1) billing
and collection services, including recording, rating, bill processing
and bill rendering. 1998 revenues were approximately $6 billion,
representing approximately 23% of Domestic Telecom's aggregate
revenues. Approximately 75% of total Network Services revenues
were derived from interexchange carriers. Most of the remaining
revenues came from business customers and government agencies
with therr own special access network connections, wireless compa-
mies and other local exchange carriers which resell network connec-
as to their own customers.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS ACT OF 1996

The "decommunications Act of 1996 (the “1996 Act™) became effec-
tive on February &, 1996, and replaced the Modification of Final
ludgment (the "MF]”), a consent decree that arose out of an
antitrust action brought by the United States Department of fustice
against ATAT. In general, the 1996 Act includes provissons that open
local exchange markets 1o competition and permat Bell Operating

to provide long distance service under certamn conditions.

First, the 1996 Act permitted us to apply immediately for state
approval 1o offer long distance services onginating outside of the
states where our operating telephone subsidianes operate as local
exchange carriers. Our wireless businesses also were permutted to
immediately offer long distance services without having to comply
with the conditions imposed in waivers granted under the MF]

Second, the 1996 Act permits us to offer in-region long distance
services (that is, services originating in the states where our tele-
phone subsidiaries operate as local exchange carniers), once we have
demonstrated to the Federal Communications Commussion ("FCC™)
that we have satisfied certain requirements. The requirements
include a 14-point “competitive checklist™ of steps which we must
take to help competitors offer local services through resale, through
purchase of unbundled network elements, or through their own
networks. We must also demonstrate to the FCC that our entry into
the in-region long distance market would be in the public interest.



The U.S. Court of Appeals rejected a constitutional challenge to
these provisions, and the Supreme Court recently declined to review
that decision. During the period that the case was pending, we
continued to work through the regulatory process at both the state
and federal levels in order 1o be in a position to demonstrate
compliance with the challenged provisions.

The U. S. Supreme Court recently reversed a U.S. Court of Appeals
decision that had invalidated certain aspects of the FCC rules imple-
menting provisions of the 1996 Act. In particular, the Supreme
Court reinstated the FCC's authority to adopt rules governing the
methodology to be used by state commissions in setting prices for
local interconnection and resale arrangements, and reinstated rules
that allow competitors to choose individual terms out of negotiated
interconnection agreements and that prohibit incumbent local tele-
phone companies from separating network clements that already are
combined in the incumbent’s own network

The U. S. Supreme Court also decided that the FCC had applhied the
wrong standard in determining what elements of their networks
incumbent local telephone companies are obligated 1o make avail-
able to coor vetitors on an unbundled basis. Among other things, the
FCC failed 10 account for the fact that some elements are available
from other sources. As a result of the decision, the FCC must
conduct a new proceeding to apply the correct standard. Pending
that proceeding, we have informally agreed to continue offering the
FCC's previously specified list of unbundled elements. In addition, a
challenge 1o the substantive merits of the FCC's pricing rules
remains pending in the U.S. Court of Appeals.

In Apnil 1998, our operating telephone subsidiary in New York filed
with the New York State Public Service Commission a statement
setting forth additional commitments that we will make to the FCC
in connection with our anticipated application for permission to
enter the in-region long distance market in New York. Those
commitments include terms under which we will offer combina-
tions of unbundled network elements and an unbundled network
clement platform (UNE-P) to competitors wishing (o provide basic
local and ISDN BRI service to business or residential customers. We
will offer UNE-P for basic local and ISDN-BRI service throughout
our New York operating arca, but UNE-P will not be available to
competitors foi other services, or for service to business customers
in those parts of New York City where there is a defined level of
local competition from two or more competitive local exchange
carriers. Our commitment 10 offer UNE-P will be for four years in
New York City and other major urban arcas and for six vears in the
rest of the state. We believe that the terms of these commitments
generally are consistent with the recent Supreme Court decision

We expect to file in the second quarter of 1999 an application with
the FCC for permission to enter the in-region long distance market
in New York. We hope to begin offering this service in the third
quarter of 1999. Following our apphcation for New York, we expect
next to file applications with the FCC for Pennsylvania,
Massachusetts, New Jersey, Virginia and Maryland and, subsequent
ly. for the remaining states in our territory. The timing of our long
distance entry in cach of our 14 jurisdictions depends on the receipt
of FCC approval

We are unable to predict definitively the impact that the 1996 Act
will ultimately have on our business, results of operations or finan-
cial condition. The financial impact will depend on several factors,
including the timing, extent and success of competition in our
markets, the timing and outcome of various regulatory proceedings
and any appeals, and the timing, extent and success of our pursuit of
new opportunities resulting from the 1996 Act.

FCC REGULATION AND INTERSTATE RATES
The operating telephone subsidiaries are subject to the jurisdiction
of the FCC with respect to interstate services and certain related
matters. In 1998, the FCC continued to implement reforms to the
interstate access charge system and to implement the “universal
service” and other requirements of the 1996 Act.

ACCESS CHARGES

Interstate access charges are the rates long distance carriers pay for
use and availability of our operating telephone subsidiaries’ facilities
for the origination and termination of interstate service. The FCC
required a phased restructuring of access charges, which began in
January 1994, so that the telephone subsidiaries’ nonusage-sensitive
costs will be recovered from long distance carriers and end-users
through flat rate charges, and usage-sensitive costs wiil be recovered
from long distance carriers through usage-based rates. In addition,
the FCC has required that different levels of usage-based charges for
onginating and for terminating interstate traffic be established.

PRICE CAPS
Under the FCC price cap rules that apply to interstate access rates,
cach year our price cap index is adjusted downward by a fixed
percentage intended to reflect increases in productivity {the produc-
tivity factor) and adjusted upward by an allowance for inflation (the
GDP-PI). The current productivity factor is 6.5 percent. These
changes will be reflected in tanff changes that will be filed to take
effect on July 1, 1999.

In October 1998, the FCC imtiated a proceeding with respect to its
price cap rules to determine whether a change in the current
productivity factor is warranted, whether to continue its “market
based” approach of allowing market forces (supplemented by its
price cap rules) to determine access charge levels, and whether to
afford addinonal pricing flexibility for access services. In addition,
we have petitioned the FCC to remove our special access services
from price cap regulation on the grounds that customers of these
services have competitive alternatives available, and a challenge to
the FCC order establishing the 6.5 percent productivity factor is
pending in the U.S. Court of Appeals. We are unable to predict the
results of these further proceedings.

UNIVERSAL SERVICE

The FCC has adopted rules implementing the “universal service™
provision of the 1996 Act. As of January 1, 1999, the rules require each
of our operating telephone subsidiaries 10 contribute approximately
2% of its interstate retail revenues for high-cost and low-income
subsidies. Each of our operating telephone subsidiaries are also
required to contribute a portion of their total retail revenues for
schools, libraries and not-for-profit health care. Our operating tele-
phone subsidiaries will recover these contnibutions through interstate
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charges to long distance carriers and end-users. Our domestic wireless
company is required to contribute to these universal service programs
and will recover the cost of its contributions from end-users.

A new federal high-cost universal service support mechanism for
nonrural carriers and an increase in the funding level for schools
and libraries are expected to become effective in 1999. The FCC
currently is considering, in conjunction with a recommendation
from a joint board of federal and state regulators, a number of issues
that could affect the size of the universal service fund for high cost
areas and the amount of universal service costs that are assessed
against our operating telephone subsidiaries and domestic cellular
subsidiary for recovery.

RECIPROCAL COMPENSATION

We have been required by certain state regulatory decisions to pay
“reciprocal compensation” to competitive local exchange and other
carriers to terminate calls on their networks, including a large
volume of one-way traffic from our customers to internet service
providers that are their customers. On February 26, 1999, the FCC
confirmed that such traffic is interstate and interexchange in nature
and not subject to the reciprocal compensation requirements of the
1996 Act. Because the previous state regulatory decisions were based
upon a view that internet access calls are “local™ rather than inter-
state and interexchange in nature, we have asked those state
commissions to revisit their prior interpretations. Unless state regu

lators follow the FCC's interpretation, these reciprocal compensa-
tion payments, which were approximately $175 milhon higher in
1998, are expected to grow to approumately $350 million in 1999

STATE REQULATION OF RATES AND SERVICES

State public utility commissions regulate our operating telephone
subsidiaries with respect to certain intrastate rates and services and
certain other matters. In most jurisdictions the telephone
subsidiaries have been able to replace rate of return regulation with

price regulation plans.

NEW YORK TELEPHONE

New York

The New York State Public Service Commission has regulated New
York Telephone under the Performance Incentive Plan since 1995.
The plan is performance-based, replacing rate of return regulation
with a form of price regulation and incentives to improve service,
and does not restrict New York Telephone’s earnings. The plan

* caps prices at current rates for “basic” services such as residence
and business exchange access, residence and business local calling
and LifeLine service;

+ establishes price reduction commitments for a number of
services, including toll and intral ATA carrier access services:

* adjusts prices annually based on certain costs associated with state
commission mandates and other defined “exogenous” events; and

* establishes service quality targets with stringent rebate provisions
if New York Telephone is unable to meet some or all of the targets.

G 3
New York Telephone’s operations are subject to rate of return regu-
lation, but an incentive regulation plan which would eliminate regu-
lation of earnings has been filed with the Connecticut Department
of Public Utility Control.

BELL ATLANTIC =NEW JERSEY
Bell Atlantic~-New Jersey is regulated under a Plan for Alternative
Form of Regulation, which expires on December 31, 1999. A peti-
tion has been filed to extend the plan for another year. The plan
divides Bell Atlantic - New Jersey's services into Competitive
Services and Rate-Regulated Services.

* The prices for Competitive Services may be changed without
regulatory involvement.

* Rate-Regulated Services are grouped in two categories:

“Protected Services™: Basic residence and business service,
Touch-Tone, access services and the ordering. installation and
restoration of these services

* “Other Services™: Custom Calling, Custom Local Area Signaling
Services ("CLASS” services which utilize Signaling System 7),
perator services and 911 enhanced service.

+ There is a cap on basic residence service rates through 1999, but
revenue-neutral ralz restructuring is permitted.

* There is no cap on carnings for Rate-Regulated Services, but Bell
Atlantic-New Jersey must share all ecarnings above a return on
equity of 13.7% equally with customers.

BELL ATLANTIC = PENNSYLVANIA
The Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission regulates Bell
Atlantic~Pennsylvania under an Alternative Regulation Plan
approved in 1994. The plan provides for a pure price cap plan with
no sharing of carnings with customers and replaces rate base, rate of
return regulation.

+ Competitive Services, including directory advertising, billing
services, Centrex service, paging. speed calling, repeat calling, and
HiCap are deregulated

* All Noncompetitive Services are price regulated. The plan:

+ permits annual price increases up to, but not exceeding, the
GDP-PI minus 2.93%.

* requires annual price decreases when the GDP-PI falls below
2.93%.

* caps prices for protected services, including residential and
business basic exchange services, special access and switched
access, through 1999,

+ permits revenue-neutral rate restructuring for noncompetitive
SETVICes.

The plan requires Bell Atlantic - Pennsylvania to provide a Lifeline
service for residential customers. The plan also requires deployment
of a universal broadband network, which must be completed in phas-
es: 20% by 1998; 50% by 2004; and 100% by 2015. Deplovment must
be reasonably balanced among urban, suburban and rural areas.



From September 1998 through February 1999, the commission
sponsored a multi-party global telecommunications settlement
proceeding aimed at resolving issues in a number of contentious
teleccommunications regulatory dockets at the commission. The
formal negotiation period ended on March 1, 1999, without a settle-
ment among all the negotiation parties having been reached. Since
the close of negotiations, two group of participants, one of which
includes us, two competitive local exchange carriers, and a number
of small telephone companies, have proposed separate nonunani-
mous settlements for consideration by the commission in resolving
some or all of the telecommunications dockets. The commission has
not decided what procedures it will follow in addressing the issues
raised in these settlement proposals.

NEW ENGLAND TELEPHONE

Mainc

In 1995, the Maine Public Unilities Commission adopted a five-year
price cap plan for New England Telephone, with the provision for a
five-year extension after review by the state commission. Overall
average prices and specific rate elements for most services are limit-
ed by a price cap formula of inflation minus a productivity factor
plus or minus certain exogenous cost changes. There is no restric-
tion on New England Telephone's earnings. The state commission
also established a service quality index with penalties in the form of
customer rebates to spply if service quality categories are missed

Massachusetts

In 1995, the Massachusetts Department of Public Utilities approved
a price regulation plan for New England Telephone through August
2001, with no 1 striction on carnings. Certain residence exchange
rates are capped. Pricing rules limit New England Telephone's ability
to increase prices for most services, including a ceiling on the
weighted average price of all tariffed services based on a formula of
inflation minus a productivity factor plus or minus certain exoge-
nous changes. In addition, New England Telephone’s service quality
performance levels in any given month could result in an increase in
the productivity offset by one-twelfth of one percent for purposes of
the annual price cap filing.

New Hampshire

New England Telepbone's operations are subject to rate of return
regulation.

Rhode Island

In 1996, the Rhode Island Public Utilities Commission approved an
incentive regulation plan for New England Telephone. The plan has
No set term or expiration, although there are opportunities for annual
review by the state commussion, and there is no earnings cap or shar-
ing mechanism. Other features of the plan include: more stringent
service quality requ.: *ments, including a financial penalty, and no
increase in residence o7 business basic ezchang= rates through 1999.
Yermont

New England Telephone's operations are subject to rate of return
regulation, but an incentive plan has been filed with the Vermont
Public Service Board which would eliminate regulations of earnings.

BELL ATLANTIC ~ MARYLAND

In 1996, the Public Service Commission of Maryland approved a
price cap plan for regulating the intrastate services provided by Bell
Atlantic-Maryland. Under the plan, services are divided into six
categories: Access; Basic-Residential; Basic-Business; Discretionary;
Competitive; and Miscellancous. Rates for Access, Basic-Residential
and Basic-Business are capped for a period of three years. After the
cap period, rates for services in these three categories can be
increased or decreased annually under a formula that is based upon
changes in the GDP-PI minus a productivity offset based upon
changes in the rate of inflation (CPI1). Rates for Discretionary
services may be increased under the same formula. Rates for
competitive services may be increased without regulaiory limits.
Regulation of profits is eliminated.

BELL ATLANTIC = VIRGINIA

Effective in 1995, the Virginia State Corporation Commission
approved an alternative regulatory plan that regulates Bell
Atantic - Virginia's noncompetitive services on a price cap basis and
does not regulate Bell Atlantic - Virginia's competitive services. The
plan includes a moratorium on rate increases for basic local tele-
phone service until 2001 and eliminates regulation of profits.

BELL ATLANTIC ~ WEST VIRGINIA

In February 1998, the West Virginia Public Service Commission
issued an order extending the Incentive Regulation Plan until
December 31, 2000. The Incentive Regulation Plan includes pricing
flexibility for competitive services. Bell Atlantic—-West Virginia is
committed to invest at least $225 million in its network over the
three-year period from 1998 through 2000,

BELL ATLANTIC - DELAWARE
In 1994, Bell Atlantic - Delaware elected to be regulated under the
alternative regulation provisions of the Delaware Telecommunications
Technology Investment Act of 1993 (the "Delaware Telecommunica-
tions Act”). The Delaware Telecommunications Act provides that:

« the prices of “Basic Telephone Services” (e.g., dial-tone and local
usage) will remain regulated and cannot change in any one year
by more than the rate of inflation (GDP-PI) less 3%;
the prices of “Discretionary Services” (¢.g., Identa Ring™ and Call
Waiting) cannot increase more than 15% per year per service;

the prices of “Competitive Services™ (e.g., voice messaging and
message toll service) are not subject to tariff or regulation; and

Bell Atlantic - Delaware will develop a technology deployment
plan with a commitment to invest a minimum of $250 million in
Delaware's telecommunications network during the first five years
of the plan.
The Delaware Telecommunications Act also provides protections to
ensure that competitors will not be unfairly disadvantaged, includ-
ing a prohibition on cross-subsidization, imputation rules, service
unbundling and resale service availability requirements, and a2
review by the Delaware Public Service Commission during the fifth
year of the plan. In March 1998, the state commission approved Beil
Atlantic - Delaware’s request to continue under the Delaware
Telecommunications Act until March 2002,




BELL ATLANTIC ~ WASHINGTON, D.C.

In 1996, the District of Columbia Public Service Commission
approved a price cap plan for intra-Washington, D.C. services provid-
ed by Bell Atlantic - Washington, D.C. Provisions of the plan include:

* aterm of four years, through December 31, 1999;
+ three service categories: basic, discretionary, and competitive;

* caps on certain basic residential rates for the term of the plan,
with other basic rates to change with the GDP-PI minus 3%;

« discretionary service rate increases of up to 15% annually;
* elimination of price limits on competitive service rates; and
* elimination of the regulation of profits.

COMPETITION

Legislative changes, including provisions of the 1996 Act discussed
above under “Telecommunications Act of 1996,” regulatory changes
and new technology are continuing to expand the types of available
communications services and equipment and the number of
competitors offering such services. We anticipate that these industry
changes, together with the rapid growth, enormous size and global
scope of these markets, will attract new entrants and encourage
existing competitors to broaden their offerings. Current and poten-
tial competitors in telecommunication services include long
distance companies, other local telephone companies, cable compa

nies, wireless service providers, foreign teleccommunications
providers, electric utilities, Internet service providers and other
companies that offer network services. Many of these companies
have a strong market presence, brand recognition and existing
customer relationships, all of which contribute to intensifying
competition and may affect our future revenue growth. In addition,
a number of major industry participants have announced mergers,
acquisitions and joint ventures which could substantially affect the
development and nature of some or all of our markets.

LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICES

The ability to offer local exchange services has historically been
subject to regulation by state regulatory commissions. Applications
from competitors to provide and resell local exchange services have
been approved in every jurisdiction in our territory. The 1996 Act is
expected to significantly increase the level of competition in all of
our local exchange markets.

One of the purposes of the 1996 Act was (o ensure, and accelerate,
the emergence of competition in local exchange markets. Toward
this end, the 1996 Act requires most existing local exchange carriers
(incumbent local exchange carriers, or “ILECs"), including our
operating telephone subsidiaries, to permit potential competitors
(competitive local exchange carriers, or “CLECs™) to:

+ purchase service from the ILEC for resale to CLEC customers

+ purchase unbundled network elements from the ILEC, and/or

* interconnect the CLEC network with the ILEC's network.

The 1996 Act provides for arbitration by the state public utility
commission if an ILEC and a CLEC are unable to reach agreement
on the terms of the arrangement sought by the CLEC.

Negotiations between the operating telephone subsidiaries and vari-
ous CLECs, and arbitrations before state public utility commissions,
have continued. As of January 31, 1999, the operating telephone
subsidiaries had entered into approximately 897 agreements with
CLECs covering all of our territory, of which 664 have been
approved by state regulators.

We expect that these agreements, and the 1996 Act. will continue to
lead to substantially increased competition in our local exchange
markets in 1999 and subsequent years. We believe that this competi-
tion will be both on a facilities basis and in the form of resale by
CLECs of our operating telephone subsidiaries’ service. Under the
various agreements and arbitrations discussed above, our operating
telephone subsidianies are generally required to sell thewr services to
CLECs at discounts ranging from approimately 15% to 29% from
the prices our operating telephone subsidianies charge their retail
customers.

INTRALATA TOLL SERVICES

IntralATA toll calis onginate and terminate within the same LATA,
but generally cover a greater distance than a local call. State regulato-
ry commissions rather than federal authorities generally regulate
these services. All of our state regulatory commissions (except in the
District of Columbia, where intral ATA toll service is not provided)
permit other carriers to offer intral ATA toll services within the state.

Until the implementation of “presubscription,” intral ATA toll calls
were completed by our operating telephone subsidiaries unless the
customer dialed a code to access a competing carrier. Presubscription
changes this dialing method and enables customers to make these toll
calls using another carrier without having to dial an access code.

The 1996 Act generally prohibits, with certain exceptions, a state
from requiring presubscription until the earhier of such time as the
BOC is authorized to provide long distance services onginating in
the state or three years from the effective date of the 1996 Act.

New York Telephone fully completed intral ATA presubscription
implementation by September 1996. By December 1997, our operat-
ing telephone subsidiaries in Delaware, Maine, New Hampshire,
New Jersey, Pennsylvania, Rhode Island, Vermont and West Virginia
bad also implemented presubscription. We expect to offer
intralLATA presubscription in Massachusetts in April 1999. In
Maryland and Virginia, the state commissions have decided that
intral ATA presubscription need not occur on the third anniversary
of the 1996 Act, but did not set dates for implementation. The
recent Supreme Court decision reinstated the FCC's authority to
adopt rules governing intral ATA presubscription, and the FCC has
required that implementation be completed as early as May 1999.

Implementation of presubscription for intral ATA toll services has
had a material negative effect on intralATA toll service revenues in
those jurisdictions where, as noted above, presubscription has been
implemented before we are permitted to offer long distance services.
However, the negative effect is beginning to subside now that
presubscription has been available in most of our states for more
than one year. In addition, the adverse impact on intralATA toll
services revenues is being partially offset by an increase in
intraLATA network access revenues.




ALTERNATIVE ACCESS

A substantial portion of our operating telephone subsidiaries’
revenues from business and government customers is derived from a
relatively small number of large, multiple-line subscribers.

We face competition from alternative communications systems,
constructed by large end-users, interexchange carriers and alterna-
tive access vendors, which are capable of oniginating and/or termi-
nating calls without the use of our plant. The FCC's orders requinng
us to offer virtual collocated interconnection for special and
switched access services have enhanced the ability of such alternative

access providers to compete with us

Other potential sources of competition include cable television
systems, shared tenant services and other noncarrier systems which
are capable of bypassing our operating telephone subsidiaries’ local
plant, either partially or completely, through substitution of special
access for switched access or through concentration of telecommuni-
cations traffic on fewer of our operating telephone subsidiaries’ lines.

WIRELESS SERVICES

Wireless services also constitute potential sources of competition to
our wireline teleccommunications services, especially as wireless
carriers continue to lower their prices to end users. Wireless
portable telephone services employ analog and digital technology
that allows customers to make and receive telephone calls from any
location using small handsets, and can also be used for data trans-
mission. Our investment in wireless services is described below
under “Global Wireless.”

PUBLIC TELEPNONE SERVICES

We face increasing competition in the provision of pay telephone
services from other providers. In addition, the growth of wireless
communications de “eases usage of public telephones.

OPERATOR SERVICES
Alternative operator services providers have entered into competi-
tion with our operator services product line.

Directory

Through Bell Atlantic Yellow Pages Company, Bell Atlantic Electronic
Commerce Services, Inc. and other subsidianes, we publish printed
and electronic directories and provide Internet-based electronic
shopping guides, as well as website creation and hosting and other
electronic commerce services. Our directory publishing business
produces over 600 domestic and international Yellow Page directories
with over 900,000 advertisers and distributes approximately 80
million copies annually in its regional markets, as well as in Poland,
the Czech Republic, Slovakia, Greece, Gibraltar and China. We
provide on-line shopping services with more than 10,000 advertisers
and nearly 23 million visits per month. 1998 revenues from the
Directory segment were approximately $2.3 billion.

Globa! Wireloss
1998 revenues from our Global Wireless segment were approximate-
Iy $3.8 billion.

UNITED STATES

We provide wireless communications services in the United States
principally through our subsidiary, Bell Atlantic Mobile ("BAM™),
and PrimeCo Personal Communications, L.P. (*PrimeCo”). a joint
venture.

BAM provides wireless services to approximately 6.2 million
customers in the Northeast, mid-Atlantic. Southeast and Southwest
portions of the United States. BAM competes with other cellular
carriers and personal communications service (“PCS™) providers
licensed by the FCC. Competing providers offer competitive pricing
plans, digital technology, and enhanced calling features. BAM has
introduced new pricing plans designed to meet this new competi-
tion, and offers digital service as well as enhanced calling features in
its markets.

PrimeCo is a partnership between Bell Atlantic and AirTouch
Communications which provides PCS services in over 30 major
cities across the United States. At year-end PrimeCo had approxi-
mately 902,000 customers. Since 1994 we have invested approxi-
mately $1.6 billion in PrimeCo to fund its operations and the
build-out of its PCS network.

MEXICO

We have a 47.2% economic interest in Grupo lusacell, SA. de C.V.
(“lusacell™), a telecommunications company in Mexico whose
primary business is the provision of wireless telephone service. The
Peralta Group, the other principal shareholder of lusacell, holds
approximately 43.6%, and the remaining 9.3% is held by public
sharcholders.

Since 1993, we have invested approximately $1.2 billion in lusacell.
In the first quarter of 1997, we consummated a restructuring of our
investment in lusacell to permit us to assume control of its board of
directors and management. At year end, lusacell had approximately
750,000 subscribers.

ITALY
We have a 19.71% economic interest in Omnitel Pronto Italia, Sp.A.
(*Omnitel”), an ltalian digital cellular telecommunications company.
Since 1994 we have invested approximately $544 million in Omnitel.
At year-end, Omnitel had approximately 6.2 million subscribers.
GREECE

We have a 20% economic interest in STET Hellas Telecommunica-
tions S.A. ("STET Hellas™), which holds one of three nationwide
licenses for cellular services in Greece. At year-end, STET Hellas had
approximately 688,000 subscribers.

CZECH REPUBLIC AND SLOVAKIA
We have an economic interest of approximately 25% in EuroTel Praha
s r.o. and EuroTel Bratislava a.s., which have been operating ceflular
systems in the Czech Republic and Slovakia, respectively, since 1991.
INDONESIA

We have an economic interest of approximately 23% in P.T.
Excelcomindo Pratama ("Excelcomindo™), which holds a nation-
wide license to provide cellular service in Indonesia.




In the third quarter of 1998, we recorded a charge of $137 mullion to
adjust the carrying value of our investment in Excelcomindo to its
estimated fair value. We considered the following factors in deter-
mining this charge:

* The continued weakness of the Indonesian currency as compared
to historical exchange rates will create additional financial
burdens on the company in servicing US. dollar-denominated
debt. The continuing political unrest in Indonesia has contributed
to the currency’s instabality.

* The economic instability and prospects for an extended recovery
period have resulted in weaker than expected growth in
Excelcomindo’s business. One significant factor has been inflex:-
ble tariff regulation despite rising costs due to inflation. This and
other factors have resulted in reduced expectations of future cash
flows and, accordingly, a reduction in the value of our investment

* Issues with cash flow are requining Excelcomindo’s sharcholders
to evaluate the future funding of the business.

Other Businesses

1998 revenues from our Other Businesses were approumately $124
million.

NEW ZEALAND

We have a 24.94% economic interest in Telecom Corporation of New
Zealand Limited ("TCNZ"). TONZ is the principal provider of
telecommunications services in New Zealand, offering local service,
national and international long distance service, cellular service and
Internet access. At December 31, 1998, TUNZ had approximately 1.85
million access lines, 565,000 cellular connections and 160,000 internet
access customers. TONZ faces increasing competition in most of its
markets. The New Zealand government retains a single share in
TONZ, which gives the government the night to limit ressdential local
service price increases to no more than the rate of inflation and
requires a flat-rate local calling option for residential customers.

In February 1998, we monetized our investment in TUNZ and
issued approximately $2.5 billion in five year notes, which are
exchangeable into shares of TCNZ at the option of the holder after
September 1, 1999. Upon exchange by the holders, we retain the
option to settle in cash or by delivery of shares.

GREAT BRITAIN
We have an 18.5% economic interest in Cable & Wireless
Communications, PLC ("CWC™), which was created in Apnil 1997
through the merger of Mercury Communications, NYNEX
CableComms, and Bell Cablemedia, following the acquisition of
Videotron Holdings by Bell Cablemedia. CWC provides telecommu-
nications and CATV services and at December 31, 1998 had approx-
imately 1 million residential telephony lines and 837,000 CATV
subscribers.

In August 1998 we monetized our mvestment in CWC and issued
approximately $3.2 billion in notes which are exchangeable into
shares of CWC at the option of the holder after July 1, 2002. Upon
exchange by the holders, we retain the option o settle in cash or by
delivery of shares.

THAILAND

We have an economic interest of 18.2% in TelecomAsia Corporation
Public Company Limited (“TelecomAsia™), which operates a
telecommunications network and CATV system in metropolitan
Bangkok. At year-end. TelecomAsia had approximately 1.3 million
telephony lines in service and 350,000 CATV subscribers.

In the third quarter of 1998, we recorded a charge of $348 million to
adjust the carrving value of our investment in Telecom Asia to its
estimated fair value. We considered the following factors in deter-
muning this charge:

* The continued weakness of the That currency as compared to
historical exchange rates will place additional financial burdens
on the company in servicing U.S. dollar-denominated debt.

* The economic instability and prospects for an extended recovery
period have resulted in weaker than expected growth in
IelecomAsia’s business. This 1s indicated by slower than expected
growth in total subscribers and usage. These factors resulted in
reduced expectations of future cash flows and, accordingly, a
reduction in the value of our investment.

* The business plan for TelecomAsia contemplated cash flows from
several lines of business. Given TelecomAsia’s inclination to focus
on i1s core wireline business, these other lines of business may not
contribute future cash flows at previously expected levels

PrILIPPINES

We have a 20% economic interest in BavanTel Telecommunications
Holdings Corporation (“BayanTel™), a local exchange provider. At
December 31, 1998, BavanTel had approxamately 250,000 access lines.

LAG

FLAG Limited (FLAG) owns and operates an undersea fiberoptic
cable system, provaiding digital communications links between
Europe and Asia. FLAG launched commercal service in the fourth
quarter of 1997. We hold approximately a 34% equity interest in the
venture and have invested approxumately $227 million since 1994

We have approximately a 5% interest in the parent company of
FLAG, FLAG Telecom Holding Limited (FLAG Telecom). In the first
quarter of 1999, a subsidiary of FLAG Telecom and Global
TeleSystems Group, Inc., a US. telecommunications company, agreed
to establish a joint venture to build and operate a transoceanic dual
cable system to carry high-speed data and video traffic across the
Atlantic Ocean. The companies expect to offer service in 2000

Empioyses

As of December 31, 1998, Bell Atlantic and 1ts subsidiaries had
approximately 140.000 employees. Unions represent approximately
69% of our employees. In 1998 we executed new collective bargain-
ing agreements with the unsons.



Casticasry Statemont Concemning Forward-Looking
Stetements

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K we have made forward-looking
statements. These statements are based on our estimates and
assumptions and are subject to risks and uncertainties. Forward-
looking statements include the information concerning our possible
or assumed future results of operations. Forward-looking state-
ments also include those preceded or followed by the words “antici-
pates.” “believes,” “estimates,” “hopes” or similar expressions. For
those statements, we claim the protection of the safe harbor for
forward-looking statements contained in the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995.

The following important factors, along with those discussed else-
where in this Annual Report, could affect future results and could
cause those results to differ materially from those expressed in the
forward-looking statements:

* materially adverse changes in economic conditions in the markets
served by us or by companies in which we have substantial
investments;

* material changes in available technology;

+ the final outcome of federal, state and local regulatory initiatives
and proceedings, including arbitration proceedings, and judicial
review of those initiatives and proceedings, pertaining to, among
other matters, the terms of interconnection, access charges, univer-
sal service, and unbundled network elements and resale rates;

* the extent, timing. success and overall effects of competition from
others in the local telephone and toll service markets;

* the timing and profitabiity of our entry into the in-region long
distance market;

* the success and expense of our remediation efforts and those of our
suppliers, customers, joint ventures, noncontrolled investments and
interconnecting carniers in achieving year 2000 compliance; and

* the timing of, and regulatory or other conditions associated with,
the completion of the merger with GTE and our ability to
combine operations and obtain revenue enhancement and cost
savings following the merger.
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Our principal properties do not lend themselves to simple descrip-
tion by character and location. Our total investment in plant, prop-
erty and equipment was approximately $83.1 billion at December
31, 1998 and $77.4 billion at December 31, 1997, including the effect
of retirements, but before deducting accumulated depreciation. Our
gross investment in plant, property and equipment consisted of the
following at December 31:

1998 1997
Outside communications plant 40.5% I 40.9%
Central office equipment 379 37
Land and buildings 85 87
Furniture, vehicies and other
work equipment 95 94
Other 36 33
100 0% 100.0%

Our properties are divided among our operating segments as

follows:

1998 1997

Giobal Wireless 1.2 65

Directory 4 4

Other Businesses 3 1
100.0% 100.0%

“Outside communications plant”™ consists primarily of aerial cable,
underground cable, conduit and wiring, cellular plant, and tele-
phone poles. “Central office equipment” consists of switching equip-
ment, transmission equipment and related facilities. “Land and
buildings” consists of land and land improvements, and principally
central office buildings. “Furniture, vehicles and other work equip-
ment” consists of public telephone instruments and telephone
equipment (including PBXs), furniture, office equipment, motor
vehicles and other work equipment. "Other™ property consists
primarily of plant under construction, capital leases and leasehold
improvements.

The customers of our operating telephone subsidiaries are served by
clectronic switching systems that provide a wide vaniety of services
The operating telephone subsidiaries’ network is in a transition
from an analog to a digital network, which provides the capabilities
to furnish advanced data transmission and information manage-
ment services. At December 31, 1998, approximately 97% of the
access lines were served by digital capability

Substantially all of the assets of New York Telephone Company,
totaling approximately $13.3 billion at December 31, 1998, are
subject to the lien of New York Telephone Company's refunding
mortgage bond indenture.

Capital Expenditures

We continue to make significant capital expenditures to meet the
demand for communications services and to further improve such
services. Capital expenditures for our Domestic Telecom business
were approximately $6.4 billion in 1998, $5.5 billion in 1997 and
$4.9 billion 1in 1996. Capital expenditures for our Global Wireless,
Directory and Other Businesses were approximately $1.0 billion in
1998, $1.1 billion in 1997 and $1.5 billion in 1996. Capital expendi-
tures exclude additions under capital leases. We expect capital
expenditures in 1999 to total approximately $8.1 billion, including
approximately $7.3 bilbon to be invested in our Domestic Telecom
business to facilitate the introduction of new products and services,
enhance responsiveness to competitive challenges, and increase the
operating efficency and productivity of the network. This estimate
includes approximately $500 million related to the implementation
of the new accounting standard on costs of computers software,
Statement of Position (SOP) 98-1, “"Accounting for the Costs of
Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use.”




| tom 3. Logai Procesdings |

There were no proceedings reportable under Item 3.

Hem 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of
Secarity Holders

Not Applicable.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

Set forth below is certain information with respect to our executive officers.

Hed
Mame Age Office Yince
ivan G. Seidenberg 52 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 1998
Lawrence T. Babbio, Jr. 54 President and Chief Operating Officer 1998
James G. Cullen 56 President and Chief Operating Officer 1998
Jacqueiyn B. Gates 47 Vice President-Ethics and Corporate Compliance 1998
Alexander H. Good 49 Executive Vice President-Strategy 1998
and Corporate Development
Patrick F.X. Muthearn 47 Vice President-Corporate Communications 1997
Donald J. Sacco 57 Executive Vice President-Human Resources 1997
Frederic V. Salerno 55 Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer/Strategy and Business Development 1997
Thomas J. Tauks 48 Senior Vice President-Government Relations 1997
Doreen A. Toben 49 Vice President-Controlier 1998
Chester N. Watson 48 Vice President-internal Auditing 1997
Morrison DeS. Webb 51 Executive Vice President-External Affairs and 1997
Corporate Communications
Elien C. Wolf 45 Vice President-Treasurer 1997
James R. Young a7 Executive Vice President-General Counsel 1997

Prior 1o serving as an executive officer, each of the above officers have held high level managerial positions with the company or one of its
subsidiaries for at least five years.

Officers are not elected for a fixed term of office but are removable at the discretion of the Board of Directers.




tom 8. Maiket for Registrant’s Common Equity and
Related Stockholder Matters

The principal market for trading in the common stock of Bell
Atlantic is the New York Stock Exchange. The common stock is also
listed in the United States on the Boston, Chicago, Pacific, and
Philadelphia stock exchanges. As of December 31, 1998, there were
1,102,900 shareowners of record.

High and low stock prices, as reported on the New York Stock
Exchange composite tape of transactions, and dividend data are as
follows:

Casn
Marset Price Deenc
“g Low Deciarec
1998
First Quarter $ 53 $ 42n $ 385
Second Quarter S1% 24 385
Third Quarter SO e 40 /s 385
Fourth Quarter 61%. arn 385
1997
First Quarter $ V% $ 29% $ 37
Second Quarter 39% 28% 37
Third Quarter 40% k2 .385
Fourth Quarter 455 3TH 385

Reflects 2for 1 stock spiit declared and pasd In second Quarter of 1968

Pursuant to the terms of an Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated
September 23, 1997, relating to the merger of Blue Ridge Cellular
Telephone Company with one of our subsidiaries, we issued 212,171
shares of common stock in 1997 and 1,742 shares of common stock in
1998, none of which was registered under the Securities Act of 1933.

| tom 6. Seiected Finsncial Data |

The information required by this item is included on page F-21 of
this report.

| Rom 8. Finsacial Statements and Suppiomentary Duta |

The information required by this item is included on pages F-22
through F-51 of thus report

tom 3. Changes ia and Disagrecinents with
Accounteats en Acce: sting and Flaancial Discleosare

Not Apphicable.

tem 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the
Registramt

For information with respect to our executive officers, see
“Executive Officers of the Registrant™ at the end of Part | of this
Report. For information with respect to the Directors and compli-
ance with Section 16{a) of the Secunities Exchange Act of 1934, see
the Proxy Statement for our 1999 Annual Meeting of Shareowners
to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A, which is incorporated herein
by reference.

| tte= 11. Executive Compensation |

For information with respect to executive compensation, see the
Proxy Statement for our 1999 Annual Mecting of Shareowners to be
filed pursuant to Regulation 14A, which is incorperated herein by

reference.

item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial
Owrnoers and hilanagement

For information with respect to the security ownership of the
Directors and Executive Officers, see the Proxy Statement for our
1979 Annual Meeting of Sharecowners to be filed pursuant to
Regulation 14A, which is incorporated herein by reference.

ftem 13. Cortain Relationships and Related
Tramsactions

Itom 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Res:its of O wrations

The information required by this item is included on pages F-2
through F-20 of this report.

Hem 7a. Quantitative and Quaiitati > Disclosures
About Market Risk

The information required by this item is included on pages F-13
through F-15 of this report.

For information with respect to certain relationships and related
transactions, see the Proxy Statement for our 1999 Annual Meeting
of Shareowners to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A, which is
incorporated herein by reference.




item 14. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules,
and Reports on Form 8K

(3) The following documents are filed as part of this report:

(1) Financial Statements
See Index to Financial Information appearing on Page F-1.

(2) Financial Statement Schedule
See Index to Financial Information appearing on Page F-1.

(3) Exhibits

Exhibits identified in parentheses below, on file with the Securities
and Exchange Commission (SEC) in File No. 1-8606 except as other-
wise noted, are incorporated herein by reference as exhibits hereto.

EXNIBIT NUMBER

2

3

3b

Agreement and Plan of Merger by and among Bell Atlantic
Corporation, Beta Gama Corporation and GTE Corporation,
dated as of July 27, 1998, (Exhibit 2.0! to Form 8-K, date of
report July 30, 1998.)

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Bell Atlantic
Corporation ("Bell Atlantic™). (Exhibit 3(1) to Form 8-K, date
of report August 14, 1997.)

By-Laws of Bell Atlantic, as amended and restated as of
January 1, 1999.

No instrument which defines the rights of holders of long-
term debt of Bell Atlantic and its consolidated subsidiaries is
filed herewith pursuant to Regulation S-K, Item
601(b)(4)(1i)(A). Pursuant to this regulation, Bell Atlantic
hereby agrees to furnish a copy of any such instrument to the
SEC upon request.

Bell Atlantic Deferred Compensation Plan for Outside
Directors, as amended and restated as of January 1, 1998.°

Bell Atlantic Insurance Plan for Directors. (Exhibit 10hh to
Registration Statement on Form S-1 No. 2-87842)."

Description of Bell Atlantic Plan for Non-Employee
Directors’ Travel Accident Insurance. (Exhibit 101i to
Registration Statement on Form S-1 No. 2-87842.)*

Bell Atlantic Retirement Plan for Outside Directors, as
amended ‘nd restated as of January 1, 1996. (Exhibit 10k to
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1995.)°

Bell Atlantic Stock Compensation Plan for Outside Directors,
as amended and restated as of January 1, 1998.°

Bell Atlantic Corporation Directors’ Charitable Giving
Program. (Exhibit 10p to Form SE dated March 29, 1990.)*

10f(i) Resolutions amending and partially terminating the
Program. (Exhibit 10p to Form SE dated March 29,
1993.)*

Description of Changes in Compensation for Outside
Directors of Bell Atlantic, effective August 14, 1997 (Exhibit
10y to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Scptember 30, 1997.)*

1

10k

10l

Bell Atlantic Senior Management Short Term Incentive Plan, as
amended and restated effective as of January 22 1996. (Exhibit
10a to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1996.)*

10h(i) Description of Amendment, effective August 14, 1997,
(Exhibit 10a(i) to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 1997.)°

Bell Atlantic Deferred Compensation Plan, as amended and
restated as of January 1, 1997. (Exhibit 101 to Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 1996.)*

10i(i) Description of Amendments to Bell Atlantic Deferred
Compensation Plan (renamed the Bell Atlantic Senior
Management Income Deferral Plan), effective January
1, 1998. (Exhibit 10i(i) to Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 1997.)°

Bell Atlantic 1985 Incentive Stock Option Plan, as amended
and restated as of July 1, 1996. (Exhibit 10j to Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 1996.)°

10j(i) Description of Amendment and Administrative
Change to Bell Atlantic 1985 Incentive Stock Option
Plan, effective August 14, 1997. (Exhibit 10a(i) to Form
10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1997.)*

Section 6 from Bell Atlantic Cash Balance Plan regarding
limitations on payment of pension amounts which exceed the
limitations contained in the Employee Retirement Income
Security Act of 1974, (Exhibit 10g to Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 1996.)°

Bell Atlantic Senior Management Long-Term Disability and
Survivor Protection Plan, as amended. (Exhibit 10h to Form
SE filed on March 27, 1986.)*

10ii) Resolutions amending the Plan, effective as of January 1,
1989. (Exhibit 10d to Form SE dated March 29, 1989.)*

101(ii) Description of Amendments, effective January 1, 1998,
to Bell Atlantic Senior Management Long Term
Disability Plan (formerly known, as the Bell Atlantic
Senior Management Long-Term Disability and
Survivor Protection Plan). (Exhibit 10b(ii) to Form 10-
K for the year ended December 31, 1997.)°

Bell Atlantic Salary Program for Senior Managers, effective
August 14, 1997. (Exhibit 10x to Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended September 30, 1997.)°

Description of Bell Atlantic Senior Management Estate
Management Plan.*

Description of Bell Atlantic Senior Management Death
Benefit Plan, effective April 1, 1998, (Exhibit 10rr to Form 10-
K for year ended December 31, 1997.)*

Description of Bell Atlantic Senior Management Flexible
Spending Perquisite Account, effective January 1, 1998,
(Exhibit 10ss to Form 10-K for year ended December 31,
1997.)°

NYNEX 1984 Stock Option Plan, as amended and restated.
(Post-Effective Amendment No. | to NYNEX's Registration
No. 2-97813, dated September 21, 1987, File No. 1-8608.)*



10t

10u

10v

10x

10z

10bb

10cc

10dd

NYNEX 1987 Restricted Stock Award Plan (Exhibit No. (28)
(i) 1 to NYNEX's filing on Form SE dated March 23, 1988,
File No. 1-8608.)*

NYNEX 1990 Stock Option Plan as amended. (Exhibit No. 2
1o NYNEX's Proxy Statement dated March 20, 1995, File No.
1-8608.)*

NYNEX 1995 Stock Option Plan as amended. (Exhibit No. |
to NYNEX’s Proxy Statement dated March 20, 1995, File No.
1-8608.)°

NYNEX 1995 Long Term Incentive Program as amended.
(Exhibit No. 3 to NYNEX's Proxy Statement dated March 20,
1995, File No. 1-8608.)*

NYNEX Supplemental Life Insurance Plan. (Exhibit No. 10 iii
21 to NYNEX's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the peri-
od ended June 30, 1996, File No. 1-8608.)*

NYNEX Executive Retention Agreement. (Exhibit No. 10 iii
35 to NYNEX's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, for the peri-
od ended June 30, 1996, File No. 1-8608.)*

Employment Agreement, dated August 14, 1997, by and
between Bell Atlantic and Raymond W. Smith (Exhibit 10aa
to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1997.)*

10x(i) Letter dated April 16, 1998, to Raymond W. Smith
concerning employment-related 1ssues. (Exhibit 10v(1)
to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1998.)°

10x(ii)Resolutions dated May 1, 1998, approving amendments
to Employment Agreement of Raymond W. Smith.
(Exhibit 10v(ii) to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 1998.)*

Employment Agreement, dated as of June 1, 1998, by and
between Bell Atlantic Corporation and Lawrence T. Babbio,
Jr.. (Exhibit 10a to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,
1998.)°

Employment Agreement, dated as of June 1, 1998, by and
between Bell Atlantic Corporation and James G. Cullen.
(Exhibit 10b to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,
1998.)°

Employment Agreement, dated as of June 1, 1998, by and
between Bell Atlantic Corporation and Frederic V. Salerno
(Exhibit 10¢ to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,
1998.)°

Employment Agreement, dated as of June 1, 1998, by and
between Bell Atlantic Corporation and Donald |. Sacco
(Exhibit 10d to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended june 30,
1998.)°

Employment Agreement, dated as of Junc 1, 1998, by and
between Bell Atlantic Corporation and Mornison DeS. Webb
{Exhibit 10e to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,
1998.)*

Employment Agreement, dated as of June 1, 1998, by and
between Bell Atlantic Corporation and James R. Young
(Exhibit 10f to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,
1998.)°

10ee

10hh

101

109)

101

Form of Amendment, dated as of October 27, 1998, to
Employment Agreements with Lawrence T. Babbio, Jr., James
G. Cullen, Frederic V. Salerno, Donald 1. Sacco, Morrison De$
Webb and James R. Young.®

Employment Agreement, dated as of January 1, 1999, by and
between Bell Atlantic Corporation and Ivan G. Seidenberg.*

Employment Agreement, dated as of October 27, 1998, by and
between Bell Atlantic Corporation and Alexander H. Good.*

Resolution, dated January 24, 1994, granting Lawrence T.
Babbio, Jr. certain nonqualified stock options to purchase
American Depository Receipts representing Series L shares of
the capital stock of Grupo lusacell, S.A. de C.V. (Exhibit 10s
to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1993.)°

Form of stock option grant to Lawrence T. Babbio, Jr., dated
February 18, 1997, containing terms and conditions of certain
nonqualified stock options to purchase American Depository
Receipts representing Series L shares of the capital stock of
Grupo lusacell, S.A. de C.V. (Exhibit 10q to Form 10-K for the
vear ended December 31, 1996.)°

Forms of Stay Incentive Agreement and Separation and Non-
Compete Agreement with Doreen A. Toben and Ellen C. Wolf
with respect 1o the Bell Atlantic-NYNEX merger. (Exhibit 10(f)
to Registration Statement on Form S-4 No. 333-11573.)°

Form of Stay Incentive Agreement, dated as of November 23,
1998, with Doreen A. Toben and Ellen C. Wolf with respect to
the Bell Atlantic - GTE Merger.*

Form of Stay Incentive Agreement, dated as of November 23,
1998, with Patrick EX. Mulhearn and Thomas |. Tauke.*

10mm Form of Stay Incentive Agreement, dated as of November 23,

10nn

1000

1998, with lacquelyn B. Gates and Chester N, Watson.*

Form of Merger Agreement, dated as of January 29, 1999,
with Doreen A. Toben and Ellen C. Wolf.*

Form of Merger Agreement, dated as of January 29, 1999,

with Patrick F.X. Mulhearn and Thomas J. Tauke.*

Form of Merger Agreement, dated as of January 29, 1999,
with Jacquelyn B. Gates and Chester N. Watson.”

Stock Option Agreement, dated as of July 27, 1998, between
Bell Atlantic Corporation and GTE Corporation. (Exhibit
10.01 to Form 8-K, date of report July 30, 1998.)

Stock Option Agreement, dated as of July 27, 1998, between
GTE Corporation and Bell Atlantic Corporation. (Exhibit
10.02 to Form 8-K, date of report July 30, 1998.)

Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges
List of subsidiaries of Bell Atlantic

Consent of Independent Accountants

Powers of Attorney

Financial Data Schedule.

Indicates management contract or compensatory plan or

arrangement




Current Reports on Form B-K filed during the quarter ended
December 31, 1998

A Current Report on Form 8-K, dated October 13, 1998, was
filed regarding certain charges taken in the third quarter of
1998

A Current Report on Form 8-K, dated October 21, 1998, was
filed regarding Bell Atlantic's third quarter 1998 financial
results.

A Current Report on Form 8-K, dated October 26, 1998, was
filed on behalf of the Bell Atlantic Savings and Security Plan
(Non Salaried Emplovees) regarding a change in the Plan's
independent accountants

A Current Report on Form 8-K, dated O tober 26, 1998, was
filed on behalf of the Bell Atlantic Savings and Plan for Salaried
Employees regarding a change in the Plan's independent
accountants,

A Current Report on Form 8-K, dated October 26, 1998, was
filed on behalf of the NYNEX Corporation Savings and
Security Plan (Non-Salaried Employees) regarding a change
in the Plan’s independent accountants.

A Current Report on Form 8-K, dated October 28, 1998, was
filed regarding certain statements made at a Bell Atlantic
Analyst Conference on October 28, 1998
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Overview

1998 marked a year in which we achieved very solid financial results
while continuing to position ourselves for entry into new markets in
telecommunications. Our results were driven by strong market
demand for voice and data services in our Domestic Telecom business
and robust operating performance by our Global Wireless group.

In 1998, we reported net income of $2,965 million, or $1.86 diluted
earnings per share. In 1997, we reported net income of $2,455
million or $1.56 diluted earnings per share, and in 1996 we reported
net income of $3,402 million or $2.18 diluted earnings per share.
Our reported results for all three years were affected by special
items. After adjusting for such items, net income would have been
$4,323 million or $2.72 diluted carnings per share in 1998, $3.847
million or $2.45 diluted earnings per share in 1997, and $3,474
million or $2.23 diluted carnings per share in 1996. The table below
summarizes reported and adjusted results of operations for 1998,
1997 and 1996.

(DOULARS » w0 )

TRASS DNDED DECQIBTR 31 1998 1997 1996
Operating revenues $31.566 ' $30.194 '329.155
Operating expenses 24939 24852 23,076
Operating income 6,627 5,342 6.079
Ropertsd Met Income 2,965 2,455 3,402
Special tems - pre-tax

Merger-reisted costs 196 519 -

Retirement incentive costs 1021 513 236

Other charges and special items ___58 1.041 315
Total special ftems - pre-tax 1.806 2073 551

Tax effect and other taxrelated ftems (448 (681) (2086)

Cumutative effect of change n

accounting pnnciple, net of tax (273

Total special tems - after tax 1.358 1.392 72
Adpsted Nat ke $ 4323 § 3847 § 3474
Ditod Eonings PorShavo-Raperted §$ 186 $ 15 §$ 218
Dihtod Enmings PorShave-Adimated $ 272 § 245 § 223

All prior year per share amounts have been adjusted to reflect a two-
for-one common stock split on June 1, 1998.

The following table shows how special items are reflected in our
consolidated statements of income for each of the three years:

DOLLAEY N w0

TIANS IRSED GSCEMSES X1 1990 b 1996
l I
Reguiatory contingencies $ - SHIN $ 12
Empioyoes Costs
Retirement incentive costs 1.021 513 236
Merger direct incremental costs - 53 -
Merger severance costs - 223 -
Merger transition costs 15 2 -
Video-related charges - 12 5
Other special tems 0 - 41
Dspreciation and Amortizstion
Write-down of assets 40 300 19
Othar Opocating Exponses
Merger direct incremental costs - 147 -
Merger transition costs 181 - 4 ~
Video-related charges 15 9 -
Real estate consobdation - 55 -
Reguiatory, tax and legal contingencies
and other special ftems 9 347 171
1311 1.815 467
(imcome) Loes From
Urnc ongodidate Borale sones
Write-Gown of Asian nvestments 485 - -
Write-down of video nvestments 8 162 -
Equity share of CWC formation costs - e -
Gans on sales of mvestments - (14 160
Othor (< ywme and Expense. net
Write-down of assets (45) - 12
Intere: ! _xpense
Write-Gown of assets 47 - -
Tota! Speciai Reams - Pre-Tex 1806 2073 551
Provie. . for income Taxes
Tax effect of special fems and
et tan - related tems 448 681) (2086)
Cumudatve effect of change n
BCCOUNtING DrNCIpie-Grectory
oublirstung, net of tax - - 273)
-2l Special ems - After-Tax $1358 $1392 § 72




What follows is a further explanation of the nature and timing of
these special items.

| Morgerretated Costs |

In connection with the Bell Atlantic-NYNEX merger, which was
completed in August 1997, we recorded pre-tax costs totaling $196
million in 1998 and $519 million in 1997

In 1998, merger-related charges of $196 million were for transition
and integration costs. In 1997, merger-related charges consisted of $96
million for transition and integration costs, $200 million for direct
incremental costs and $223 million for employee severance costs.

Transition and integration costs represent costs associated with inte-
grating the operations of Bell Atlantic and NYNEX, such as systems
modifications costs, advertising and branding costs, and costs asso-
ciated with the elimination and consolidation of duplicate facilities,
relocation and training. Transition and integration costs are
expensed as incurred. Direct incremental costs consist of expenses
associated with completing the merger transaction, such as profes-
sional and regulatory fees, compensation arrangements and share-
owner-related costs.

Employee severance costs, as recorded under SFAS No. 112,
“Employers’ Accounting for Postemployment Benefits,” represent
benefit costs for the separation by the end of 1999 of approximately
3,100 management employees who are entitled to oenefits under
pre-existing separation pay plans. During 1997 and 1998, 245 and 856
management employees were separated with severance benefits.

Merger-related costs were comprised of the following amounts in
1998 and 1997:

Transition and Integration Costs
Systems modifications

Advertising

Branding
Relocation, training and other

Total Transition and integration Costs

Direct incremeontal Costs
Professional services
Compensation arrangems s
Shareownerrelated
Registration and other regulatory
Taxes and other

Totai Direct incremental Costs

Employes Severance Costs
Total Morgerreinted Costs

We expect to incur between $100 million and $200 million
(pre-tax) in transition and integration costs over the next 12 1o 18
months to complete our transition efforts. You can find additional
information on merger-related costs in Note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements,

| Retiroment incentive Costs |

In 1993, we announced a restructuring plan which included an
accrual of approximately $1.1 billion (pre-tax) for severance and
postretirement medical benefits under an involuntary force reduc-
tion plan. Beginning in 1994, retirement incentives have been
offered under a voluntary program as a means of implementing
substantially all of the work force reductions planned in 1993.

Since the inception of the retirement incentive program, we record-
ed additional costs totaling approximately $3.0 billion {pre-tax)
through December 31, 1998. These additional costs and the corre-
sponding number of employees accepting the retirement incentive
offer for each year ended December 31 are as follows:

(DOLARE & WeLL0NS )

Empioyess

7.209
4,759
2.996
4311
7.299
26,574

The additional costs are comprised of special termination pension
and postretirement benefit amounts, as well as employee costs for
other items. These costs have been reduced by severance and postre-
tirement medical benefit reserves established in 1993 and trans-
ferred to the pension and postretirement benefit liabilities as
employees accepted the retirement incentive offer. The remaining
severance and postretirement medical reserve balances totaled $93
million at December 31, 1997 and were fully utilized at December
31, 1998. The retirement incentive program covering management
employees ended on March 31, 1997 and the program covering asso-
ciate employees was completed in September 1998. You can find
additional information on retirement incentive costs in Note 15 to
the consolidated financial statements.

| other Charges anc =pecial toms

YEAR 1998

During 1998, we recorded other charges and special items totaling
$589 million in connection with the write-down of Asian invest-
ments and obsolete or impaired assets, and for other special items
arising during the year. The remaining liability associated with these
charges was $8 million at December 31, 1998. These charges are
comprised of the following significant items.

ASIAN INVESTMENTS

In the third quarter of 1998, we recorded pre-tax charges of $485
million to adjust the carrying values of two Asian investments —
TelecomAsia, a wireline investment in Thailand, and Excelcomindo,
a wireless investment in Indonesia. We account for these invest-
ments under the cost method.




The charges were necessary because we determined that the decline
in the estimated fair values of cach of these investments was other
than temporary. We determined the fair values of these investments
by discounting estimated future cash flows.

In the case of TelecomAsia, we recorded a charge of $348 million to
adjust the carrying value of the investment to its estimated fair value.
We considered the following factors in determining this charge:

* The continued weakness of the Thai currency as compared to
historical exchange rates will place additional financial burdens
on the company in servicing U.S. dollar-denominated debt.

* The economic instability and prospects for an extended recovery
period have resulted in weaker than expected growth in
TelecomAsia's business. This is indicated by slower than expected
growth in total subscribers and usage. These factors resulted in
reduced cxpectations of future cash flows and, accordingly, a
reduction in the value of our investment.

* The business plan for TelecomAsia contemplated cash flows from
several lines of business. Given TelecomAsia's inclination to focus
on its core wireline business, these other lines of business may not
contribute future cash flows at previously expected levels.

In the case of Excelcomindo, we recorded a charge of $137 million
to adjust the carrying value of the investment to its estimated fair
value. We considered the following factors in determining this
charge:

* The continued weakness of the Indonesian currency as compared
to historical exchange rates will place additional financial burdens
on the company in servicing U.S. dollar-denominated debt. The
continuing political unrest in Indonesia has contributed to the
currency’s instability.

* The economic instability and prospects for an extended recovery
period have resulted in weaker than expected growth in Excel-
comindo’s business. One significant factor has been inflexible
tarniff regulation despite rising costs due to inflation. This and
other factors have resulted in reduced expectations of future cash
flows and, accordingly, a reduction in the value of our investment.

* Issues with cash flow are requiring Excelcomindo’s shareholders
to evaluate the future funding of the b

We will continue to monitor the political, economic and financial
aspects of our remaining investments in Thailand and Indonesia, as
well as other investments. The book value of our remaining Asian
investments was approximately $210 million at December 31, 1998
Should we determine that any further decline in the fair values of
these investments is other than temporary, the impact could be
material to our results of operations.

VIDEO-RELATED CHARGES

In 1998, we recorded pre-tax charges of $23 million primarily relat-
ed to wireline and other nonsatellite video initiatives. We made a
strategic decision in 1998 to focus our video efforts on satellite
service being offered in conjunction with DirecTV and USSB. We

communicated the decision to stop providing wirchine video services
to subscribers and offered them the opportunity to subscribe to the
satellite-based video service that we introduced in 1998, In the third
quarter of 1998, we decided to dispose of these assets by sale or
abandonment, and we conducted an impairment review under the
requirements of SFAS No. 121,"Accounting for the Impairment of
Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of” We
based our estimate on an estimate of the cash flows expected to
result from the use of the assets prior to their disposal and the net
proceeds (if any) expected to result from disposal. We are currently
providing video service exclusivelv in conjunction with our arrange-
ments with DirecTV and USSB.

WRITE-DOWN OF ASSETS AND OTHER ITEMS
Results for 1998 also included a pre-tax charge, net of minority
interest, of $42 million for the write-down of fixed assets (primarily
buildings and wireless communications equipment) and capitalized
interest associated with our Mexican wireless investment-Grupo
lusacell, S.A. de C.V. (lusacell). These assets relate 1o lusacell’s trial
of fixed wireless service provided over the 450 MHz frequency.
While continuing this trial, lusacell is considering whether or not to
pursue its rights to acquire 450 MHz licenses for other areas. lusacell
believes that the capability of the CDMA technology and the success
it has had with its deployment indicate that impairment exists with
respect to assets related to the 450 MHz technology. lusacell 1s
currently providing service over the 450 MHz spectrum and has
concluded that the carrying amount of these assets exceeds the sum
of the estimated future cash flows associated with the assets. We
recognized an impairment loss under the provisions of SFAS No.
121. It is currently anticipated that the 450 assets will remain in
service until at least the third quarter of 1999, at which point a deci-
sion on overal! strategy will be made. We account for our lusacell
investment as a fully consolidated subsidiary.

Other items arising in 1998 included charges totaling $39 mullion
principally associated with the settlement of labor contracts in

August 1998,

YEAR 1997

During 1997, we recorded other charges and special items totaling
$1,041 million in connection with consolidating operations and
combining organizations, and for other special items ansing during
the year. You can find additional detail about these accrued liabilities
in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

VIDEU-RELATED CHARGES

In 1997, we recognized total pre-tax charges of $243 million related
to certain video investments and operations. We determined that we
would no longer pursue a multichannel, multipoint, distnibution
system (MMDS) as part of our video strategy. As a result, we recog-
nized liabilities for purchase commitments associated with the
MMDS technology and costs associated with closing the operations
of our Tele-TV partnership because this operation no longer
supports our video strategy. We also wrote-down our remaining
investment in CAl Wireless Systems, Inc.
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WRITE-DOWN OF ASSETS AND REAL ESTATE CONSOLIDATION

In the third quarter of 1997, we recorded pre-tax charges of $355
million for the write-down of obsolete or impaired fixed assets and
for the cost of consolidating redundant real estate propertics. As part
of our merger integration planning, we reviewed the carrying values
of long-lived assets. This review included estimating remaining useful
lives and cash flows and identifying assets to be abandoned. In the
case of impaired assets, we analyzed cash flows related to those assets
to determine the amount of the impairment. As a result of these
reviews, we recorded charges of $275 million for the write-off of some
assets and $25 million for the impairment of other assets. These assets
primarily included computers and other equipment used to transport
data for internal purposes, copper wire used to provide telecommuni-
cations service in New York, and duplicate voice mail platforms. None
of these assets are being held for dispesal. At December 31, 1998, the
impaired assets had no remaining carrying value

In connection with our merger integration efforts, we consolidated
real estate properties to achieve a reduction in the total square
footage of building space that we utilize. We sold properties,
subleased some of our leased facilities and terminated other leases,
for which we recorded a charge of $55 million in the third quarter of
1997. Most of the charge related to properties in Pennsylvania and
New York, where corporate support functions were consolidated
into fewer work locations.

REGULATORY, TAX AND LEGAL CONTINGENCIES AND OTWER SPECIAL ITEMS
In 1997, we also recorded reductions to operating revenues and
charges 1o vperating expenses totaling $526 million (pre-tax), which
consisted of the followiny items:

* Revenue reductions consisted of $179 million for federal regula
tory matters. These matters relate to specific issues that are
currently under investigation by federal regulatory commissions
We believe that it « probable that the ultimate resolution of these
pending matters will result in refunds to our customers

* Charges to operating expenses totaled $347 million and consisted
of $75 million for interest on federal and other tax contingencies;
$55 million for other tax matters; and $52 million for legal contin-
gencies and a state regulatory audit issue. These contingencies
were accounted for under the rules of SFAS No. 5, "Accounting for
Contingencies.” These charges also included $95 million related to
costs incurred in standardizing and consolidating our directory
businesses and $70 million for other post-merger initiatives

Other charges arising in 1997 included $59 million for our equity
share of formation costs previously announced by Cable & Wireless
Communications plc (CWC). We own an 18.5% interest in CWC and
account for our investment under the equity method of accounting

In 1997, we recognized pre-tax gains of $142 mullion on the sales of
our ownership interests of several nonstrategic businesses. These
gains included $42 million on the sale of our interest in Sky
Network Television Limited of New Zealand (SkyTV); $54 million
on the sale of our 33% siake in an Italian wireline venture,
Infostrada; and $46 million on the sale of our two-sevenths interest
in Bell Communications Research, Inc. (Bellcore)

YEAR 1996
In 1996, we recorded other charges and special items totaling $315
million, consisting of $334 million in connection with regulatory and
legal contingencies and for costs associated with asset and investment
dispositions and $41 million for actuanally determined costs of a
benefit plan amendment. These charges were partially offset by a net
gain of $60 million on the sale of a nonstrategic investment.

Effective January 1, 1996, we changed our method of accounting for
directory publishing revenues and expenses. We adopted the
point-of-publication method, meaning that we now recognize direc-
tory revenues and expenses upon publication rather than over the
lives of the directories. We recorded an after-tax increase in income
of $273 million, representing the cumulative effect of this change in
accounting principle

Segmental Results of Operations

We have four reportable segments, which we operate and manage as
strategic business units and we organize by products and services.
Our segments are Domestic Telecom, Giobal Wireless, Directory and
Other Businesses. You can find additional information about our
segments in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements

We measure and evaluate our reportable segments based on adjust-
ed net income, which excludes undistributed corporate expenses
and special items ansing during cach peniod. Special items are trans-
actions that management has excluded from the business units’
results, but has included in reported consolidated carnings. We
previously described these special items in the Overview section.
The effect of these 4

net income s provided

1al items on cach of the segment’s reported
n the following table

TEARS EnOED DECEmSES 31 1998 1997 1996
Reported net income $ 2383 $ 2016 $ 2413
Special tems 790 917 R (1 ;
Aduusted net income $ 3173 $ 2993 $ 2,790
Global Wireless

Reported net income s 50 $ 113 $ 73
Special items 178 (18) S
Adgusted net income $ 228 $ 95 $ 80
Directory

Reported net mcome s 662 s 564 s 855
Special tems o T T 93 |>2_72-)_‘
Adusted net income $ 684 $ 657 $ 585
Othver Businesses

Reported net income $ @3 s 28 $ s7
Speciai tems 2 i 20 (45)]
Adusted net income $ 135 $ a8 $ 12
Reconc fag Nems

Reported net ncome $ 10 $ (266 $ 4
Soecial tems B URCONE - Te
Adusted net income $ 103 $ 54 $ 7

Reconciling tems consst of corporate operations and ntersegment chiminations.
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Domestic Telecom

Our Domestic Telecom segment consists primarily of our nine oper-
ating telephone subsidiaries that provide local telephone services from
Maine to Virginia including voice and data transport, enhanced and
custom calling features, network access, directory assistance, private
lines and public telephones. This segment also provides customer
premises equipment distribution, systems integration, billing and
collections, and Internet access services. Domestic Telecom represents
the aggregation of our domestic wireline business units (consumer,
enterprise, general, and network services), which focus on specific
markets to increase revenues and customer satisfaction.

VIARY (NCHD CECTMNS 31

$ 12627

Growth in local services revenues of $626 million or 4.7% in 1998
and $629 million or 5.0% in 1997 was primanily due to hagher usage
of our network facilities. This growth was generated, in part. by an
increase in access lines in service of 4.3% in 1998 and 3.7% in 1997
Access line growth primanily reflects higher demand for Centrex
services and an increase in additional residential lines. Higher
revenues from private line and switched data services also
contributed to the revenue growth in both vears

Our local services revenues were boosted in both 1998 and 1997 by
increased customer demand and usage of our value-added services
and the implementation of new charges to carniers resulting from

pay phone deregulation in Apnil 1997

In 1998, revenue growth from these factors was partially offset by price
reductions on certain local services and the climination of Touch-Tone
service charges by several of our operating telephone subsidianes.

You can find additional information on the Telecommunications Act
of 1996 (1996 Act) and its impact on the local exchange market

Network access services 7.340 7.247 under “Other Factors That May Affect Future Results.”
Long distance services 1.929 2190 2374
Ancillary serwces . 2.090 2023 1888
25557 24809  2413% Avorn ok by Seegny
Opacating £ iposes ~ [y
Employee costs 7.298 7 7679 S
Depreciation and amortizaton 5195 4990 4911
Other cperstrg expenses 7047 6696 6262 Benserce e
19540 19122 18,852 en

Cperating income s 6017 § 5687 § 5284
Income (Loes) From 41 6 manes

Uncomsciidatod Businessss § 27 14) § T2
Adqueted Net income $ 3373 §$ 2993 § 2,790

OPERATING REVENUES

LOCAL SERVICES

Local services revenues are earned by our operating telephone
subsidiaries from the provision of local exchange, local private line,
public telephone (pay phone) and value-added services
Value-added services are a family of services, which expand the
utilization of the network. These services include products such as
Caller ID, Call Waiting and Return Call.

19988 Domestic Teiocom Rever-: Compoments

Long Drstance

_Anciery

2 T b
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0%
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NETWOAK ACCESS SERVICES
Network access services revenues are carned from end-user
subscribers and long distance and other competing carriers who use
r local exchange facilities to provide usage services to their
customers. Switched access revenues are derived from fixed and
usage-based charges paid by carniers for access 1o our local network.
Special access revenues onginate from carniers and end-users that
buy dedicated local exchange capacity to support their private
networks. End-user access revenues are earned from our customers
and resellers who purchase retail dial-tone services

Our network access services revenues grew $316 mulbon or 4.3% in
1998 and $93 million or 1.3% in 1997. This growth wus mainly attrib-
utable to higher customer demand, as reflected by growth in access
minutes of use of 7.8% in 1998 and 7.3% in 1997 Volume growth also
reflects a continuing expansion of the business market, particularly
for high-capacity services. In 1998, we saw an increasing demand for
special access services as a result of a greater utilization of the network
by Internet service providers and other high-capacity users. Higher
network usage by alternative providers of intral ATA toll services and
higher end-user revenues attnbutable to an increase i access lines in
service also contributed to revenue growth in both years. Volume-
related growth was partially offset in both years by net price reduc-
tions mandated by federal and state price cap and incentive plans.
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Access Minutes of Use
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The Federal Communications Commission (FCC) regulates the
rates that we charge long distance carriers and end-user subscribers
for interstate access services. We are required to file new access rates
with the FCC cach vear, under the rules of the Price Cap Plan. We
implemented price decreases for interstate access services of approx-
imately $63 million on an annual basis for the period July 1996
through June 1997 and approximately $430 million on an annual
basis for the period July 1997 through June 1998,

In July 1998, we implemented price decreases of approximatcly $175
million on an annual basis. The rates include amounts necessary to
recover our operating telephone subsidiaries’ contribution to the
FCC's universal service fund. The FCC has created a multi-billion
dollar interstate fund to link schools and libraries to the Internet
and to subsidize low-income consumers and rural healthcare
providers. Under the FCC's rules, all providers of interstate telecom-
munications services must contribute to the fund. The subsidiaries’
contributions to .he universal service fund are included in Other
Operating Expenses.

Beginning in the third quarter of 1998, access charges on intrastate
toll calls in New York were reduced by $94 million annually due to a
New York State Public Service Commission order. This reduction is,
in part, an acceleration of access revenue reductions expected under
the New York Performance Regulation Plan and, in addition, will be
partially offset by increased revenues from the federal universal
service fund. In January 1999, rates were further reduced by approxi-
mately $18 million on an annual basis to reflect lower required contri-
butions to the FCC's universal service fund. The rates included in our
July 1998 and January 1999 filings will be in effect through June 1999.

You can find additional information on FCC rulemakings concerning
price caps, access charges and universal service under “Other Factors
That May Affect Future Results-Recent Developments-FCC”

LONG DISTANCE SERVICES

Long distance services revenues are earned primarily from calls
made outside a custom: s local calling area, but within the same
service area of our operating telephone subsidiaries (intralATA
toll). Other long distance services that we provide include 800
services, Wide Area Telephone Service (WATS), corridor services
and long distance services outside of our region.

Declines in long distance services revenues of $261 million or 11.9%
in 1998 and $184 million or 7.8% in 1997 were caused by two
factors. First, we implemented presubscription for intralLATA toll
services during 1997 in most states throughout the region. In these

7

states, customers may now use an alternative provider of their
choice for intralATA toll calls without dialing a special access code
when placing a call. The relative effect of presubscription on long
distance revenues was lower in the second half of 1998, as a result of
presubscription being available in most of our states for more than
one year. The adverse impact on long distance services revenues as a
result of presubscription was partially mitigated by increased
network access services revenues for usage of our network by these
alternative providers. Second, we implemented customer win-back
and retention initiatives that included toll calling discount packages
and product bundling offers. These revenue reductions were partial-
ly offset by higher calling volumes generated by an increase in access
lines in service.

Our operating telephone subsidiaries in Maryland and Virginia expect
to offer presubscription no later than coincident with our offering of
interLATA long distance services in those states, or earlier if so
ordered by state or federal regulators. Our operating telephone
subsidiary in Massachusetts expects to offer presubscription in April
1999. We believe that competition for long distance services, including
competitive pricing and customer selection of alternative providers of
intraLATA and interLATA toll services in the states currently offering
presubscription, will continue to affect revenue trends. You can find
additional information on presubscription under “Other Factors That
May Affect Future Results-Competition-IntralLATA Toll Services.”

ANCILLARY SERVICES

Our ancillary services include such services as billing and collections
for long distance carriers, systems integration, voice messaging,
Internet access, customer premises equipment and wiring and main-
tenance services.

Revenues from ancillary services grew $67 million or 3.3% in 1998
and $135 million or 7.2% in 1997 due principally to new contracts
with business customers for systems integration services and higher
demand for voice messaging, billing and collections and Internet
access services. Revenues earned from our customer premises
services declined in 1998, while in 1997 revenues from these services
grew over the prior year.

OPERATING EXPENSES

EMPLOYEE COSTS

Employee costs, which consist of salaries, wages and other employee
compensation, employee benefits and payroll taxes, declined in 1998
by $138 million or 1.9% and in 1997 by $243 million or 3.2%. These
reductions were largely attributable to lower pension and benefit
costs in both years. A number of factors contributed to these cost
reductions, including favorable pension plan investment returns,
lower than expected retiree medical claims, and plan amendments
including the conversion of a pension plan to a cash balance plan.
Effective January 1, 1998, we established common pension and
savings plan benefit provisions for all management employees. As a
result, all former NYNEX management employees receive the same
benefit levels as previously given under Bell Atlantic management
benefit plans. This change included the conversion of the NYNEX
management pension plan to a cash balance plan.




Other items contributing to the decreases, but to a lesser extent,
were lower work force levels in 1998 and lower overtime pay for
repair and maintenance activity in 1997,

These cost reductions were partially offset by salary and wage
increases in both years. In 1998, we executed new contracts with
unions representing associate employees. The new contracts provide
for wage and pension increases and other benefit improvements as
described below:

* The wages, pension and other benefits for our associate employees
are negotiated with unions. During 1998, we entered into new 2-
year contracts with the Communications Workers of America
(CWA), representing more than 73,000 associate workers and with
the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers (IBEW),
representing approximately 13,000 associate workers in New York
and the New England states. These contracts, which expire in
August 2000, provide for wage increases of up to 3.8 percent effec-
tive August 1998, and up to 4 percent effective August 1999. Over
the course of this two-year contract period, pension increases will
range from 11 percent to 20 percent. The contracts also include
cash payments, working condition improvements, and continua-
tion of certain employment security provisions

We also entered into a two-year extension of contracts with the
IBEW, representing approximately 9,000 associate members in
New Jersey and Pennsylvania. These contracts, which expire in
August 2002, provide for wage increases of 4.8 percent in April
1999, 3 percent in May 2000, and 3 percent in May 2001. Pensions
will increase by a total of 11 percent for the years 1999-2001, and
there will be improvements in a variety of other benefits and
working conditions.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

Depreciation and amortization expense increased $205 million or
4.1% in 1998 and $79 million or 1.6% in 1997 prncipally due to
growth in depreciable telephone plant and changes in the mix of
plant assets. Depreciable telephone plant increased in 1998 by 2.8%,
compared to 1.8% in 1997 principally as a result of increased capital
expenditures to support the expansion of our network. These
expense increases were partially offset by the effect of lower rates of

depreciation.

OTNER OPERATING EXPENSES

The rise in other operating expenses of $351 million or 5.2% in
1998 and $434 million or 6.9% in 1997 was due to higher costs at
our operating telephone subsidiaries. These increases were primarily
attributable to higher interconnection payments to competitive local
exchange and other carriers to terminate calls on their networks of
approximately $175 million in 1998 and $55 million in 1997, and
additional Year 2000 readiness costs of approximately $70 mullion in
1998 and $20 million in 1997.

The higher payments for termination of calls to competitive carriers’
networks were the result of state regulatory decisions requiring us to
pay “reaprocal compensation” for the large volume of one-way traffic
from our customers to customers of other carriers, primarily calls to
Internet service providers. On February 26, 1999, the FCC confirmed
that such traffic is interstate and interexchange in nature and not
subject to the reciprocal compensation requirements of the 1996 Act.
Because previous state commussion decisions were based upon a view
that Internet access calls are “local™ rather than interstate and interex-
change, we have asked the state commissions to revisit their prior
interpretations. Unless state regulators follow the FCC's decision,
these reciprocal compensation payments are expected to grow to
approximately $350 milhon in 1999

We also recognized additional costs in 1998 as a result of our contrni-
bution to the federal universal service fund, as described carlier in
the discussion of “Network Access Services Revenues.” Costs associ-
ated with opening our network to competitors, including local
nuniber portability, declined by $85 million in 1998, compared to an
increase of $165 million in 1997, Other operating expenses were also
affected in both ye irs, but 1o a lesser extent, by higher material
purchases to support the network. Higher marketing and advertising
costs also contributed to the expense increase in 1997

The cost increase in 1998 was partially offset by lower taxes other
than income due to the effect of a change in New Jersey state tax law.
This state tax law change, which became effective January 1, 1998,
repealed the gross receipts tax for our operating telephone subsidiary
in New Jersey and replaced it with a net income-based tax.

INCOME (LOSS) FROM UNCONLOLIDATED BUSINESSES

The change in income (loss) from unconsolidated businesses in
both years was primarily due to the effect of the disposition of our
video operations in the third quarters of 1998 and 1997.
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Our Global Wireless segment consists of our wireless telecommuni-
cations services to customers in 24 states in the United States and
foreign wireless investments servicing customers in Latin America,
Europe and the Pacific Rim
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Other operating expenses 1,942 1.742 _1.465

3082 2,713 2,163

Opersting income $ 716 $§ 634 $ 521
Loss from Unconsolidatod

Banxwoases $ (96 $ (196 $ (141

Adjssted Mot Income $ 228 $ 95 $ 80

In the first quarter of 997, we consummated a restructuring of our
investment in lusacel:, a Mexican wireless company, to permit us to
assume control of the Board of Directors and management of
lusacell. As a result of the restructuring, we changed the accounting
for our lusacell investment from the equity method to full consoli-
dation in the first quarter of 1997, You can find more information
about lusacell in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements

OPERATING REVENUES

Revenues earned from our consolidated wireless businesses grew
$451 million or 13.5% in 1998 and $663 million or 24.7% in 1997
This revenue growth was largely attnbutable to our domestic cellu-
lar subsidiary, Bell Atlantic Mobile, which contributed $383 million
to revenue growth in 1998 and $448 million to revenue growth in
1997. This growth was principally due to more customers and
increased usage of our domestic wireless services. Our domestic
cellular customer base grew 15.8% in 1998 and 21.4% in 1997
Volume-related revenue growth in both years was partially offset by
the effect of competitive pricing factors. Total revenue per
subscriber by our domestic cellular operations was $50.84 in 1998,
$53.15in 1997 and $57.83 1 1996,
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Higher revenues of $63 million from lusacell also contributed to
revenue growth in 1998. The consolidation of lusacell contributed
$228 million 1o wireless services revenues in 1997

OPERATING EXPENSES

EMPLOYEE COSTS

Employee costs at our wireless subsidiaries increased by $58 million
or 11.8% in 1998 and $95 million or 24.1% in 1997 principally as a
result of higher work force levels. The number of employees at Bell
Atlantic Mobile grew by approximately 500 or 7.0 % in 1998 and by
760 or 11.7% in 1997. The effect of consolidating lusacell also
contributed $39 million to the expense increase in 1997,

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION
Depreciation and amortization expense increased by $111 million or
23.1% in 1998 and $178 million or 58.7% in 1997. These increases
were mainly attributable to growth in depreciable domestic cellular
plant. The effect of consolidating lusacell also contributed $44
million to the expense increase in 1997,

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Other operating expenses increased by $200 million or 11.5% in
1998 and $277 million or 18.9% in 1997 principally due to increased
service costs at Bell Atlantic Mobile, including higher roaming
payments to wireless carriers and additional cost of equipment.
Higher marketing and advertising costs also contributed to the rise
in other operating expenses in both years. lusacell’s operating costs
increased by $58 million in 1998 as a result of higher service costs
and the effect of consohidating lusacell added $180 million to other
operating expenses in 1997

Bedl Atlantic Mobile Monthty Cash Expense per Subscriber
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LOSS FROM UNCONSOLIDATED BUSINESSES

The change in loss from unconsolidated businesses in 1998 of $100
million was principally due to improved operating results from our
investments in Omnitel Pronto Italia S.p.A. (Omnitel), an interna-
tional w.reless investment, and PrimeCo Personal Communications,
L.P. (PrimeCo), a personal communications services (PCS) joint
venture.

In 1997, higher equity losses from unconsolidated businesses of $55
million were primarily attnibutable to our PrimeCo investment. In
November 1996, PrimeCo launched commercial service in 16 major
cities throughout the country, expanding its PCS service to over 30
cities by the end of 1998, Results for 1997 were positively affected by
the consolidation of lusacell and improved operating results from
Omnitel.
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Capital expenditures continued to be our primary use of capital
resources. The majority of the capital expenditures were to support
our Domestic Telecom business in order 1o facilitate the introduc-
tion of new products and services, enhance responsiveness to
competitive challenges, and increase the operating efficiency and
productivity of the network. We invested approximately $6.4 billion
in 1998, $5.5 billion in 1997 and $4.9 billion in 1996 in our
Domestic Telecom business. We also invested in our Wireless,
Directory and Other Businesses approximately $1.0 billion in 1998,
$1.1 billion in 1997 and $1.5 billion in 1996, We expect capital
expenditures in 1999 to total approximately $8.1 billion, including
approximately $7.3 billion to be invested in our Domestic Telecom
business. Ths estimate includes approximately $500 million related
to the implementation of the new accounting standard on costs of
computer software, Statement of Position (SOP) No. 98-1,
“Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or
Obtained for Internal Use.” You can find additional information on
SOP No. 98-1 under "Other Matters—-Recent Accounting
Pronouncements-Costs of Computer Software.”

Capitai E3penditures
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We continue to make substantial investments in our unconsolidated
businesses. During 1998, we invested $603 million, which included a
cash payment of $162 million to increase our ownership interest in
Omnitel from 17.45% to 19.71%. In 1998, we also invested $301
million in PrimeCo to fund the build-out and operations of its PCS
network and $140 million in our lease financing businesses. In 1997,
cash investing activities in unconsolidated businesses totaled $833
million and included $426 million in PrimeCo. $138 million in
FLAG and $269 million in leasing and other parmerships. During
1996, we invested $257
Omnitel, primarily to increase our ownership interest, $224 mullion
in other international telecommunications investments and $273
million in leasing and other partnerships.

million in PrimeCo, $315 million n

QOur short-term investments include principally cash equivalents
held in trust accounts for the payment of certain employee benefits.
We invested $1,028 million in 1998, $544 million in 1997 and $418
million in 1996 principally to pre-fund vacation pay and associate
health and welfare benefits. In 1998 and 1997, we increased our pre-
funding to cover employees of the former NYNEX companier.
Proceeds from the sales of all short-term investments were $968
million in 1998, $427 million in 1997 and $133 million in 1996.

In 1998, we received cash proceeds of $637 million in connection
with the disposition of investments. These proceeds included $564
million associated with Viacom’s repurchase of one-half of our
investment in Viacom In<. (Viacom) and $73 million from the sales
of our paging and other nonstrategic businesses. In 1997, we
disposed of our real estate properties and our interests in Bellkcore,
Infostrada, Sky TV and other joint ventures and received cash
proceeds totaling $347 miilion. In 1996, we received cash proceeds
of approximately $128 million from the sales of nonstrategic busi-
nesses. We invested $62 million in cach of 1998 and 1997 10
purchase cellular properties

During 1997, we received cash proceeds of $153 million from the
TONZ share repurchase plan, which was completed in December
1997

| Coet Flows Used in Financing Activities |

\s in prior years, dividend pavments were a significant use of capital
resources. We determine the appropriateness of the level of our divi-
iend payments on a periodic basis by considering such factors as
ong-term growth opportunities, internal cash requirements, and
the expectations of our sharcowners. In September 1998, we
announced a quarterly cash dividend of $.385 per share. For 1998,
casn dividends declared totaled $1.54 per share. We declared cash
dividends of $.37 per share in the first and second quarters of 1997
and $.385 per share in the second half of 1997, or $1.51 per share for
the vear. In 1996, cash dividends were $.36 per share cach quarter, or
$1.44 per share for the vear. Cash dividends declared in 1996 includ-
ed a payment of $.0025 per share for redemption of all rights grant-
ed under our Sharcholder Rights Plan.

We increased our total debt (including capital lease obligations) by
$1,026 mullion from December 31, 1997 to fund the increase in our
Domestic Telecom capital investment program, for higher purchases
of shares to fund employee + «k option exercises, and for continued
investments in PrimeCo and Omnitel. Our debt level also increased
by $1,438 million from 1996 to 1997 principally due to an increase
in telephone plant construction, new investments in PrimeCo and
other wireless subsidiaries, and the consolidation of our lusacell
investment. Additional pre-funding of emplovee trusts as a result of
covering emplovees of the former NYNEX companies also
contributed to the increase in the 1998 and 1997 debt levels

Dividends
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In February 1998, our wholly owned subsidiary, Bell Atlantic

Financial Services, Inc. (FSI), 1ssued $2,455 million of 5.75% senior
exchangeable notes due on Apnl 1, 2003 that are exchangeable into
ordinary shares of TUNZ stock that we own (TONZ exchangeable
notes). In August 1998, FSI also issued $3,180 million of 4.25%
senior exchangeable notes due on September 15, 2005 that are
exchangeable into ordinary shares of CWC stock that we own (CW(
exchangeable notes). Proceeds of both offerings were used for the
repayment of a portion of our short-term debt and other general
corporate purposes. In addition, two of our operating telephone
subsidianies refinanced debentures totaling $721 million and lusacell
issued $100 milbon in debt

Dett Ratio
SN 80 4% 1
As of December 31, 15 8, we had in excess of $4.5 billion of unused
bank lines of credit and $299.5 million in bank borrowings outstand-
ing. As of December 31, 1998, our operating telephone subsidianies
and financing subsidiaries had shelf registrations for the issuance of
up to $2.8 bilhon of unsecured debt securities. The debt securnities of

those subsidiaries continue to be accorded high ratings by primary
rating agencies. After the announcement of the Bell Atlantic - GTE

merger, the rating agencies placed the ratings of certain of our
subsidiaries under review for potential downgrade. In a subsequent
and unrelated event, Moody's Investor Services changed its method-
ology for rating diversified U.S. Telecommunications Companies. As
a result, the debt ratings of four of our operating telephone
subsidiarics were downgraded and one operating telephone
subsidiary was upgraded to reflect this new rating methodology

In 1998, we established a $2.0 billion Euro Medium Term Note
Program, under which we may issue notes that are not registered
with the Securities and Exchange Commission. The notes will be
issued from time to time from our subsidiary, Bell Atlantic Global
Funding, Inc. (BAGF), and " vill have the benefit of a support agree-
ment between BAGF and Bell Atlantic. There have been no notes
issued under this program

In December 1998, we accepted an offer from Viacom to repurchase
one-half of our investment in Viacom, or 12 million shares of their
preferred stock (with a book value of approximately $600 million),
for approximately $564 million in cash. This transaction resulted in a
small loss in the fourth quarter of 1998. The cash proceeds, together
with additional cash, were used to purchase an outside party’s interest
in one of our fully consolidated subsidiaries. Ths transaction reduced
Minority Interest by $600 milhion and included certain stock appreci-
ation rights and costs totaling $32 million. Our remaining investment

in Viacom, 12 million shares of their preferred stock (with a book
value of approximately $600 milon), was repurchased by Viacom in
a second transaction in January 1999 for approximately $612 million
in cash. This transaction did not have a matenal effect on our consoli-
dated results of operations. You can find additional information on
our Viacom investment in Notes 3 and 10 to the consolidated finan-
cal statements

In December 1998, Bell Atlantic Mobile announced an agreement
with Crown Castie International Corporation to form a joint venture
into which Bell Atlantic Mobile, together with certain partnerships in
which it is the managing partner (the managed entities), will
contribute (assuming the participation of all managed entities)
approximately 1,400 network cellular towers in exchange for approx-
imately $380 million in cash and an equity interest of approximately
37.7% in the joint venture. BAM and the managed entities will lease
back a portion of the network towers and the joint venture will lease
the remaining space to third parties. The joint venture also plans to
build new towers. This financing transaction is expected to close in
the first quarter of 1999, assuming the satisfaction of certain condi-
tions of closing

We are exposed 1o various types of market risk in the normal course
of our business, including the impact of interest rate changes,
foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations, changes in equity
investment prices and changes in corporate tax rates. We employ
risk management strategics using a variety of derivatives including
interest rate swap agreements, interest rate caps and floors, foreign
currency forwards and options and basis swap agreements. We do
not hold derivatives for trading purposes.

It 1s our policy to enter into interest rate, foreign currency and other
derivative transactions only to the extent necessary to achieve our
desired objectives in limiting our exposures to the various market
risks. Our objectives include maintaining a mix of fixed and vanable
rate debt to lower borrowing costs within reasonable risk parame-
ters, hedging the value of certain international investments, and
protecting against earnings and cash flow volatility resulting from
changes in foreign exchange rates. We do not hedge our market risk
exposure in a manner that would completely eliminate the effect of
changes in interest rates, equity prices and foreign exchange rates on
our earnings. While we do not expect that our iquidity and cash
flows will be materially affected by these risk management strategies,
our net income may be materially affected by certain market risk
associated with the TONZ and CWC exchangeable notes




annual capital synergies of approximately $500 million through
volume purchasing and the elimination of certain capital costs
associated with building a data network in our current territory.

We are targeting revenue growth of 8-10% and carnings per share
growth of 13-15% (excluding merger-related charges) in each of the
first two years following the completion of the merger. By the third
year after the completion of the merger, we are targeting revenue
growth in excess of 10% and earnings per share growth in excess of
15% (excluding merger-related charges).

As a result of the merger, the combined company will incur direct
incremental and transition costs currently estimated at $1.6 billion
to $2.0 billion (pre-tax) in connection with completing the transac-
tion and integrating the operations of Bell Atlantic and GTE. These
costs consist principally of systems modification costs, costs associ
ated with the elimination and consolidation of duplicate facilities,
employee severance and relocation resulting from the merger,
branding, compensation arrangements, and professional and regis-
tration fees. While the exact timing, nature and amount of these
costs is subject to change, we anticipate that the combined company
will record a charge of approximately $375 million (pre-tax) for
direct incremental costs in the quarter in which the merger is
completed. Transition costs of approximately $1.2 billion to $1.6
billion (pre-tax) will be incurred over the three years following
completion of the merger.

B

The telecommunications industry is undergoing substantial changes
as a result of the 1996 Act, other public policy changes and technolog

ical advances. These changes are bringing increased competitive pres-
sures in our current businesses, but will also op 1 new markets to us

[mmw

The 1996 Act became law on February 8, 1996 and replaced the
Modification of Final judgmen. (MF]). In general, the 1996 Act
includes provisions that open local exchange markets to competition
and permit Bell Operating Companies (BOCs) or their affiliates,
including ours, to provide long distance services and to engage in
manufacturing previously prohibited by the MFL Under the 1996
Act, our ability to provide in-region long distance service is largely
dependent on satisfying certain conditions. "he requirements
include a 14-point “competitive checklist”™ of steps we must take
which will help competitors offer local service through resale, the
purchase of unbundled network clements or through their own
networks. We must also demonstrate to the FCC that our entry into
the in-region long distance market would be in the public interest.

The U. S. Court of Appeals rejected a constitutional challenge 1o
these provisions, and the Supreme Court recently declined to review
that decision. During the period that the case was pending, we
continued to work through the regulatory process at both the state
and federal levels in order to be in 2 position to demonstrite
compliance with the challenged provisions.

The U. S. Supreme Court recently reversed a U.S. Court of Appeals
decision that had invalidated certain aspects of the FCC rules imple-
menting provisions of the 1996 Act. In particular, the Supreme
Court reinstated the FCC's authority to adopt rules governing the
methodology to be used by state commissions in setting prices for
local interconnection and resale arrangements, and reinstated rules
that allow competitors to choose individual terms out of negotiated
interconnection agreements, and that prohibit incumbent local tele-
phone companies from separating network elements that already are
combined in the incumbent’s own network.

The US. Supreme Court also decided that the FCC had applied the
wrong standard in determining what elements of their networks
incumbent local telephone companies are obligated to make avail-
able to competitors on an unbundled basis. Among other things, the
FCC tailed to account for the fact that some elements are available
from other sources. As a result of the decision, the FCC must
conduct a new proceeding to apply the correct standard. Pending
that proceeding, we have informally agreed to continue offering the
FCC’s previously specified list of unbundled elements. In addition, a
challenge to the substantive merits of the FCC’s pricing rules
remains pending in the U.S. Court of Appeals

In April 1998, our operating telephone subsidiary in New York filed
vith the New York State Public Service Commission a statement
sciting forth additional commitments that we will make to the FCC
in connection with our anticipated application for permission to
enter the in-region long distance market in New York. Those
commitments include terms under which we will offer combina-
tons of unbundled network clements and an unbundled network
clement platform (UNE-P) to competitors wishing to provide basic
local and ISDN-BRI service to business or residential customers. We
will offer UNE-P for basic local and ISDN-BRI service throughout
our New York operating area, but UNE-P will not be available to
competitors for other services, or for service to business customers
in those parts of New York City where there is a defined level of
local competition from two or more competitive local exchange
carners. Our commutment to offer UNE-P will be for four years in
New York City and other major urban areas and for six vears in the
rest of the state. We believe that the terms of these commitments
generally are consistent with the recent Supreme Court decision.

We expext to file in the second quarter of 1999 an application with the
FCC for permission to enter the in-region long distance market in
New York. We hope to begin offering this service in the third quarter
of 1999. Following our application for New York. we expect next to
file applications with the FCC for Pennsylvania, Massachusetts, New
Jersey, Virginia and Maryland and, subsequently, tor the remaining
states in our region. The uming of our long distance entry in each of
our 14 jurisdictions depends on the receipt of FCC approval

We are unable to predict defimtively the impact that the 1996 Act
will ultimately have on our business, results of operations or finan-
cial condition. The financial impact will depend on several factors,
including the timing, extent and success of competition in our
markets, the timing and outcome of vanous regulatory proceedings
and any appeals, and the iming, extent and success of our pursuit of
new opportunities resulting from the 1996 Act.




We anticipate that these industry changes, together with the rapid
growth, enormous size and global scope of these markets, will
attract new entrants and encourage existing competitors to broaden
their offerings. Current and potential competitors in telecommuni

cation services include long distance companies, other local tele-
phone companies, cable companies, wireless service providers,
foreign teleccommunications providers, electric utilities, Internet
service providers and other companies that offer network services
Many of these companies have a strong market presence, brand
recognition and existing customer relationships, all of which
contribute to intensifying competition and may affect our future
revenue growth. In addition, a number of major industry partici-
pants have announced mergers, acquisitions and joint ventures
which could substantially affect the development and nature of
some or all of our markets. You should also read the “Competition™
section for additional information

| Recont Deveiopments -FcC |

In 1998, the FCC continued to implement reforms to the interstate
access charge system and to implement the “universal service” and
other requirements of the 1996 Act

ACCESS CHARGES

Interstate access charges are the rates long distance carriers pay for
use and availability of our operating telephone subsidiaries’ facilities
for the origination and termination of interstate service. The FCC
required a phased restructuring of access charges, which began in
January 1998, so t! at the operating telephone subsidiaries’
nonusage-sensitive costs will be recovered from long distance carni-
ers and end-users through flat rate charges, and usage-sensitive costs
will be recovered from long distance carriers through usage-based
rates. In addition, the FCC has required that different levels of
usage-based charges for originating and for terminating interstate
traffic be established.

PRICE CAPS

Under the FCC price cap rules that apply to interstate access rates,
cach year our price cap index 1s adjusted downward by a fixed
percentage intended to reflect increases in productivity (the produc-
tivity factor) and adjusted upward by an allowance for inflation (the
GDP-PI). The current productivity factor is 6.5 percent. These
changes will be reflected in tariff changes that will be filed to take
effect on July 1, 1999

In October 1998, the FCC initiated a proceeding with respect to its
price cap rules to determine whether a change in the current
productivity factor is warranted, whether to continue its “market
based” approach of allovr ag market forces (supplemented by its
price cap rules) to determine access charge levels, and whether 10
afford additional pricing flexsbility for access services. In addition,
we have petitioned the FCC to remove our special access services
from price cap regulation on the grounds that customers of these
services have competitive alternatives available, and a challenge to0
the FCC order establishing the 6.5 percent productivity factor is
pending in the U.S. Court of Appeals. We are unable to predict the
results of these further proceedings.

UNIVERSAL SERVICE

The FCC has adopted rules implementing the “universal service”
provision of the 1996 Act. As of January 1, 1999, the rules require each
of our operating telephone subsidiaries to contnbute approximately
2% of its interstate retail revenues for high-cost and low-income
subsidies. Each of our operating telephone subsidiaries also will be
contributing a portion of its total retail revenues for schools, libraries
and not-for-profit healthcare. Our operating telephone subsidiaries
will recover these contributions through interstate charges to jong
distance carriers and end-users. Our domestic wireless subsidiary is
required to contribute to these universal service programs and will
recover the cost of its contributions from end-users.

A new federal high-cost universal service support mechanism for
nonrural carriers and an increase in the funding level for schools
and libraries are expected to become effective in 1999. The FCC
currently is considering, in conjunction with a recommendation
from a joint board of federal and state regulators, a number of issues
that could affect the size of the universal service fund for high cost
arcas and the amount of universal service costs that are assessed
against our operating telephone subsidiaries and domestic cellular
subsidiary for recovery

| Competition

INTRALATA TOLL SERVICES

Intral ATA toll calls originate and terminate within the same LATA,
but generally cover a greater distance than a local call. These services
are generally regulated by state regulatory commissions rather than
federal authorities. All of our state regulatory commissions (except
in the District of Columbia, where intralLATA toll service is not
provided) permit other carriers to offer intralATA toll services
within the state.

Until the implementation of presubscription, intraLATA toll calls
were completed by our operating telephone subsidiaries unless the
customer dialed a code to access a competing carrier.
Presubscription changes this dialing method and enables customers
to make these toll calls using another carrier without having to dial
an access code.

The 1996 Act generally prohibits, with certain exceptions, a state
from requiring presubscription until the earlier of such time as the
BOC is authorized to provide long distance services originating in
the state or three years from the effective date of the 1996 Act.

Our operating telephone subsidiary in New York fully completed
intral ATA presubscription implementation by September 1996, By
December 1997, our operating telephone subsidiaries in Delaware,
Maine, New Hampshire, New Jersey, Pennsylvania, Rhode Island,
Vermont and West Virginia had also implemented presubscription.
We expect 10 offer intralATA presubscription in Massachusetts in
April 1999. In Maryland and Virginia, the state commissions have
decided that intral ATA presubscription need not occur on the third
anniversary of the 1996 Act, but did not set dates for implementa-
tion. The recent Supreme Court decision reinstated the FCC's
authority to adopt rules governing intralATA presubscription, and
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the FCC has required that implementation be completed as carly as
May 1999,

Implementation of presubscription for intral ATA toll services has
had a material negative effect on mtral ATA toll service revenues in
those jurisdictions where, as noted above, presubscription has been
implemented before we are permirtted to offer long distance services.
However, the negative effect is beginning to subside now that
presubscription has been available in most of our states for more
than one year. In addition, the adverse impact on intral ATA toll
services revenues is being partially offset by increased intral ATA
network access revenues.

LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICES

Local exchange services have historically been subject to regulation
by state regulatory commissions. Applications from competitors to
provide and resell local exchange services have been approved i all
of our state jurisdictions. The 1996 Act s expected to significantly
increase the level of competition in all of our local exchange markets.

Ewro Common Curremcy

Beginning January 1, 1999, cleven European countries are partici-
pating in a multi-step process to convert their existing sovereign
currencies to the “Euro.” The process includes a transition period of
three years, during which time either the Euro or the participating
countries’ own currencies will be accepted as payment. After the
transition period, the countries will issue Euro-denominated bills
and coins and will withdraw their own currencies from arculation
no later than July 1, 2002, completing the conversion process. We
have investments in companies in ltaly and the Netherlands, which
are participating in the Euro conversion. We do not believe that the
Euro conversion will have a material effect on these investments.

| Receat Accounting Proscascem« - u j

COSTS OF COMPUTER SOFTWARE

In March 1998, the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (AICPA) issued SOP No. 98-1, “Accounting for the
Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal
Use.” This new accounting standard provides, among other things,
guidance for determining whether computer software is for internal
use and when the cost related to such software should be expensed
as incurred or capitalized and amortized. SOP No. 98-1 is required
to be applied prospectively.

We adopted SOP No. 98-1 effective January 1, 1999. We estimate that
the implementation of SOP No. 98-1 will result in a net after-tax
benefit of $200 million to $250 million in 1999 results of operations
due to the prospective capitalization of costs which were previously
expensed as incurred. Costs for maintenance and training, as well as
the cost of software that does not add functionality to the existing
system will continue to be expensed as incurred.

COSTS OF START-UP ACTIVITIES

In April 1998, the AICPA ssued SOP No. 98-5, “Reporting on the
Costs of Start-Up Activities.” This new accounting standard requares
that costs of start-up activities, including pre-operating. pre-open-
ing and other organizational costs, be expensed as incurred. In addi-
uon, the unamortized balance of any previously deferred start-up
costs existing at adoption must be expensed

We adopted SOP No. 98-5 cffective January 1, 1999. The adoption of
SOP No. 98-5 will not have a matenal effect on our results of opera-
tions or financial condition in 1999 because our policy has been to
generally expense all start-up activities.

DERIVATIVES AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS
No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Actvities.” This statement requires that all derivatives be measured at
fair value and recognized as either assets or habilities in our balan
sheet. Changes in the fair values of the dervative instruments will be
recognized in either camings or comprehensive income, depending
on the designated use and cffectiveness of the instruments. Bell
Atlantic must adopt SFAS No. 133 no later than January 1, 2000. We
are currently evaluating the provisions of SFAS No. 133 and have not
vet determined what the impact of adopting this statement will be on
our future results of operations or financial condition

| Yoar “2000" Update |

We have a comprehensive program to evaluate and address the
impact of the Year 2000 date transition on our operations. This
rogram includes steps to:

inventory and assess for Year 2000 compharce our equipment,
software and systems;

determine whether to remediate, replace or retire noncomphant
items, and establish a plan to accomplish these steps:

remediate, replace or retire the items;
test the items, where required; and

provide management with reporting and issues management to

support a scamless trasution to the Year 2000.

STATE OF READINESS

For our operating telephone subsidianies, centralized services entities
and general corporate operations, the program focuses on the follow-
ing project groups: Network Elements, Applications and Support
Systems, and Information Technology infrastructure. At this time, we
have virtually completed the inventory. assessment and detailed plan-
ning phases for these projects. Remediation/replacement/retirement
and testing activities are well underway. We plan to fix, replace or
retire those items that were not Year 2000 compliant and that require
action to avoid service impact. Our goal for these operations is to
have our network and other mission critical systems Year 2000
compliant (including testing) by June 30, 1999. We are on schedule to
achieve this goal for substantially all of our network and other
mission critical systems. What follows is a more detailed breakdown
of our efforts to date.
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® NETWORK ELEMENTS

Approximately 350 different types of network clements (such as
central office switches) appear in over one hundred thousand
instances. When combined in various ways and using network
application systems, these elements are the building blocks of
customer services and networked information transmission of all
kinds. We originally assessed approximately 70% of these element
types, representing over 90% of all deployed network elements, as
Year 2000 compliant. Late in 1998, through additional testing and
verification, we determined that certain network elements, origi-
nally represented as having no Year 2000-related service impact,
were likely to cause service issues unless remediated. As a result,
we had an increase in the overall number of network elements
requiring repair. Notwithstanding the additional work cffort, as of
February 1999, we have repaired or replaced approximately 50%
of the deployed network elements requiring remediation, and
certification testing/evaluation is well underway. We also have
made substantial progress on the remaining network elements.
Although we are generally on track to achieve our June 30, 1999
goal for network elements, it is possible that the timeframe for
compliance of a small number of network elements may extend
into July or August, without any impact on customer service or
our operations

APPLICATIONS AND ‘UPPORT SYSTEMS

Approximately :,200 application and systems support: (i) the
administration and maintenance of our network and customer
service functions (network information systems); (ii) customer
care and billing functions; and (iii) human resources, finance and
general corporate functions. We originally assessed approximately
48% of these application systems as either compliant or to be
retired. As of February 1999, we have successfully completed
certification testing/evaluation of approximately 70% of all appli-
cation systems. We also have made substantial progress on the
remaining application systems. Although we are generally on
track to achieve our June 30, 1999 goal for applications and
support systems, it is possible that the timeframe for compliance
of a small number of applications and support systems may
extend into July or August, without any impact on customer
seTvice Or our operations.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY INFRASTRUCTURE

Approximately 40 mainframe, 1,000 mid-range, and 90,000
personal computers, related network components, and software
products comprise our uiformation technology (IT) infrastruc-
ture. Of the approximately 1,350 unique types of clements in the
nventory for the IT infrastructure, we originally assessed approx-
imately 73% as compliant or to be retired. As of February 1999,
we have successfully completed certification testing/evaluation of
approximately 90% of all element types. We have made substan-
tial progress on the remaining items and we are on track to
achieve our June 30, 1999 goal.

For our other controlled or majority-owned subsidiaries, including
Bell Atlantic Mobile and our directory companies, the inventory,
assessment and planning efforts are substantially complete, and

remediation/replacement/retirement and testing activities are in
progress. Bell Atlantic Mobile, our directory companies and, in
general, all of the other controlled or majority-owned subsidiaries
are on track to achieve our June 30, 1999 goal for substantially all of
their mission critical systems. Our lusacell subsidiary has experi-
enced some delays in implementation of its Year 2000 project plan.
It is currently anticipated that required modification, replacement
and retirement of substantially all of its mission critical systeras will
be completed by September 30, 1999, with testing continuing
throughout 1999.

Our Year 2000 program also includes a project to review and reme-
diate affected systems (including those with embedded technology)
within our buildings and other facilities, a project to assure Year
2000 compliance across all of our internal business processes, and
other specific projects directed towards insuring we meet our Year
2000 objectives.

THIRD PARTY ISSUES

® VENDORS
In general, our product vendors have made available cither Year
2000-compliant versions of their offerings or new compliant
products as replacements of discontinued offerings. In some
cases, the compliance “status” of the product in question is based
on vendor-provided information, which remains subject to our
testing and verification activities. In several instances, vendors
have not met original delivery schedules, resulting in delayed test-
ing and deployment. At this ime, we do not anticipate that such
delays will have a material impact on our ability to achieve Year
2000 compliance within our desired timeframes

We are continuing Year 2000-related discussions with utilities and
similar services providers. In general, information requests to
such services providers have yielded less meaningful information
than inquiries to our product vendors, and we do not yet have
sufficient information to determine whether key utilities and
similar service providers will successfully complete the Year 2000
transition. However, we are now beginning to engage in more
productive discussions with large utilities servicing our facilities
and we are hopeful that these discussions will provide us addi-
tional assurance of Year 2000 compliance for those entities. At the
present time, we remain unable to determine the Year 2000 readi-
ness of most key utilities and similar service providers or the like-
lihood that those providers will successfully complete the Year
2000 transition. We intend to monitor critical service provider
activities, as appropriate, through the completion of their respec-
tive remediation projects.

CUSTOMERS

Our customers remain keenly interested in the progress of our
Year 2000 efforts, and we anticipate increased demand for infor-
mation, including detailed testing data and company-specific
responses. We are providing limited warranties of Year 2000
compliance for certain new teleccommunications services and other
offerings, but we do not expect any resulting warranty costs to be
material. We are also analyzing and addressing Year 2000 issues in
customer premise equipment (CPE), including CPE that we have
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sold or maintained. In general, the customer 1s responsible for
CPE. However, customers could attrnibute a Year 2000 malfunction
of their CPE, whether or not sold or maintained by us, to a failure
of our network service. We also have a separate effort to identify
and address Year 2000 issues for CPE and other equipment that we
maintain for Public Safety Answering Points (PSAPs) and are used
in connection with the provision of E-911/91! and related
services. We are presently repairing and replacing E-911/911-relat
ed CPE, as appropriate, that we maintain for various PSAPs.

® INTERCONNECTING CARRIERS
Our network operations interconnect with domestic and interna-
tional networks of other carriers. If one of these interconnecting
carriers should fail or suffer adverse impact from a Year 2000
problem, our customers could experience impairment of service.

COosTs

From the inception of our Year 2000 project through December 31,
1998, and based on the cost tracking methods we have historically
applied 1o this project, we have incurred total pre-tax expenses of
approximately $122 million (897 million of which was incurred in
1998), and we have made capital expenditures of approximately $80
million (all of which was made in 1998).

For 1999, we expect to incur total pre-tax expenses for our Year 2000
project of approximately $100 million to $200 million and ol
capital expenditures of $125 million to $175 million. These cost est
mates have been included in our earnings targets.

We have investments in various joint ventures and other interests. At
this time, we do not anticipate that the impact of any Year 2000
remediation costs that they incur will be material to our results of
operations.

RISKS

The failure to correct a matenial Year 2000 problem could cause an
interruption or failure of certain of our normal business functions or
operations, which could have 2 material adverse effect on our results
of operations, liquidity or financia! condition; however, we consider
such a likelihood remote. Due to the uncertainty inherent in other
Year 2000 issues that are ultimately bevond our control, including,
for example, the final Year 2000 readiness of our suppliers,
customers, interconnecting carriers, and joint venture and invest-
ment interests, we are unable to determine st this ume the likelihood
of a material impact on our results of operations, liquidity or finan-
cial condition, due to such Year 2000 sues. However, we are taking
appropriate prudent measures to mitigate that risk. We anticipate
that, in the event of any material interruptions or failures of our
service resulting from actual or perceved Year 2000 problems within
or beyond our control, we could be subject to third party claims.

CONTINGENCY PLANS

As a public telecommunications carrier, we have had considerable
experience successfully dealing with natural disasters and other
events requiring contingency planning and execution. As part of our
efforts to develop appropriate Year 2000 contingency plans, we are
reviewing our existing Emergency Preparedness and Disaster
Recovery plans for any necessary modifications.

We have developed, where appropriate, contingency plans for
addressing delays in remediation activities. For example, delay in the
installation of a new Year 2000 comphant system could require
remediation of the existing system. We are also developing a corpo
rate Year 2000 contingency plan to ensure that core business func-
tions and key support processes are in place for uninterrupted
processing and scrvice, in the event of external (e.g. power, public
transportation, water), internal or supply chain failures (i.e. critical
dependencies on another entity for information, data or services).
We anticipate that an initial draft of our corporate contingency plan
will be ready by the end of the first quarter of 1999.

Cautionary Statement Concerning Forward-Looking

Statements

In this Management’s Discussion and Analysis, and elsewhere in this
Annual Report, we have made forward-looking statements. These
statements are based on our estimates and assumptions and are
subject to risks and uncertainties. Forward-looking statements
include the information concerning our possible or assumed future
results of operations. Forward-looking statements also include those
preceded or followed by the words “anucipates,” “believes,” “esti-
mates,” “hopes” or similar expressions. For those statements, we claim
the protection of the safe harbor for forward-looking statements
contained in the Private Secunties Litigation Reform Act of 1995,

The following important factors, along with those discussed else-
where in this Annual Report, could affect ruture results and could
cause those results to differ materially from those expressed in the
forward-looking statements

* materially adverse changes in economic conditions in the markets
served by us or by companies in which we have substantial
investments;

* material changes in available technology:

* the final outcom« of federal, state, and local regulatory initiatives
and proceedings, including arbitration proceedings, and judicial
review of those initiatives and proceedings, pertaining to, among
other matters, the terms of interconnection, access charges, univer-
sal service, and unbundled network clement and resale rates;

* the extent, iming, success, and overall effects of competition
from others in the local telephone and toll service markets;

* the timing and profitability of our entry into the in-region long
distance market;

* the success and expense of our remediation efforts and those of
our suppliers, customers, joint ventures, noncontrolled invest-
ments, and interconnecting carriers in achieving Year 2000
compliance; and

+ the timing of, and regulatory or other conditions associated with,
the completion of the merger with GTE and our ability to
combine operations and obtain revenuc enhancements and cost
savings following the merger




Selected Financial Data

1998 1987

e I I l
Operating revenues $ 315659 $ 30,1939 $ 291552 $ 279268
Operating income 6.627.2 53415 60786 54174
Income Defore extraordinary items
and cumulative effect of changes
in accounting prinCiples
Per common share-basic
Per common share-diluted
Net income (loss)
Per common share-basic
Per common share-diluted
Cash dividends declared per common share

Financisi Position
Total assets $ 533611 50,6231
Long-term dedt 15.286.0 15,744 1
Empioyee benefit cbligations 95880 9.388 4
Minority int est, inCluding 3 portion subyect 10

redemption requirements 20142 12211
Preferred stock of sudsiiary ! 145.0 1450
Shareowners’ mvestment 12976 4 11,2136

All per share amounts have been adjusted 10 reflect 3 two-for-one stock splst on June 1, 1998

Segnificant events atfecung our hustorical carnings trends mclade the following

* 1998 and 1997 data mclude retirement incentive costs, merger-related costs and other special items (see Notes 2 and 15 and Management's Discussion
and Analyws)

1996 data include retirement incentive costs, other special items (see Note 15 and Management’s Discussion and Analysis), and the adoption of a change
in accounting for directory publishing (see Note 1)

1995 and 1994 data include retirement incentive costs (see Note 15), and an extraordinary charge for the discontinuation of regulatory accounting principles.
Cash divadends declared in 1996 include 3 pavment of $.0025 per ¢ share for redemp of all nghts granted under our Sharcholder Rights Plan.
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Opereting Revonues $
Operating Expenses
Employee costs, including benefits and taxes
Depreciation and amortization
Other operating expenses

Operating income
Income (loss) from unconsolidated businesses
Other income and (expense). net
interest expense
income before provision for iInCome tases, extraordinary item, and
cumulative effect of change in accounting prnCiple
Prowision for ncome taxes
inrome Betore Extreordirary NHom znd
Cumutative Effect of Changs In Accounting Principle
Extraordinary item
Earty extinguishment of dedt, net of tax
Cumulative effect of change in accounting prinCipie
Dwrectory publishing, net of tax
Rt tncoms
Redemption of mnorty nterest
Redemption of mvestee preferred stock
Ket rcome Avaliebic to Common Shareowvers

31.565.9

9.265.8
58702
9.802.7

249387

66272
(414 6

1217

1.335 4

49989
2.008.1

29908

(25.5)

Basic Earaings Por Common Shar:
Income Betors Extracrdinary Mem & o
Cusnutative Effect of Change in Accountin: Principle
Extraorcinary ftem
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principie
Net tncome

Weighted-average shares outstanding (in milhons)

Ditwted Earnings Pwr Common Share.
Income Befere Extraocrdingry Ham and
Cunmslative Effe-t of Change in Accounting Princlp
Extraordinary item
Cumuiative effect of change in accounting principle
Kot Incocne

Weighted-average shares-diluted (in millions)




Consolidated Balance Sheets

(DOLLARS % ML LGNS, [RCTPT PER Snalt AMOUNTS)

& pectwees 31, 1998 1997
Asseots
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2371 $ 3228
Short-term investments 7858 7206
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $593.3 and $611.9 6,559.9 6.3408
inventories 566.0 550.3
Prepaid expenses 5220 634.0
Other pEUs LY BN
SRR o I i AN
Plant, property and equipment 83,064.1 17.437.2
Less accumulated depreciation 462486 42,3978
368155 SN 35.039.4
Investments in unconsolidated businesses 4,276.0 51442
Other assets 49701 i ) 4,779.7
Total assets $ 521439 $ 53964.1
Usbiltties and Shareowners’ Investment
Current kabilities
Debt maturing within one year $ 29876 $ 63428
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 6,105.0 59664
Other A AVRORS e 1,355.0
__ 105312 & 13.664.2
Long-term debt R (L i 13,265.2
Employee benefit obligations 103842 10,004.4
Deferred credits and other liabilities
Deferred income taxes 22538 2,106.2
Unamortized investment tax credits 2218 250.7
Other . 55%0.9 7726
3.026.5 3,1295
Minority interest, including a portion subject to redemption requirements 329.7 911.2
Preferred stock of subsidiary 200.5 200.5
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 2, 3,4, 6 and 7)
Shareowners’ investme 1t
Series preferred stock ($.10 par value; none issued) - -
Common stock ($.10 par value; 1,576,246,325 shares and 1,576,052,790 shares issued) 157.6 157.6
Contributed capital 13,368.0 13,176.8
Reinvested earnings 13708 1.261.6
Accumulated other comprehensive loss s (714.2) £ (553.3)
14,1822 14,042.7
Less common stock in treasury, at cost 592.2 590.5
Less deferred compensationemployee stock ownership plans 564 .6 663.1
13,0254 12,.789.1
Total liabilities and shareowners' investment $ 551439 $ 539641




TDOLLARE M WL 0N EACEPT PEA SaRt AMOUNTE. AND Radilh N TROURANDS )

Comeman Stock
Batance at deginrung of year
Shares rssued

Empioyee plans

Shareowner plans
Common shares issued 10 SubSAhary
Shares retred
Balance at end of yeur

Common shares nsued 10 subsKha y
Issuance of Stock by sudDMdanes
Other

Batance at end of your

Ketsvestad §amags
Balance at begnning of year
Net ncome
Davidencs Seclared and redemption of stock nghts
($1.54, $1 51, ang $1.44 per shave
Shares msuec
Emgpioyee piars
Taa beneft of Svidends pasd to ESOPs
Redermption of menorty wteres!
Redemption of mvestee preferred stock
Other
Batance st end of year

Accuomdeted Other Compe shons.ve Income (Loss |
Balance &t begrnwng of yoar

Foregn currency ransiation adustment
Unreaiizec gav s Osses) on secuntes

Mrs Der 300 y

Other comgrenensive ncome (0s)
Batance ot ond of year

1

576246

1,543,360

9084
2968
18.79¢

y

1876 1574001

157.4

132163

132163

12,3758

2631
w0

2)
4890

54 |

$129764

$ 34020
2160
e
$ 18180




Consolidated Statements of-Cash Flows

Mt —r 19%8 1997
Net income s 29653 4 24549

Adgustments 10 reconcile net ncome 10 net cash provided by
ODeYBUNG actvilies

Depreciation and amortization 58702 5864 4 53790
Extraordnary flem, net of tax 255 . -
Cumulative effect of change n accounting panciple, net of taa - - 2731
Loss (ncome ) from unconsohdated Dusinesses 4146 1241 14.2)
Dwndenas recerved from unconsobdated businesses 169.4 1921 1948
Amortzation of unearmed ease Income (120.2) (110.3) (100.6)
Deterred ncome tanes, net 2642 2369 2842
Investment tax credns (28.9) 38.1) 57.3)
Other tems. net 2265 882 2741

Changes n certain assets and hadiities, net of effects from
BCQUSTION / GSpOSTON of businesses

Accounts recenabie {220.3) {139.5) (184.0)
Invenones 1105) (73.8) (116.1)
Other assets (10% 0) 652 (244 8)
Accounts payable and accrued habiities 3764 93.3) 3826
Empioyee benefit obigations 354 2 4155 2085
Other Labiities Syl |/ R R 1 12 MRS SR
Net c& ) prowided by operating activities 10.070.9 8.858.7 8.780.8

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Purchases of shortterm investments (1,027 .8) 843 6) 418.1)
Proceeds from sale of shortterm investments 968.2 4269 1325
Adgrtions 10 plant, property and equipment (74465 6.637.7) (6,394.7)
Proceeds from sale of plant. property and eguipment 119 55 154
Investment in ieased assets (269.0) (161.6) (201.3)
Proceeds from leasing actvities 1549 830 99
Investment in Notes recevabie (1.2) - -
Proceeds from notes recerwvabie 211 631 2133
Proceeas from Telecom Corporation of New Zealand Limited share

repurchase plan - 1533 -
AcQuesition of Dusinesses. less cash acquired 61.9) 61.8) (10.09
Investments in unconsohdated businesses, net 602 7) (833.0y (1.071.2)
Proceeds from disposition of businesses 6373 5465 1278
Other, net T R A e OGRS s e Sl
Net cash used in Investing activities (7.684.9) (7,338.6) (7.574.0)
Cash Flews froe: Financing Activities
Proceeds from borrowings 63289 6330 1094
Principal repayments of borrowings and captal lease obligations (651.4) (901.4) (375.8)
Eany extinguishe, ont of debt (790.0) - -
Net change in short-term DOrrowngs with onginal maturities of

three months o less (4,038 4) 15803 774
Dividends paid and redemption of stock rights (2,379.5) (2,340.4) 2,200 1)
Proceeds from sale of common stock 559.0 710.7 3283
Purchase of common stock for treasury (1,001.8) (919.8) (118.3)
Minority interest 1631.9) (1) 6878
Reduction in preferred stock of subsidiary - (10.0) -
Proceeds from sale of preferred stock by subsidiary - 655 -
Net change in outstanding checks drawn on controlied

aisbursement accounts 1334 (264.5) 75.3
Net cash used n financing activities (2,471.7) (1.446.7) (1,420.3)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 857 734 (213.5)
Cash and cash equivalents, begnning of year 3228 249.4 < 4629
Cash and cash equivalents. end of yoar $ 2371 $ 3228 $ 2494




Deacrigtion of Busi~ess and Cummeary of
& Sigmificamt Acceumiag Felicies

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Bell Atlantic is an international telecommunications company that
operates in four segments: Domestic Telecom, Global Wireless,
Directory and Other Businesses. For further information concerning
our business, see Note 17.

The telecommunications industry is undergoing substantial changes
as a result of the Telecommunications Act of 1996, other public poli-
<y changes and technological advances. These changes are bringing
increased competitive pressures, but will also open new markets to
us, such as long distance services in our geographic region, upon
completion of certain requirements of the Telecommunications Act
of 1996,

CORIOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include our controlled or
majority-owned subsidianies. Investments in businesses which we do
not control, but have the ability to exercise significant influence over
operating and financial policies, are accounted for using the equity
method. Investments in which we do not have the ability to exercise
significant influence over operating and financial policies are
accounted for under the cost method. All significant intercompany
accounts and transactions have been climinated.

GRUPO IUSACELL, S.A. o C.V.
In the first quarter of 1997, we consummated a restructuring of our
investment in Grupo lusacell, S.A. de C. V. (lusacell), a Mexican
wireless company, to permit us to assume control of the Board of
Directors and management of lusacell. As a result of the restructur-
ing, we changed the accounting for our lusacell investment from the
equity method to full consolidation. You can find additional infor
mation about lusacell in Note 4.

UNITED KINGDOW OPERATIONS

In the second quarter of 1997, we transferred our interests in cable
television and telecommunications operations in the United Kingdom
to Cable & Wircless Communications pk (CWC | i exchange for an
18.5% ownership interest in CWC. Prior 1o the transfer, we included
the accounts of these operations in our consobidated financial state-
ments. We now account for our investment in CWC under the equity
method. You can find additional information about CWC in Note 3.

COMMON STOCK SPLIT

On May 1, 1998, the Board of Directors declared a two-for-one split
of Bell Atlantic common stock, effected in the form of a 100% stock
dividend to sharcholders of record on June 1, 1998 and payable on
June 29, 1998. Sharcholders of record received an additional share of
common stock for cach share of common stock held at the record
date. We retained the par value of $.10 per share for all shares of
common stock. The prior period financial information (including
share and per share data) contained in this report has been adjusted
to give retroactive recognition to this common stock split.

USE OF ESTIMATES

We prepare our financial statements under generally accepted
accounting prnciples which require management to make estimates
and asumptions that affect the reported amounts or certain disclo-
sures. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

REVENUE RLCOSNITION
Our operating telephone subsidiaries recognize revenues when
services are rendered based on usage of our local exchange network
and facilities. Our other subsidianes recognize revenues when prod-
ucts are delivered or services are rendered to customers.

MAINTERARC. AND REPAIRS

We charge the cost of maintenance and repairs, including the cost of
replacing minor items not constituting substantial betterments, to
Operating Expenses.

EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARL

Basic carnings per common share are based on the weighted-average
number of shares outstanding during the year. Diluted carnings per
common share include the dilutive effect of shares issuable under
our stock-based compensation plans, which represent the only
pote: tal dilutive common shares.

CASM AND CASM EQUIVALENTS

We consider all highl; iquid investments with a maturity of 90 days
or less when purchased to be cash equivalents, except cash equiva-
lents held as short-term mvestments. Cash equivalents are stated at
cost, which approximates market value

SHORT-TERM INVESTISENTS

Our short-term investments consist primaridy of cash equivalents
held in trust to pay for certain employee benefits. Short-term invest-
ments are stated at cost, which approximates market value

INVENTORIES

We include in inventory new and reusable materials of the operating
telephone subsidianies which are stated principally at average ong-
nal cost, except that specific costs are used in the case of large inds

vidual items. Inventones of our other subsidianies are stated at the
lower of cost (determined principally on erther an average or first-
in, first-out basis) or market

PLANT AND DEPRECIATION

We state plant. property and equipment at cost. Our operating tele-
phone subsidianies’ depreciation expense is principally based on the
composite group remaining hife method and straignt-line composite
rates. This method provides for the recognition of the cost of the
remaining net investment in telephone plant, less anticipated net
salvage value, over the remaining asset lives. This method requires
the periodic revision of depreciation rates.

The asset lives used by our operating telephone subsidiaries are
presented in the following table:

avERasd LvEI (@ riasms)

Butiaings 20-60
Central office equipment 2-12
Outside communications plant 8-65
Fumniture. vehicies and other equspment 5-15




BOTR 1 CONTINVES

When we replace or retire depreciable telephone plant, we deduct
the carrying amount of such plant from the respective accounts and
charge accumulated depreciation. Gains or losses on disposition are
amortized with the remaining net investment in telephone plant.

Plant, property and equipment of our other subsidiaries is depreci-
ated on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:
buildings, 20 to 40 years, and other equipment, 1 to 20 years.

When the depreciable assets of our other subsidiaries are retired or
otherwise disposed of, the related cost and accumulated deprecia-
tion are deducted from the plant accounts, and any gains or losses
on disposition are recognized in income.

COMPUTER SOFTWARE COSTS

Our operating telephone subsidiaries capitalize initial right-to-use
fees for central office switching equipment, including initial operat-
ing system and initial application software costs. For noncentral
office equipment, only the initial operating system software is capi-
talized. Subsequent additions, modifications, or upgrades of initial
software programs, whether operating or application packages, are
expensed as incurred.

CAPITALIZATION OF INTEREST COSTS

We capi. lize interest associated with the acquisition or construction
of plant assets. Capitalized interest is reported as a cost of plant and
a reduction in interest cost.

GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLES

Goodwill is the excess of the acquisition cost of businesses over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired. We amortize good

will and other identifiable intangibles on a straight-line basis over its
estimated useful life, not exceeding 40 years. We assess the impair-
ment of other identifiable intangibles and goodwill related 1o our
consolidated subsidiaries under Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 121, "Accounting for the Impairment of Long-
Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of.” and
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carry

ing value may not be recoverable. A determination of impairment (if
any) is made based on estimates of future cash flows. In instances
where goodwill has been recorded for assets that are subject 10 an
impairment loss, the carrying amount of the goodwill is eliminated
before any reduction 1s made to the carrving amounts of impaired
long-lived assets  7d identifiable intangibles

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

The functional currency for nearly all of our foreign operations s
the local currency. For these foreign entities, we translate income
statement amounts at average exchange rates for the period, and we
translate assets and liabilities at end-of-period exchange rates. We
record these translation adjustments in Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Loss, a separate component of Sharcowners’
Investment, in our consolidated balance sheets. We report exchange
gains and losses on intercompany foreign currency transactions of a
long-term nature in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss. Other
exchange gains and losses are reported in income

atements

When a foreign entity operates in a highly inflationary economy, we
use the U.S. dollar as the functional currency rather than the local
currency. We translate nonmonetary assets and liabilities and related
expenses into US. dollars at historical exchange rates. We translate
all other income statement amounts using average exchange rates
for the period. Monetary assets and liabilities are translated at end-
of-period exchange rates, and any gains or losses are reported in
income. For the period October 1, 1996, through December 31,
1998, we considered lusacell to operate in a highly inflationary econ-
omy. Beginning January 1, 1999, we discontinued highly inflationary
accounting for lusacell and resumed using the Mexican peso as its
functional currency.

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

We have entered into derivative transactions 10 manage our expo-
sure to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, interest
rates, and corporate tax rates. We employ risk management strate-
gies using a variety of derivatives including foreign currency
forwards and options, interest rate swap agreements, interest rate
caps and floors, and basis swap agreements. We do not hold deriva-

tives for trading purposcs.

FAIR VALUE M{ =00

We use the fair value method of accounting for our foreign currency
derivatives, which requires us to record these derivatives at fair value
in our consolidated balance sheets, and changes in value are record-
ed in income or Sharcowners' Investment. Depending upon the
nature of the derivative instruments, the fair value of these instru-
ments may be recorded in Current Assets, Other Assets, Current
Liabilities, and Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities in our consoli-
dated balance sheets.

Gains and losses and related discounts or premiums arising from
foreign currency derivatives (which hedge our net investments in
consolidated foreign subsidiaries and investments in foreign entitics
accounted for under the equity method) are included in Accumulated
Other Comprehensive Loss and reflected in income upon sale or
substantial hquidation of the investment. Certain of these derivatives
also include 2n interest clement, which is recorded in Interest Expense
over the lives of the contracts. Gains and losses from derivatives which
hedge our short-term transactions and cost investments are included
in Other Income and Expense, Net, and discounts or premiums on
these contracts are included in income over the lives of the contracts.
Gamns and losses from derivatives hedging identifiable foreign curren-
<y commitments are deferred and reflected as adjustments to the
related transactions. If the foreign currency commitment is no longer
likely 10 occur, the gain or loss is recognized immediately in income.

Earnings generated from our leveraged lease portfolio may be affect-
ed by changes in corporate tax rates. In order 10 hedge a portion of
this risk, we use basis swap agreements, which we account for using
the fair value method of accounting. Under this method, these
agreements are carried at fair value and included in Other Assets or
Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities in our consolidated balance
sheet. Changes in the unrealized gain or loss are included in Other
Income and Expense, Net.




®OTE 1 CONTINVED
ACCRUAL METHOD

Interest rate swap agreements and interest rate caps and floors that
qualify as hedges are accounted for under the accrual method. An
instrument qualifies as a hedge if it effectively modifies and/or
hedges the interest rate characteristics of the underlying fixed or
variable interest rate debt. Under the accrual method, no amounts
are recognized in our consolidated balance sheets related to the
principal balances. The interest differential to be paid or received,
which is accrued as interest rates change, and premiums related to
caps and floors, are recognized as adjustments to Interest Expense
over the lives of the agreements. These interest accruals are recorded
in Current Assets and Current Liabilities in our consolidated
balance sheets. If we terminate an agreement, the gain or loss is
recorded as an adjustment to the basis of the underlying liability
and amortized over the remaining original life of the agreement. If
the underlying liability matures, or is extinguished and the related
derivative is not terminated, that derivative would no longer qualify
for accrual accounting. In this situation, the derivative is accounted
for at fair value, and changes in the value are recorded in income

SALE OF STOCK BY SUBSIDIARY

We recognize in consolidation changes in our ownership percentage
in a subsidiary caused by issuances of the subsidiary's stock
adjustments to Contributed Capital.

INCOME TAXES

Bell Atlantic and its domestic subsidiaries file a consolidated federal
income tax return. For periods prior to the merger (see Note 2),
NYNEX filed its own consolidated federal income tax return.

Our operating telephone subsidianies use the deferral method of
accounting for investment tax credits earned prior to the repeal of
investment tax credits by the Tax Reform Act of 1986. We also defer
certain transitional credits carned after the repeal. We amortize
these credits over the estimated service lives of the related assets as a
reduction to the Provisson for Income Taxes,

ADVERTISING COSTS
We cxpense advertising costs as they are incurred

STOCR ZASED COMPERSATION

We account for stock-based employee compensation plans under
Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, "Accounting
for Stock Issued to Emplovees,” and related interpretations, and
follow the disclosure-only provisions of SFAS Ne. 123, "Accounting
for Stock-Based Compensation.”

CHANGE N ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE ~ DIRECTORY PUBLISHING

Effective January 1, 1996, we changed our method of accounting for
directory publishing revenues and expenses from the amortized
method 1o the point-of-publication method. Under the point-of-
publication method, revenues and expenses are recognized when the
directories are published rather than over the lives of the directonies,
as under the amortized method. We believe the point-of-publication
method is preferable because it is the method generally followed by
publishing companies. This accounting change resuited in a one-time,
noncash increase in net income of $273.1 million (net of income tax
of $179.0 million), or $.18 per share on * th a basic and diluted basis,

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

which is reported as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting
principle at January 1, 1996. On an annual basis, the financial impact
of applying this method in 1996 was not significant.

ADOPTION OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In 1998, we adopted SFAS No. 130, “Reporting Comprehensive
Income™ (see Note 20), SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments
of an Enterprise and Related Information™ (see Note 17), and SFAS
No. 132, "Employers’ Disclosures about Pensions and Other
Postretirement Benefits”™ (see Note 15). Prior year amounts have
been provided or restated as required. These standards require now
disclosures only and do not impact our results of operations or
financial position.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

COSTS OF COMPUTER SOFTWARE

In March 1998, the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (AICPA) issued Statement of Position (SOP) No. 98-1,
“Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or
Obtained for Internal Use.” This new accounting standard provides,
among other things, guidance for determining whether computer
software is for internal use and when the cost related to such soft-
ware should be expensed as incurred or capitalized and amortized.
SOP 98-1 1s required to be applied prospectively

We adopted SOP No. 98-1 effective January 1, 1999. We estimate that
the implen.entation of SOP No. 98-1 will result in a net after-tax
benefit of $200 million to $250 mullion in 1999 results of operations
due to the prospective capitalization of costs which were previously
expensed as incurred. Costs for maintenance and tramming, as well as
the cost of software that does not add functionality to the existing
system will continue to be expensed as incurred

COSTS OF START-UP ACTIVITIES
In April 1998, the AICPA 1ssued SOP No. 98-5, “Reporting on the
Costs of Start-Up Actvities.” This new accounting standard requires
that costs of start-up activities, including pre-operating, pre-open-
ing and other organizational costs, be expensed as incurred. In addi-
tion, the unamortized balance of any previously deferred start-up
costs exasting at adoption must be expensed.

We adopted SOP No. 98-5 effective January 1, 1999. The adoption of
SOP No. 98-5 will not have a matenial effect on our results of opera-
tions or financial condition m 1999 because our policy has been to

generally expense all start-up activities

DERIVATIVES AND MEDGING ACTIVITIES
In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
issued SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for Denvative Instruments and
Hedging Activities.” This statement requires that all derivatives be
measured at fair value and recognized as either assets or liabilities in
our balance sheet. Changes in the fair values of the derivative instru-
ments will be recognized in either earnings or comprehensive income,
depending on the designated use and effectiveness of the instruments.
Bell Atlantic must adopt SFAS No. 133 no later than January 1, 2000,
We are currently evaluating the provisions of SFAS No. 133 and have
not yet determined what the impact of adopting this statement will be
on our future results of operations or financial condition.
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On August 14, 1997, Bell Atlantic Corporation and NYNEX
Corporation completed a merger of equals under a definitive merger
agreement entered into on April 21, 1996 and amended on July 2,
1996. Under the terms of the amended agreement, NYNEX became
a wholly owned subsidiary of Bell Atlantic. NYNEX stockholders
received 0.768 of a share of Bell Atlantic common stock for cach
share of NYNEX common stock that they owned. This resulted in

the issuance of 700.4 million shares of Bell Atlantic common stock

The merger qualified as a tax-free reorganization and has been
accounted for as a pooling of interests. Under this method of
accounting. the companies are treated as if they had always been
combined for accounting and financial reporting purposes and,
therefore, we restated our financial information for all dates and
peniods prior to the merger.

The combined results reflect certain reclassifications to conform to
the presentation used by Bell Atlantic and certain adjustments to
conform ac/ »unting methodologies between Bell Atlantic and
NYNEX. Re.ults of operations for certain periods prior to the merg-
er have been combined and conformed as follows:

$ 68546 $ 130814
68151 13.4538

1 7
14545 26193 |

$ 151243  $ 291552

$ 18815
14770

(7.6)

624

RS L
$ 34020

Other adjustments
Combined

Reclassifications were made to conform 1o our post-merger presentation

Cellular consolidation refers to an adjustment that was made to conform
accounting methodologies and to consolidate the accounts of cellular
operations that were jointly controlled by NYNEX and Bell Atlantic prior
to the merger and accounted for by both companies using the equity

An adjustment for SFAS No. 106, "Employers’ Accounting for
Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions,” was made to reflect the
adoption by NYNEX of the diate recogn of the tr. bene-
fit obligation effective January 1, 1993, to con to the method used by
Bell Atlantic.

Other adjustments were made to conform the accounting policies of the
companies, and to record the related tax effects of these adjustments.

MEIRGER-RELATED COSTS

In the third quarter of 1997 we recorded merger-related pre-tax
costs of approximately $200 million for direct incremental costs,
and approximately $223 million for employee severance costs.

Direct incremental costs consist of expenses associated with complet-
ing the merger transaction, such as professional and regulatory fees,
compensation arrangements, and sharcowner-related costs.

Employee severance costs, as recorded under SFAS No. 112,
“Employers’ Accounting for Postemployment Benefits,” represent
the benefit costs for the separation by the end of 1999 of approxi-
mately 3,100 management employees who are entitled to benefits
under pre-existing separation pay plans. During 1997 and 1998, 245
and 856 management employees were separated with severance
benefits. Accrued postemployment benefit liabilities are included in
our consolidated balance sheets as a component of Employee
Benefit Obligations.

OTHER INITIATIVES

During 1997, we recorded other charges and special items totaling
approximately $1.041 million (pre-tax) in connection with consoli-
dating operation: and combining organizations, and for other
special items arising during the year.

VIDEO-RELATED CHARGES

In 1997, we recognized total pre-tax charges of approximately $243
million related to certain video investments and operations. We
determined that we would no longer pursue a multichannel, multi-
point, distribution system (MMDS) as part of our video strategy. As
a result, we recognized habilities for purchase commitments associ-
ated with the MMDS technology and costs associated with closing
the operations of our Tele-TV partnership because this operation no
longer supports our video strategy. We also wrote-down our
remaining investment in CAl Wireless Systems, Inc.

WRITE-DOWN OF ASSETS AND REAL ESTATE CONSOLIDATION
In the third quarter of 1997, we recorded pre-tax charges of approxi-
mately $355 million for the write-down of obsolete or impaired
fixed assets and for the cost of consolidating redundant real estate
properties. As part of our merger integration planning, we reviewed
the carrying values of long-lived assets. This review included esti-
mating remaining useful lives and cash flows, and identifying asscts
to be abandoned. In the case of impaired assets, we analyzed cash
flows related to those assets to determine the amount of the impair-
ment. As a result of these reviews, we recorded charges of approxi-
mately $275 million for the write-off of some assets and $25 million
for the impairment of other assets. These assets primarily included
computers and other equipment used to transport data for internal
purposes, copper wire used to provide telecommunications service
in New York, and duplicate voice mail platforms. None of these
assets are being held for disposal. At December 31, 1998, the
impaired assets had no remaining carrying value.




In connection with our merger integration efforts, we consolidated
real estate to achieve a reduction in the total square footage of build-
ing space that we utilize. We sold properties, subleased some of our
leased facilities and terminated other leases, for which we recorded »
charge of approximately $55 million in the third quarter of 1997
Most of the charge related to properties in Pennsvivania and New
York, where corporate support functions were consohidated into
fewer work locations.

REGULATORY, TAX AND LEGAL CONTINGENCIES AND OTHMER SPECIAL ITEMS

In 1997, we also recorded reductions to operating revenues and
charges to operating expenses totaling approximately $526 milhon
(pre-tax), which consisted of the following:

* Revenue reductions consisted of approximately $179 million for
federal regulatory matters. These matters relate to specific issues that
are currently under investigation by federal regulatory commussions
We believe that it is probable that the ultimate resolution of these
pending matters will result in refunds to our customers.

* Charges to operating expenses totaled approximately $347
million and consisted of $75 million for interest on federal and
other tax contingencies; $55 million for other tax matters; and
$52 million for legal contingencies and a state regulatory aud,
issue. These contingencies were accounted for under the rules of
SFAS No. 5, "Accounting for Contingencies.” These charges also
included approximately $95 million related to costs incurred in
standardizing and consolidating our directory businesses and
$70 million for other post-merger initiatives.

Other charges ansing in 1997 included approumately $59 million
for our equity share of formation costs previously announced by
CW( and account for our

mvestment under the equity method of accounting

We own an 18.5% interest in CWY

In 1997, we recognized pre-tax gans of approxumately $142 mallion
on the sales of our ownership interests of several noastrategic busi-
nesses. These gains included approximately $42 mulhon on the sale
 our mterest in Sky Network Television Limated of New Zealand;
$54 million on the sale of our 33% stake in an Italian wire ine
venture, Infostrada; and $46 million on the sale of our two-sevenths
interest in Bell Communications Research, Ing

We expect that the remaining direct incremental habilities will be fully
utihized. through either payments or adjustments, by the end of 1999.
T'he obligation for severance benefits, which has been determined
under SFAS No. 112, represents expected payments to employees who
Icave the company with benefits provided under pre-cxisting separa-
ton pay plans. The severance obhigation 1s adjusted through annual
costs, which are actuanally determined based upon financial market
interest rates, experience, and management’s best estimate of future
benefit payments. In 1997, the merger-related severance costs
increased our cxisting severance obligation. When the merger-related
scparations are completed, we wall continue to have an obligation for

ongong separations.

We expect to utilize the remaining video and real estate liabilities in
1999, although some lease habilities will extend through 2012,
Liabilities for regulatory, tax and legal contingencies, and other special
items will be utilized as the respective matter is settled

The following table provides a reconciliation of the habilities associated with merger-related costs and other charges and special items at

December 31, 1998 and 1997.

(DOLLARS & WL 0N )

1997 1998
Charges o
Legrnrg Caperse o Eng of £na of
BY o1 - ‘e = Rewenve  Deductions AGy. srments Year § Deductons Adpustments Yoar
MorgerRelated
Direct incremental costs $ - $ 1965 $ (1645* - $ 350 $ 52 $ (255 $ 43
Severance oblgation 1109 222.7 (23.6* 19.7 329.7 (60.6)* 467 3158
Other initiatives
Video-related costs - 2428 1226.6)° 51 213 (3.0)* (12.8) 55
Write-down of fixed assets and
real estate consoldation - 3550 311.6® - 434 (17.6)® (2.5) 233
Regulatory, tax and legal contingencies
and other special items i e o S - SRR 1 - 3®é (118.2)¢ _f144) = 2490 |
$ 1109 $1.5459 $ B706) $ 248 $ 8110 $ (2046) $ 85 §$ 5979

+  Adjustments refer 10 deductions to the liability that reduced expense, or additions to the hability that increased expense resulting from changes in Gircumstances

or expenence in implementing the planned activities.

* Deductions refer to the utilization of the liability through pavments, asset write-offs, or refunds to customers

a-primanly comprised of cash payments
b-primarily comprised of assct write-offs

¢~ comprised of cash payments of $65.9 million, refunds to customers of $41.8 milbion, and asset write-offs of $10.5 million
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Our investments in unconsolidated businesses are comprised of the
following:

DOLLMRS ™ W LONs )

A POTEMSTA 21 Ownerstup Irvestment Owrership Irvvestment

Equaity tresstoss

PrimeCo Personat

Communications. LP S000% $10114 S000% § 9199

Catie & Wiresess

Communcations pic 1850 6754 18.50 6658

Omnted Pronto Rake S p A 19.71 5206 17.45 332

Telecom Corporation of

New Zealand Limited 2495 3730 2495 4177

FLAG Lig rer 1783 3787 2366

Omver wos  7389)  wwes 7147

Total equity mestees 349786 32679

Cost irvestoes wom 7784 wow 18763

Yotsl $42760 $51442
s et 5 b

Dividends received from investees amounted to $169.4 million in
1998, $192.1 million in 1997, and $194.8 million in 1996.

PRIMECO PERSONAL COMMUNICATIONS, L.P.

PrimeCo Personal Communications, L.P. (PrimeCo) is a partnership
established in 1994 between Bell Atlantic and AirTouch
Communications, which provides personal communications
services (PCS) in over 30 major cities across the United States,
PrimeCo began offering services to customers in November 1996

Since 1994, we have invested approximately $1.6 billion in PrimeCo
to fund its operations and the build-out of its PCS network. Under
the terms of the partnership agreement, PrimeCo entered into a
leveraged lease financing arrangement for certain equipment which
has been guaranteed by the partners in the joint venture. Our share
of this guarantee is approximately $139 million.

CABLE & WIRELESS C! WMUNICATIONS pic

In the second quarter of 1997, we transferred our interests in cable
television and telecommunications operations in the United Kingdom
to CWC in exchange for an 18.5% ownership interest in CWC. This
transaction was accounted for as a nonmonetary exchange of similar
productive assets and, as a result, no gain or loss was recorded. We
account for our investment in CWC under the equity method because
we have significant influence over CWC's operating and financial
policies. Prior to the transfer, we incdluded the accounts of these oper-
ations o our consobdated financial statements.

In connection with our investment in CWC, in August 1998 we
issued $3,180.0 million of 4.25% senior exchangeabie notes due on
September 15, 2005. The notes are exchangeable into 277.6 million
ordinary shares of CWC stock that we own at the option of the
holder, beginning on Julv 1, 2002. You can find additional informa-
tion on the CWC exchangeable notes in Note 8.

OMNITEL PRONTO ITALIA $.p.A.
Omnitel Pronto Italia S.p.A. (Omnitel) operates a cellular mobile
telephone network in Italy. We account for this investment under
the equity method because we have significant influence over
Omnitel’s operating and financial policies. Since 1994, we have
invested approximately $544 million in Omnitel. Approximately
$162 million of this amount was invested in April 1998, which
increased our ownership interest from 17.45% to 19.71%. Goodwill
related to this investment totals approximately $400 million, which
is being amortized on a straight-line basis over a period of 25 years.

TELECOM CORPORATION OF MEW ZEALAND LIMITED

Telecom Corporation of New Zealand Limited (TCNZ) is that coun-
try’s principal provider of telecommunications services. At the date
of acquisition of our interest in 1990, goodwill was approximately
$285 million. We are amortizing this amount on a straight-line basis
over a period of 40 years.

During 1997, we sold portions of our stock investment to TONZ in
connection with its share repurchase plan, resulting in cash proceeds
of approximately $153 million. These transactions reduced our invest-
ment and increased our ownership interest in TONZ. Our investment
in TCNZ was also reduced by approximately $38 million as of
December 31, 1998, resulting from foreign currency translation losses.
We recorded these losses as a component of Shareowners’ Investment.

In connection with our investment in TCNZ, in February 1998 we
issued $2,455.0 million of 5.75% senior exchangeable notes due on
April 1, 2003. The notes are exchangeable into 437.1 million ordi-
nary shares of TONZ stock that we own at the option of the holder,
beginning September 1, 1999. You can find additional information
on the TONZ exchangeable notes in Note 8.

FLAG Laa.

Fiberoptic Link Around the Globe Ltd. (FLAG) owns and operates an
undersea fiberoptic cable system, providing digital communications
links between Europe and Asia. FLAG launched commercial service
in the fourth quarter of 1997. We hold approximately a 34% equity
interest in the venture and have invested approximately $227 million
in FLAG since 1994,

We have approximately a 5% interest in the parent company of
FLAG, FLAG Telecom Holdings Limited (FLAG Telecom). In the first
quarter of 1999, a subsidiary of FLAG Telecom and Global
TeleSystems Group, Inc., a U.S. telecommunications company, agree
to establish a joint venture to build and operate a transoceanic dual
cable system to carry high-speed data and video traffic across the
Atlantic Ocean. The companies expect to offer service in 2000,

FLAG had outstanding borrowings of $615.1 million as of
December 31, 1997 under a limited recourse debt facility, which it
refinanced in the first quarter of 1998 through a new $800.0 million
credit facility. This refinancing resulted in an after-tax extraordinary
charge of $14.7 million. The refinancing also released us from
certain obligations under a contingent sponsor support agreement
signed in connection with the debt facility outstanding in 1997,
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OTHER EQUITY MIVESTELS

We also have global wircless investments in the Czech Republic,
Slovakia, Greece, and Indonesia. These investments are in joint
ventures 10 build and operate cellular networks in these countries.
We also have an mvestment i 3 company i the Philippines which
provides telecommunications services in certain regions of that
country. The remaining investments nclude real estate partnerships,
tional jount ventures.

SUMMARIZED FIRARCIAL INFORMATION

information for our equity investees. These amounts are shown on 2
100 percent basis.

IO -

RAR CeDED OOCTMMER X1 1398
ooy

Results of operatons

Operating revenues $ 83323
Operaung mcome 14783

betore y tem sra

Net ncome 5202
Bell Atartc s eguty share of mcome 248
o secewess X1 1900
Fnanciad postion

Curvert assets $ 46798
NOCuTent ansers 18986 1
Currentt nabwites 48300
NonCurrent Latates 100272
Mnory rerest 1550
Stooahordens  eQuty 86535
Bed AUt 3 eQuty Vhare of Fvestees $ J7e

COST WVESTEES

Our cost investments are carried at thexr original cost, except in
cases where we have determined that a decine mn the estimated fair
value of an investment is other than temporary as described below
under “Other Cost Investments.”

VIACOM INC.

Since 1993, we have held an investment in Viacom Inc. Viacom), an
entertainment and publishing company. This investment consisted
of 24 million shares of Viacom Series B Cumulative Preferred Stock
that we purchased for $1.2 billion. The preferred stock, which
carried an annual dividend of 5%, was convertible into shares of
Viacom Class B nonvoting common stock at a price of $70 per
share. In December 1998, we accepted an offer from Viacom to
repurchase one-half of our Viacom investment, or 12 million shares
of the preferred stock (with a book value of approximately $600
million), for approximately $564 million in cash. This transaction
resulted in a small loss, which was recorded in Income (Loss) from
Unconsolidated Businesses in our consolidated statement of income
in 1998. The remaining investment in Vie.om, 12 million shares of
preferred stock (with a book value of approximately $600 million),

INJANCIe

was repurchased by Viacom in a second transaction in January 1999
for approximately $612 million in cash. This transaction did not
have 2 matenial effect on our consolidated results of operations.

OTNER COST INVESTMENTS

Other cost investments consist principally of our Asian
imvestments - TelecomAsia, a wireline investment in Thailand, and
Exceicomindo, a wircless investment in Indonesia. In the third quar-
ter of 1998, we recorded pre-tax charges of $485.1 million to Income
Loss) from Unconsolidated Businesses in our consolidated state-
ment of income to adjust the carrying values of TelecomAsia and
Excelcomindo. The charges were necessary because we determined
that the decline in the estimated fair values of each of these invest-
ments were other than temporary. We determined the fair values of
these investments by discounting estimated future cash flows.

In the case of TelecomAsia, we recorded a charge of $348.1 million to
adjust the carrying value of the investment to its estimated fair value.
We considered the following factors in determuning this charge:

* The continued weakness of the Tha: currency as compared to
historical exchange rates will place additional financial burdens
on the company in servicing U.S. dollar-denominated debt.

» The economic instabidity and prospects for an extended recovery
period have resulted in weaker than expected growth in
TelecomAsia's business. This is indicated by slower than expected
growth in total subscribers and usage. These factors resulted in
reduced expectations of future cash flows and, accordingly, a
reduction in the value of our investment

* The business plan for TelecomAsia contemplated cash flows from
several lines of buuness. Given TelecomAsia's inclination to focus
on its core wireline business, these other lines of business may not
contribute future cash flows at previously expected levels.

In the case of Excelcomindo, we recorded a charge of $137.0 million
to adjust the carrying value of the investment to its estimated fair
valne. We considered the following factors in determining this charge:

* The continued weakness of the Indonesian currency as compared
to historical exchange rates will place additional financial burdens
on the company in servicing U.S. dollar-denominated debt. The
continuing political unrest in Indonesia has contributed to the
currency’s instability.

* The economic instability and prospects for an extended recovery
period have resulted in weaker than expected growth in
Excelcomindo’s business. One significant factor has been inflexi-
ble tariff regulation despite rising costs due to inflation. This and
other factors have resulted in reduced expectations of future cash
flows and, accordingly, a reduction in the value of our investment.

« lssues with cash flow are requiring Excelcomindo’s sharcholders
to evaluate the future funding of the business.
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Since 1993, we have invested $1.2 billion in lusacell, the second
largest telecommunications company in Mexico. Goodwill related to
this investment totaled approximately $840 million and is being
amortized on a straight-line basis over a period of 25 years. In the
first quarter of 1997, we consummated a restructuring of our invest-
ment in lusacell to permit us to assume control of the Board of
Directors and management of lusacell. As a result of the restructur-
ing, we changed the accounting for our lusacell investment from the
equity method to full consolidation.

In 1998 and 1997, we entered into several transactions which have
resulted in changes to our economic ownership percentage. As part
of the initial restructuring in the first quarter of 1997, we converted
approximately $33 million of debt into Series A shares, thereby
increasing our ownership percentage from 41.9% to 42.1%. We also
agreed to provide lusacell up to $150.0 million under a subordinat-
ed convertible debt facility (the Facility) as lusacell may require
from time to time. This obligation expires in June 1999.

In the third quarter of 1998, lusacell and its principal sharcholders
entered into another agreement (the 1998 Restructuring Agreement)
to restructure ownership of the company. This restructuring, if
completed, will result in the formation of a new holding company
with two classes of shares, one of which will trade publicly. The
restructuring is intended to increase the liquidity of lusacell’s
publicly traded shares and to increase the availability of debt financ-
ing to lusacell. Tusacell borrowed $101.5 million from us under the
Facility during he second half of 1998. We immediately converted
the debt into 145.0 million additional Series A shares at a price of
$.70 per share as contemplated by the 1998 Restructuring
Agreement. However, under this same agreement, we sold 21.4
million of those shares to the Peralta Group, the other principal
shareholder of lusacell, for $.70 per share. As a result of this debt
conversion and sale of shares to the Peralta Group, our ownership
percentage increased to 47.1% as of December 31, 1998,

The 1998 Restructuring Agreement also contemplates that the new
lusacell holding company will engage in a rights offering to existing
sharcholders, and that we and the Peralta Group, under certain
circumstances, will engage in a secondary public offering of a
portion of our respective shares. These transactions would reduce
our ownership percentage to approximately 42%. We would, howev-
er, continue to retain management control of Iusacell through the
completion of these transactions and, therefore, would continue to
consolidate the company's results. The 1998 Restructuring
Agreement also provides that any further borrowings by lusacell
under the Facility w I be immediately converted into shares of
lusacell at a conversion price of $.70 per share. It further provides
that the Peralta Group will purchase from us one-half of any shares
received from that debt conversion for $.70 per share. lusacell
borrowed approximately $31 million under the Facility in the first
quarter of 1999, which has been converted to equity, increasing our
ownership percentage to 47.2%.

PUT OPTIONS

The Peralta Group can require us to purchase from it approximately
517 mullion lusacell shares for $.75 per share, or approximately $388
million in the aggregate, by giving notice of exercise between
November 15 and December 15, 2001.

5- Plant, Property and Equipment

The following table displays the details of plant, property and equip-
ment, which is stated at cost:

AT pecEmaneR 31,

Land 4123
Buiicings 6.666.7
Central office equipment 314408
Outside communications plant 336049
Furniture, vehicles and other
work equipment

Other
Construction-in-progress

78700

1.356.6
s = T

83,064.1
Accumulated depreciation __146,2486) _
Total $ 368155

_(42.397.8)
$ 350394

Plant, property and equipment at December 31, 1998 and 1997
includes real estate property and equipment under operating leases
(or held for lease) of $96.6 million and $52.8 million, and accumu-
lated depreciation of $21.9 million and $14.8 million.

6- Leasing Arringements

AS LESSOR

We are the lessor in leveraged and direct financing lease agreements
under which commercial aircraft, rail equipment, industrial equip-
ment, power generating facilities, real estate property, and telecom-
munications and other equipment are leased for remaining terms of
1 10 48 years. Minimum lease payments receivable represent unpaid
rentals, less principal and interest on third-party nonrecourse debt
relating to leveraged lease transactions. Since we have no general
liability for this debt, the related principal and interest have been
offset against the minimum lease payments receivable. Minimum
lease payments receivable are subordinate to the debt and the hold-
ers of the debt have a security interest in the leased equipment.




Finance lease recervables, which are included in Current Assets - Other and Noncurrent Assets - Other Assets in our consolidated balance

sheets are comprised of the following:
(DOLLARS & Wi 0N )
& picTmEmEe X1 1998 1997
Owect Owect
Lever aged Frarce Leveraged Frrarce
o A A AR o R T TRt ) e e Ues M
Minimum iease payments recenvable $2,986.3 $ 1899 $3.176.2 $26746 $ 2235 $2.898.1
Estimated residual value 2,1868 36.1 22229 1.969.7 36.2 2,005.9
Unearned income (21319) ~ i581) @ (2.1900) ] (1.874.7) = (70.7)  (1,945.4) |
$3.041.2 $ 1679 3.2091 $2.769.6 $ 189.0 2,958.6
Aliowance for doubtful accounts 1373 ] __(24.9) |
Finance lease receivables, net $3.1718 $2933.7
Current $ 372 $ 392 |
Noncurrent $3.1346 $2.8945

Accumulated deferred taxes arising from leveraged leases. which are included in Deferred Income Taxes, amounted to $2,445.2 million at

December 31, 1998 and $2,233.8 million at December 31, 1997

The following table is a summary of the components of income
from leveraged leases:

DOLLARS % 0N )

Capital lease amounts included in plant, property and equipment
are as follows

DOUAES N LN )

TEAMS ENOED DECEMBER 31 1998 1997 1996 & pecEmeen 31 1998 1997
Pre-tax lease income $ 992 l $ 974 ' $ 875 Captal eases $ 2962 ' $ 72
Income tax expense 472 30.7 21 Accumuiated amortizaton ___1696) (163.5)
Investment tax credns 53 29 5 Total $ 1266 $ 1437

This table displays the future minimum lease payments to be recerve !
from noncancelable leases, net of nonrecourse loan payments related
to leveraged and direct financing leases in excess of debt service
requirements, for the periods shown at December 31, 1998:

DOLLASS N O

Capta Opevatrg
Maid Leases Loases
1999 $ 85.7 l $ 162
2000 649 6.1
2001 653 6
2002 945 7
2003 831 2
Thereafter e RO e T b e e
Total $ 31763 $ 238
AS LESSER

We lease certain facilities and equipment for use in our operations
under both capital and operating leases. [otal rent expense under
operating leases amounted to $555.7 mullion in 1998, $572.6 million
in 1997 and $531.9 million in 1996. We incurred initial capital lease
obligations of $2.7 million in 1998, $11.4 million in 1997, and $16.4
million in 1996.

This table displays the aggregate minimum rental commitments
under noncancelable leases for the periods shown at December 31,
1998:

Capta Operatng

e Leases Leases
1999 $ 36.2 l $ 2537
2000 450 211
2001 3.7 1745
2002 255 1483
2003 168 1254
Thereafter 47170 = 7623
Total msremum rental commitments 632.2 $ 16853
Less nterest and executory Costs 4804 |
Present value of minimum

lease payments 1518
Less current mstaliments 154 s
Long-term chigation

at December 31, 1998 $ 1364

As of December 31, 1998, the total minimum sublease rentals to be
recetved in the future under noncancelable operating subleases was
$289.9 mullion.




1- Commitments and Contingencies

In connection with certain state regulatory incentive plan commit-
ments, we have deferred revenues which will be recognized as the
commitments are met or obligations are satisfied under the plans. In
addition, several state and federal regulatory proceedings may
require our operating telephone subsidiaries to refund a portion of
the revenues collected in the current and prior periods. There are
also various legal actions pending to which we are a party. We have
established reserves for specific liabilities in connection with regula

tory and legal matters which we currently deem to be probable and
estimable.

We do not expect that the ultimate resolution of pending regulatory
and legal matters in future periods will have a material effect on our
financial condition, but it could have a material effect on our results
of operations.

& paCTaeRER X1

Interest Rates %

DEBT MATURING WITNIN ONE YEAR
The following table displays the details of debt maturing within one
year:

AT pEcEwens 31, 1954 1997
Notes payable I

Commercial paper $ 195007 $ 5087.7

Bank loans 2995 509.7
Longterm debt matunng

within one year 1,304 4 7654
Total debt maturing e

within one year $ 29876 $ 63428
Weghted average interes!

rates for notes payable

outstanding at year«nd 56% 59%

Capital expenditures (primarily construction of telephone plant) are
partially financed, pending long-term financing, through bank loans
and the issuance of commercial paper payable within 12 months.

At December 31, 1998, we had in excess of $4.5 billion of unused
bank lines of credit. The availability of these lines, for which there
are no formal compensating balances, is at the discretion of each
bank. Certain of these lines of credit contain requirements for the
payment of commitment fees.

Substantially all of the assets of lusacell, totaling approximately $725
million at December 31, 1998, are subject to lien under a credit facil-
ity with certain bank lenders.

LONG-TERM DEBTY
This table shows our outstanding long-term debt obligations:

Maturtes 19%¢ 1997

Telephone subsidiaries’ debentures

Unamortizec discount, net of premium

Exchangeable notes, net of unamortized discount of $243.8
Notes payablc
Refunding mortgage bonds
Mortgage and instaliment notes
Empiloyee stock ownership plan loans (Note 15)
Bell Atiantic senior notes
NYNEX debentures
Capital lease obligations - average rate 11.0% and 10.8%
Total long-term dedt, including current maturities
Less maturing within one year
Total longterm dedt

4375 - 7.00
7.125 -

785 - 93715

1999-2033
7.75 2002-2033
2010-2031
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TELEPHONE SUBSIDIARIES " DEBT

The telephone subsidiaries” debentures outstanding at December 31,
1998 include $1.857.0 milhon that are callable. The call prices range
from 101.98% to 100.00% of face value, depending upon the reman-
ing term to maturity of the issue. All of our refunding mortgage
bonds are also callable as of December 31, 1998. In addition, our
long-term debt includes $735.0 million that will become redecmable
for limited periods at the option of the holders. Of this amount,
$385.0 million becomes redeemable in 1999 and $175.0 milbon =
2002. One debenture totaling $175.0 milion becomes redeemable =
2000 and agan in 2002. The redemption prices will be 100.0% of face
value plus accrued interest.

Substantially all of the assets of New York Telephone Company,
totaling approximately $13.3 billion at December 31, 1998, uoe
subject to lien under New York Telephone Company's refunding
mortgage bond indenture.

EXCHANGEABLE NOTES

In February 1998, our wholly owned subsidiary Bell Atlantic
Financial Services, Inc. (FSI) ssued $2.455.0 mulbion of 5.75% semsor
exchangeable notes due on April 1, 2003 (TONZ exchangeabie
notes ). The TONZ exchangeable notes are exchangeable mto 437.1
milbion ordinary shares of TONZ stock that we own at the option of
the holder, beginning on September 1, 1999. The exchange price was
established at a 20% premium to the TONZ share price at the pr
ing date of the offering. Upon exchange by investors, we retaun the
option 1o settie in cash or by delivery of TONZ shares. Dunng the
period from Apiil 1, 2001 to March 31, 2002, the TONZ exchange-

able notes are callable at our option at 102.3% of the principal
amount and, thereafter and prior to maturity at 101.15%. The

proceeds of the TONZ exchangeable notes offering were used for
repayment of a portion of our short-term debt.

In August 1998, FSI issued $3.180.0 million of 4.25% semior
exchangeable notes due on September 15, 2005 (CWC exchangeable
notes). The CWC exchangeable notes were ssued at a discount and
at December 31, 1998 the notes had 2 carrying value of $3.190.5
million. The CWC exchangeable notes are exchangeable into 2778
million ordinary shares of CWC stock that we own at the option of
the holder beginning on July 1, 2002. The exchange price was estab-
lished at a 28% premium to the CWC share price at the pniang date
of the offering. Upon exchange by investors, we retain the option 1o
settle in cash or by delivery of CWC shares. The CWU exchangeabie
notes are redeemable at our option. beginning September 15, 2002,
at escalating prices from 104.2% to 108.0% of the principal
amount. If the CWC exchangeable notes are not called or exchanged
prior to maturity, they will be redeemable a1 108.0% of the pnncipal
amount at that time. The proceeds of the ¢WC exchangeable notes
offering were used for the repavment of a2 portion of our short-term
debt and other general corporate purposes

The TCNZ and CWC cxchangeable notes must be marked-to-
market if the fair value of either the underlying TONZ shares nises to
a level greater than 120% of the share price &t the pricing date of the
offering, or the underlving CWC shares rises 1o a jevel greater than
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128% of the share price at the pricing date of the offering. If cither
event should occur, we are required to mark-to-market the applica-
ble exchangeable note Liability by the amount of the increase in
share price over the exchange price. This mark-to-market transac-
tion would reduce income by the amount of the increase in the
exchangeable note hablity. If the share price subsequently declines,
the hability would be reduced (but not less than its amortized carry-
mg value! and ncome would be increased. At December 31, 1998,
the fair value of neither the underlying TONZ shares, nor the under-
lving CWUC shares, exceeded the recorded value of the debt hability
and, therefore, no mark-to-market adyustments were recorded to
our financial statements

SUPPOAT AGREEMENTS
The TONZ exchangeable notes have the benefit of a Support
Agreement dated February 1, 1998, and the CWUC exchangeable notes
have the benefit of 2 Support Agreement dated August 26, 1998, both
of which are between Bell Atlantic and FSL In the Support
Agreements, Bell Atlantic guarantees the pavment of interest, premi-
um (of any ), princpal. and the cash value of exchange property relat-
ed 10 these notes should FSI fail to pay. Another Support Agreement
between Bell Atlantic and FSI dated October 1, 1992, guarantees
pavment of mterest, premium (f any), and principal on FSI's medi-
am-term potes (aggregating $244.7 milbon at December 31, 1998)
should FSI faal 10 pav. The holders of FSI's debt do not have recourse
to the stock or assets of our operating telephone subsidiaries or
TONZ: however, they do have recourse 0 dividends paid to Bell
Atlantic by anv of our consobidated subsadiancs as well as assets not
covered by the exclusson. The carrving value of the avatlable assets
reflected i our consobdated financial statements was approximately
$14.1 badbom at December 31, 1998

In 1998, we cstablished a §2.0 bidlion Euro Medium Term Note
Program inder which we may issue notes that are not registered
with the Securities and Exchange Commission. The notes will be
ssued from time to me from our subsidiary, Bell Atlantic Global
Funding, Inc. (BAGF ), and will have the benefit of a support agree-
ment between BAGF and Bell Atlantic. There have been no notes
wsued under thas program

MATURITIES OF (ONG TEAM DEST

Matunties of long-term debt outstanding at December 31, 1998,
excluding capital lese obligations and unamortized discount and
premium, are $1.289.0 million n 1999, $893.6 million in 2000,
$373.8 mulbon mn 2001, $941.1 mullion in 2002, $3,532.6 mullion in
2003, and $12.068.0 million thereafter. These amounts inciude the
redeemable debt at the carhiest possible redemption dates.

EARLY EXTINGUISHMENT OF DEST

We recorded extraordinary charges associated with the early extin-
guishment of debentures and refunding mortgage bonds of the tele-
phone subsidiaries and debt issued by FLAG, an investment
accounted for under the equity method. You can find a description
of our FLAG investment in Note 3. These charges reduced net
income by $25.5 mullion (net of an income tax benefit of $14.3
milbon | in 1998
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DERIVAVIVES

We limit our use of derivatives to managing risk that could negative-
ly impact our financing and operating tlexibility, making cash flows
more stable over the long run and achieving savings over other
means of financing. Our risk management strategy s designed to
protect against adverse changes in interest rates, foreign currency
exchange rates, and corporate tax rates, as well as facilitate our
financing strategies. We use several types of derivatives in managing
these risks, including interest rate swap agreements, interest rate
caps and floors, foreign currency forwards and options, and basis
swap agreements. Derivative agreements are linked to specific liabil-
ities or assets and hedge the related economic exposures. We do not
hold derivatives for trading purposes.

We recognized pre-tax income (expense) of $(3.6) million in 1998,
$17.3 million in 1997, and $12.7 million in 1996 in our statements
of income related to our risk management activities involving
derivatives.

INTEREST RATE RISK MANAGEMENT

The table that follows provides additional information about our
interest rate risk management. The notional amounts shown are used
to calculate interest payments to be exchanged. These amounts are
not actually paid or received, nor are they a measure of our potential
gains or losses from market risks. They do not represent our expo-
sure in the event of nonperformance by a counterparty or our future
cash requirements. Our financial instruments are grouped based on
the nature of the hedging activity.

DOULARS N L0

We e Aver age Hate
A .

Notonal

AT DECEMDER 31, Armount Maturtes Fecere Pay
interest Rate Swr * Agreements

Foreign Currency, Interest Rate Swaps

1998 $ 3032 1999 - 2002 5.3% 6.0%
1997 $ 3754 1998 - 2002 4.5% 6.2%
Other Interest Rate Swaps

Pay fixed

1998 $ 2600 1999 - 2005 5.0% 59%
1997 $ 2600 1 - 2005 5.7% 5.9%
Pay variable

1998 $ 7837 1999 - 2006 6.6% 5.3%
1997 $ 7837 1999 - 2006 6.6% 6.1%
Structured Note Swap Agreements

1998 $ 600 1999

1997 $ 600 1999

Interest Rate Cap/Floor Agreements

1998 $ 2970 1999 - 2002

1997 $ 2620 1999 - 2001

Basis Swep Agreements

1998 $1.001.0 2003 - 2004

We use foreign currency/interest rate swap agreements to hedge the
value of certain international investments. The agreements generally
require us to receive payments based on fixed interest rates and make
payments based on variable interest rates

The structured note swap agreements convert several structured
medium-term notes to conventional fixed rate liabilities while reduc-
ing financing costs. The effective fixed interest rate on these notes
averaged 6.1% at December 31, 1998 and 1997.

Other interest rate swap agreements, which sometimes incorporate
options, and interest rate caps and floors are all used to adjust the
interest rate profile of our debt portfolio and allow us to achieve a
targeted mix of fixed and variable rate debt

Earnings generated from our leveraged lease portfolio may be affect-
ed by changes in corporate tax rates. In order to hedge a portion of
this risk, we entered into several basis swap agreements which
require us to receive payments based on a variable interest rate
(LIBOR-based) and make payments based on a tax-exempt market
index (1.].Kenney). We account for these basis swap agreements at
fair value and recognized income (expense) of $(3.7) million in
1998, $4.2 million in 1997, and $20.2 million in 1996 related to0
mark-to-market adjustments.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK MANAGEMENT

Our foreign exchange risk management includes the use of foreign
currency forward contracts, options and foreign currency swaps.
Forward contracts and options call for the sale or purchase, or the
option 1o sell or purchase, certain foreign currencies on a specified
future date. These contracts are typically used to hedge short-term
foreign currency transactions and commitments. The total notional
amounts of our foreign currency forward contracts and option
contracts were $..4 million at December 31, 1998 and $14.5 million at
December 31, 1997, all of which had maturities of six months or less.

Certain of the interest rate swap agreements shown in the table
contain both a foreign currency and an interest rate component.
These agreements require the exchange of payments based on speci-
fied interest rates in addition to the exchange of currencies at the
maturity of the contract. The required payments for both compo-
nents are based on the notional amounts of the contracts.

Our net equity position in unconsolidated foreign businesses as
reported in our consolidated balance sheets totaled $1,916.6 million
at December 31, 1998 and $1,784.2 million at December 31, 1997.
Our most significant investments at December 31, 1998 and 1997
had operations in the United Kingdom, Italy and New Zealand. We
have not hedged our accounting translation exposure to foreign
currency fluctuations relative to these investments except for our
United Kingdom investment which is partially hedged.

Our equity income is subject to exchange rate fluctuations when our
equity investee has balances denominated in a currency other than
the investees’ functional currency. We recognized $10.5 million in
1998, $(30.1) million in 1997, and $6.8 million in 1996 related to
such fluctuations in Income (Loss) From Unconsolidated Businesses.



We continually monitor the relationship between gains and losses
recognized on all of our foreign currency contracts and on the under-
lying transactions being hedged to mutigate market risk.

CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

Financial instruments that subject us to concentrations of credit risk
consist primarily of temporary cash investments, short-term invest-
ments, trade receivables, certain notes receivable, preferred stock,
and derivative contracts. Our policy is to place our temporary cash
investments with major financial institutions. Counterparties to our
derivative contracts are also major financial institutions and orga-
nized exchanges. The financial institutions have all been accorded
high ratings by primary rating agencies. We limit the dollar amount
of contracts entered into with any one financial institution and
monitor our counterparties’ credit ratings. We generally do not give
or receive collateral on swap agreements due to our credit rating and
those of our counterparties. While we may be exposed to credit loss-
es due to the nonperformance of our counterpartics, we consider
the risk remote and do not expect the settlement of these transac-
tions to have a material effect on our results of operations or finan-
cial condition.

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The tables that follow provide additional information about our
material financial instruments:

Cash and cash equivalents Carrying amounts

and short term investments

Short and iong term Gedt
(exciuding Capital leases and
exchangeatie notes

Exchangeadie rotes

Cost mvestments n

and notes recenabie

Interest rate Swap and other
agreements

Marset Quotes f0r somular terms
ana matuntes Or fAture Casn
flows Gscounted At Current rates

Marset Quotes for semeiar
INStruments with DO Sedt anc

Future cash flows discounted

a current rates, market

Quotes for simelar NStruments o
Other valuation Tooes

Gans o 'osses 10 terminate
agreements Of 3MOUNS D

10 rephcate agreements at

current rates
Forewgn currency forward Market quotes Or gans or Osses
and option contracts 0 terminate agreements

DO N LN

t!i 1997
Carrorg Far Carryrg Fawr
SEmum=n e e Amawe® e )
Short - ana
long - term dett $148366 $159283 18194377 $199889
Exchangeatie notes 56456 58182 -
Cost investments
n unconsohdated
busnesses 1778 7969 16930 14646
Notes recenadie, net 184 183 29 332
Interest rate swap
and other agreements
Assets 6.1 267 263 318
Uabidties 255 9.7 248 ns
Foregn currency
forward and
oOpton contracts
Assets - 2 -
Uabites - - 2 2

* The carrving amounts shown for denivatives include deferred gains
and losses.

In January 1999, we accepted an offer from Viacom to repurchase
their preferred stock from us. Our investment in Viacom is included
in the table under “Cost investments in unconsolidated businesses.”
We have used the sale price as the fair value of our Viacom invest-
ment at December 31, 1998. The fair value of our Viacom invest-
ment at December 31, 1997 was calculated using certain theoretical
convertible valuation models since the preferred stock was not
publicly traded. We were unable to determine the fair value of other
investments, with carrving values of $.6 million and $183.3 million
at December 31, 1998 and 1997, without incurring excessive Costs.

10. Minority interest
DOLAS N W o)
o pecEmes® 31 1998 1997
Portion sutyect o I
redemplion reguirements $ 186 $ 6183
Portion nonredeemable 33111 2929
$ 3297 $ 9112

VIACOM TRANSACTIONS

In December 199% we accepted an offer from Viacom to repurchase
one-half of our investment in Viacom, or 12 million shares of their
preferred stock (with a book value of approximately $600 million),
for approximately $564 million in cash. This preferred stock had
been held by a fully consolidated subsidiary, which had been created
as part of a transaction to monetize a portion of our Viacom invest-
ment during 1995 and 1996. This monetization transaction involved
entering into nonrecourse contracts whereby we raised $600.0




million based, among other things, on the value of our investment
in Viacom. To accomplish the monetization, two fully consolidated
subsidiaries were created to manage and protect certain assets for
distribution at a later date. In addition, an outside party contributed
$600.0 million in cash in exchange for an interest in one of these
subsidiaries, and we contributed a $600.0 million note that was
collateralized by certain financial assets, including the 12 million
shares of Viacom preferred stock and 22.4 million shares of our
common stock. The outside party’s contribution was reflected in
Minority Interest, and the issuance of common stock was reflected
as Treasury Stock in our consolidated balance sheets and statements
of shareowners’ investment.

The cash proceeds from the repurchase of the 12 million shares of
Viacom preferred stock, together with additional cash, was used to
repay the note that had been contributed to one of the
subsidiaries. The total amount of cash was distributed to the outside
party, under a pre-existing agreement, to redeem most of that party’s
interest in the subsidiary. We then purchased the remaining portion
of the outside party’s interest. The transaction was accounted for as a
charge 1o Reinvestad Earnings and a reduction from Net Income in
calculating Net Income Available to Common Shareowners in the
amount of $29.8 million. As a result of our purchase of the outside
party’s interest, we reduced Minority Interest by $600.0 million in
1998. However, the subsidiaries continue to hold shares of our
common stoc.., which have been reported as Treasury Stock in our
consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 1998,

The remaining 12 million shares of preferred stock were repurchased
by Viacom in a second transaction in January 1999 for approximately
$612 million in cash. You can find additional information on our
Viacom investment in Note 3

OTHER MINORITY INTERESTS

Minority interest in 1998 and 1997 also included the minority inter-
ests in certain partnerships consolidated by Bell Atlantic Mobile. The
other shareowners’ interest in lusaceli is also reflected as minonity
interest in 1998 and 1997 as a result of our change to full consolida-
tion for our investment in [usacell beginning in 1997. You can find a
description of our lusacell investment in Note 4.

11- Preferred Stock of Subsidiary

Our subsidiary Bell Atlantic New Zealand Holdings, Inc. (BANZHI)
has the authority to issue 5,000,000 shares of Serial Preferred Stock.
BANZHI has issued three series of preferred stock. BANZHI owns a
portion of our investment in lusacell and, with another subsidiary,
indirectly owns our investment in TONZ.

In 1994, BANZHI issued 850,000 shares of Series A Preferred Stock
at $100 per share with an annual dividend rate of $7.08 per share. In
1995, 600,000 shares of Series B Preferred Stock were issued at $100
per share with an annual dividend rate of $5.80 per share. At
December 31, 1998 and 1997, 95,000 shares ($9.5 million) of Series
B Preferred Stock were held by a wholly owned subsidiary. Both
series are subject to mandatory redemption on May 1, 2004 at a
redemption price per share of $100, together with any accrued and
unpaid dividends.

In 1997, 650,000 shares of Series C Vanable Term Preferred Stock
were issued at $100 per share. At December 31, 1998, these shares
had an annual dividend rate of 4.24%.

12- Shar - "wners' investment

Our certificate of incorporation provides authority for the issuance
of up to 250 million shares of Series Preferred Stock, $.10 par value,
in one or more series, with such designations, preferences, rights,
qualifications, limitations and restrictions as the Board of Directors
may determine

We are authorized to issue up 10 2.25 billion shares of common stock.

On January 23, 1996, the Board of Directors adopted a resolution
ordering the redemption of all rights granted under our Sharcholder
Rights Plan, approved by the Board in 1989. Shareholders of record as
of April 10, 1996 were paid the redemption price of $.01 per Right
($.0025 per share after adjusting for stock splits) on May 1, 1996,




13- Earnings Per Share

The following table is a reconciliation of the numerators and denomunators used in computing carnings per share:

~w N FRCEPT LR el AMOUNTY)

VRARS ENOD CECYWEES 31 1999 ¥ 1997 19%6
Mot income Avsllabie (5 Commen Shoroowmers
Income Defore extraordnary tem and cumulative effect

of change in acCoUNtIng DINCIDee s 29908 s 24549 $ 31289
Redemption of mnonty interes! 129.8) - -
Redemption of nvestee preferrad stock 2% ) S O e S DS L L
Income avariable 10 COMMOn shareowners * 29585 245459 11289
Extraordinary ftem (25.5) - -
Cumuiative effect of change i accounting prncipie PR O T ; - SEELREAy 2 1
Net income avadiadle 10 COMMON Shareowners * $ 2.933.0 $ 24549 $ 34020
Basic [armings Por Commeon Share
Weghted ave- age Shares outsIanang LN 1.553.0 15518 154088 |
InCome Defore extraordnary tem and cumulative effect

of change n accounting DANCIDie: s 1.90 $ 158 $ 202
Extraordnary tem 01) - -
Cumuilative effect of change n accounting prncipie Ch o 2 IR AL T ad SRR | 1]
Net income $ 1.89 $ 1.58 $ 2.20
Délartad Esmings Per Comenon Skare
Weghted average shares outsianding 1.553.0 1.551.8 1.546 6
Effect of Gilutive securibes 253 i 19.3 T r PR bl + £ s
Weghted average shares - Jiuted 157813 15711 15002
Income before extraordnary tem and cumulative effect

of change in accounting PrNCIDie s 187 s 1.56 $ 2.00
Extraoranary tem o1 -
Cumulative effect of change in accounting prnciDle o - - SO .18
Net income S 1.86 $ 1.56 S 2.18

* Income and Net income available 10 common shareowners i the same for purposes of calculating basic and dduted carmungs per share

Stock options to purchase .2 million, .| million and 29.9 million shares of common stock were outstanding at December 31, 1998, 1997, and
1996, which were not included in the computation of diluted carmings per share because the options’ exercise price was greater than the aver-
age market price of the common shares
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We have stock-based compensation plans that include fixed stock
option and performance-based share plans. We apply APB Opinion
No. 25 and related interpretations in accounting for our plans. We
have adopted the disclosure-only provisions of SFAS No. 123, We
recognize no compensation expense for our fixed stock option
plans. Compensation expense charged to income for our perfor-
mance-based share plans was $14.3 million in 1998, $23.4 million in
1997, and $10.6 million in 1996. If we had clected to recognize
compensation expense based on the fair value at the grant dates for
1996 and subsequent fixed and performance-based plan awards
consistent with the provisions of SFAS No. 123, net income and
carnings per share would have been changed to the pro forma
amounts indicated below

o L N ERCEPT PER Amal AMOuUNTY

TEASS ENSED DeCTMmCE 31 1998 1997 1996
Net income As reporied $:’%51I$.‘4549'!34020
Pro forme 29179 23936 33558

AMaeportes $ 189 § 15 §$ 22
Pro torma 186 154 217

Basic earnings per share

AMsreported $ 186 $ 15 §$ 218
Pro forma 183 1.52 215

Deiuted earmings per share

These results may not be representative of the effects on pro forma
net income for future years.

We determined the pro forma amounts using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing nodel based on the following weighted-average
assumptions:

1998 1997 1996
Dividend yleld 4.50% I 4 56% r 4.72%
Expected volatity 18.63% 1487% 15 16%
Risk free interest rate 5.55% 6.35% 542%
Expected ives (in years) 5 5 5

The weighted-average value of options granted was $6.47 per option
during 1998, $4.30 per option during 1997 and $2.96 per option
during 1996,

The NYNEX stock options outstanding and exercisable at the date of
the merger were converted to Bell Atlantic stock options. The NYNEX
option activity and share prices have been restated, for all years
presented, to Bell Atlantic shares using the exchange ratio of 0.768 per
share of Bell Atiantic common stock to one share of NYNEX common
stock. Our stock incentive plans are described below:

FIXED STOCK OPTION PLANS

We have fixed stock 5 _tion plans for key management employees under
which options to purchase Bell Atlantic common stock are granted at
a price equal to the market price of the stock at the date of grant.

Under the 1985 Incentive Stock Option Plan (1SO Plan), key employ-
ees (including employees of the former NYNEX companies, after the
merger) may be granted incentive and/or nonqualified stock options
to purchase shares of common stock and certain key employees may
receive reload options upon tendering shares of common stock to
exercise options. In 1994, we adopted the Options Plus Plan. Under
this plan, we granted nonqualified stock options to approximately
800 managers below the officer level in place of a portion of each
manager’s annual cash bonus in 1994 and 1995. The Options Plus
Plan was discontinued after the January 1995 grant. The Stock
Compensation Plan for Outside Directors entitles each outside direc-
tor to receive up to 5,000 stock options per year. Options are exercis-
able after three years or less and the maximum term is ten years.

Fixed stock option plans covering key management employees of the
former NYNEX companies include the 1990 and the 1995 Stock
Option Plans. The 1990 Stock Option Plan, which expired on
December 31, 1994, permitted the grant of options through December
1994 to purchase shares of common stock. In January 1995, NYNEX
established the 1995 Stock Option Plan. Options under the 1995 Stock
Option Plan are exercisable after three years or less and the maximum
term is ten years. Since the merger with NYNEX, the new options
granted under this plan are reload options. Both the 1990 and 1995
plans will continue to exist until the last outstanding option has been
exercised or has expired.

in 1992, 1994 and 1996, NYNEX established stock option plans {or
associates and management employees other than those eligible to
participate in the other stock option plans. These emplovees were
granted options (with the number of options granted varying accord-
ing to employee level) to purchase a fixed number of shares of
common stock at the market price of the stock on the grant date.
Options granted under these plans are exercisable after two years or
less and the maximum term is ten years.

This table is a summary of the status of the fixed stock option plans:

Weghted Average
Stock Options Exercise Price
Outstanding, December 31, 1995 68,715,924 $ 2493
Granted 31,866,368 3328
Exercised (8,889,406) 2465
Canceled/forfeited (1.099.888) ns
Outstanding, December 31, 1996 90,592,998 2793
Granted 15,670,210 33.10
Exercised (26,238,090) 26.40
Canceled/forfetted (885,184) 2939
Outstanding, December 31, 1997 79,139,934 2928
Granted 24,061,468 46.40
Exercised (23.373.126) 29.01
Canceled/forferted (1.744.533__11 3688
Outstanding. December 31, 1998 78,083,745 3487
e —

Options esercisable, December 31
1996 56,482,864 27.68
1997 63,650,570 2827
1998 55,395,762 3017




The following table summarizes information about fixed stock options outstanding as of December 31, 1998:

Stock Optiens Exercisadie

-on-ou--!

Wi Auer age
Feprmaorung
Comtractus L

faer

Exorune Prces Shares

$15.00 - 19.99
20.00 - 2499
25.00 - 29.99
30.00 - 3499
35.00 - 39.99
40.00 - 4499
45.00 - 4999
50.00 - 54.99
55.00 - 59.99

Total

5,552
8.711.764 35
16,780,585 56
27,780,786 74
1.480.557 86
361,306 91
21,661,784 9.1
1,087,712 9.6
213.699 9.9
78,083,745 T2

PERFORMANCE-SASED SNARE PLANS

Our performance-based share plans provided for the granting of
awards to certain key employess, including employees of the former
NYNEX companies in the form of Bell Atlantic common stock.
Authority to make new grants expired in December 1994, Final
awards were credited to pre-merger employees of Beil Atlantic in
January 1996 and to employees of the former NYNEX companies in
March 1994. Effective January 1, 1998, the Income Deferral Plan
replaced the deferred compensation plans, including deferred
performance shares, and expands the award distribution options for
those employees. Employees who were active as of January 1, 199
had their performance share balances transferred to the Income
Deferral Plan. Those emplovees who were inactive as of that date
continue to hold deferred share balances.

We also have deferred compensation plans that allow members of
the Board of Directors to defer all or a portion of their compensa

tion. Some of these plans provide for returns based on the perfor-
mance of, and eventual settlement in, Bell Atlantic common stock.
Compensation expense for all of these plans is recorded based on
the fair market value of the shares as they are credited to partici-
pants’ accounts. The Income Deferral Plan is accounted for with our
pension plans.

The number of shares outstanding in the performance share plans
were 393,491 at December 31, 1998, 1,099,690 at December 31,
1997, and 1,252,286 at December 31, 1996,

A total of 180,560,000 shares may be distributed under the fixed
stock option plans and the performance-based share plans. As of
December 31, 1998 and 1997, a total of 56,576,766 and 69,615,880
shares of common stock were available for the granting of stock
options under the fixed stock option plans and for distributions of
shares under the performance-based share plans

In addition to plans described above, lusacell maintains a separate
stock option plan for its key employees in which it awards options to
acquire lusacell common stock. The effect of this plan on our
consolidated results of operations was not significant.

1 years

Ao ted Avevage
Esercine Prce

$ 18.00
2307
25.87
33.00
37.76
43.39
47.56
52.13
56.44
3487

Shares Drercise Price

5.552
8.711.764
16,780,585
25,765,996
796,719
318,057
2.720.337
295,852

55,395,762

15- Empioyow Bonefits

The FASB issued SFAS No. 132, “Emplovers’ Disclosures about
Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits,” in February 1998. This
new standard does not change the measurement or recognition of
costs for pensions or other postretirement plans. It standardizes
disclosures and eliminates those that are no longer useful. The infor-
mation provided below for 1998, 1997 and 1996 has been presented
under the requirements of the new standard.

We maintain noncontributory defined benefit pension plans for
substantially all management and associate employees, as well as
postretirement healthcare and life insurance plans for our retirees
and their dependents. We also sponsor savings plans to provide
opportunities for eligible emplovees to save for retirement on a tax-
deferred basis and to encourage emplovees 10 acquire and maintain
an equity interest in our company

In 1997, following the completion of the merger with NYNEX, the

were commingled in a master trust, and effective January 1, 1998 we
established common pension and savings plan ben=fit provisions for
all management emplovees. The disclosures provided for 1997 and
1996 were determined using weighted-average assumptions for the
combined Bell Atlantic and NYNEX benefit plans.

PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS

At December 31, 1998, shares of our common stock accounted for
less than 1% of the plan assets. Substantive commutments for future
amendments are reflected in the pension costs and benefit obliga-
tions. Pension and other postretirement benefits for our associate
employess (approximately 69% of our work force) are subject to
collective bargaining agreements. Modifications 1n associate benefits
have been bargained from time to time, and we may also periodical-
ly amend the benefits in the management plans.

The foliowing tables summarize benefit costs, as well as the benefit
obligations, plan assets, funded status and rate assumptions associ-
ated with pension and postretirement healthcare and life insurance
benefit plans
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DOLLART % MLONS)

Pension Mesithcars and Lite

TRARS (RED PECtmmeR 31 Ty 199 __wwm i 1998 1997 198

4+ —— -

Service cost $ 3886 $ 3558 $ 3986 $ 1011 $ 98.4 $ 1225
Interest cost 18554 18773 1.831.2 593.1 626.3 653.0
Expected return on plan assets (2,544 .9) (2,346.6) (2,189.5) (287.6) (249.1) (214.8)
Amortization of transition asset (82.0) (82.0) (79.6) -

Amortization of prior service cost (132.7) (136.0) (129.9) 52.7

Actuanal (gain), net _auns  e25 94 ) (1018

Net periodic (income) benefit cost _(627.1)  (3940) _  (1586) |
Special termination benefits 1,029.3 687.7 481.3 57.9
Curtailment (gain) loss (inCluding recognition

of prior service cost) (134 4) (221.8) (174.0) 1499
Release of severance and postretirement

medical reserves ___(388) 68.8) 91.0) §

3575

Retirement incentive cost, net* 856.1 3971 2163

Tota! benefit cost $ 2290 3.1 8 877 $ 5107 $ 5748

* See “Retirement Incentives” section for additional information

ASSUMPTIONS
The actuarial assumptions used are based on financial market interest rates, past experience, and management’s best estimate of future benefit
changes and economic conditions. Changes in these assumptions may impact future benefit costs and obligations. The weighted-average
assumptions used in determining expense and benefit obligations are as follows:

Mealthcare and Lite
1997 1998

e a— ——

Discount rate at end of year 7.75%
Long-term rate of return on plan assets for the year 835
Rate of future increases in compensation at
end of year y ' | 440
Medical cost trend rate at end of year { 830
Uttimate (year 2001 for 1998 and 1997,
year 2008 for 1996) . g 475
Dental cost trend rate at end of year 1 . 375
Ultimate (year 2002) d 350

The medical cost trend rate significantly affects the reported postretirement benefit costs and benefit obligations. A one-percentage-point
change in the assumed healthcare cost trend rate would have the following effects:

(DO W Wl LN )

W.—-‘ Ome-PercontagePolat Docronse

Effect on total service and interest cost I $ (46.5) I
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation (515.8)
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P zaces Health e snd Lite

& S .

cna——

Beneft Obhigation
Begynnung of year

Service cost

Interes? cost

Plan amendments
Actuanal (gan) loss. net
Benefits pad
Curtadments

Special termination benefits
Transfers

(2.370.86)

196.3)
1.0293
1538

8617.2
3558 98 4
18773 6263
97.00 -
11734 159.8)
(2.041.5) 537.1)
(159 4)
687.7

229357

End of year 28.080.3

26.732.0

Fal Vadwe of Plan Assets
Beginning of year

Actual return on plan assets
Company contribution
Benefits pana

Transfers

352530
40189

31,0755
6,194.1
241

(2.041.5)
8

6733
182.7
(241.3)

7219
1731
(257.0)

End of year

38248

35.253.0 44626

Fumiad Status
End of yeor
Unrecognued
Actuarial (gan), net
Prior service cost
Transation asset

(10.534.09
13167
(357.1

8.521.0 (4,600.5) (5.027.6)
(9.521.4) (1,951.9) (1.512.1)
(1,493.1) 1432 1923

(439.0) - F

$ (3318

Net amount recognized

(2.932.5) (6.409.2) $ (6347.4)

$ (63474

The changes in benefit obligations from vear to year were caused by
a number of factors, including changes in actuarial assumptions (see
Assumptions ), plan amendments and special termination benefits.

RETIREMENTY INCENTIVES

In 1993, we announced a restructuring plan which included an
accrual of approximately $1.1 billion (pre-tax) for severance and
postretirement medical benefits under an involuntary force reduc-
tion plan. Beginning in 1994, retirement incentives have been
offered under a voluntary program as a means of implementing
substantially all of the work force reductions planned in 1993.

Since the inception of the retirement incentive program, we record-
ed additional costs totaling approximately $3.0 billion (pre-tax)
through December 31, 1998. These additional costs and the corre-
sponding number of employees accepting the retirement incentive
offer for cach year ended December 31 are as follows:

DULLARE N W 0N )

Empiayees

7.209
4.759
2,996
4311
7,299
26574

6940

5149

2358

5131
anay .
$ 29789

The retirement incentive costs are included in Employee Costs in
our statements of income and the accrued liability is a component
of Emplovee Benefit Obligations reported in our consolidated
balance sheets. The additional costs are comprised of special termi-
nation pension and postretirement benefit amounts, as well as
employee costs for other items. These costs have been reduced by
severance and postretirement medical benefit reserves established in
1993 and transferred to the pension and postretirement benefit
liabilities as emplovees accepted the retirement incentive offer.




The retirement incentive program covering management employees
ended on March 31, 1997 and the program covering associate
employees was completed in September 1998,

The following table provides the amounts transferred from the 1993
reserve balance to pension and postretirement benefits (OPEB)
Liabilities:

(DOLLARS ™ Wi 0w )

vRam Persdon OPER Totsd
1994 $ 2930 $ 1790 I $ 4720
1995 816 720 1536
1996 91.0 1260 217.0
1997 816 88.4 1700
vl NSO C 54.6 93.4

$ 5860 $ 5200 $1,106.0

Notes to Consolhidated Financial Statements

The remaining severance and postretirement medical reserves
balances associated with the 1993 restructuring plan were as follows
at December 31, 1997 and 1998:

(DOLLARS oy Mo LIONS )

The obligations of the leveraged ESOP trusts, which we guarantee,
are recorded as Long-term Debt and the offsetting deferred
compensation is classified as a reduction of Sharcowners’
Investment. As the ESOP trusts make principal payments, we reduce
the long-term debt balance. The deferred compensation balance is
reduced by the amount of employee compensation recognized as the
ESOP shares are allocated to participants.

Common stock is allocated from all leveraged ESOP trusts based on
the proportion of principal and interest paid on ESOP debt in a year
to the remaining principal and interest due over the term of the debt.
At December 31, 1998, the number of unallocated and allocated
shares of common stock was 18.9 million and 32.4 million. All lever-
aged ESOP shares are included in carnings per share computations.

We recognize leveraged ESOP cost based on the modified shares
allocated method for the Bell Atlantic leveraged ESOP trusts which
held securities before December 15, 1989 and the shares allocated
method for the NYNEX leveraged ESOP trust which held securities
after December 15, 1989.

ESOP cost and trust activity consist of the following:

1997 1999
(DOLLARS % WL 0ns )
Beginning of year $ 2634 ' $ 934 YEARD EwOGD DECTMBES 31 1998 1997 1996
Utiization (170.0) (93.4) I l
£nd of year $ 934 s = Compensation $ 984 $ 1054 $ 935
incuired 486 570 694
Onicenas (34.0) (36.9) (42.1)
SAVINGS PLANS AND EMPLOYEE STOCK OWNERSHIP PLANS Othar trust earmings and 5 2
W, : X : expenses. net (4) (5) (&)
3 muntfm three leveraged employee n(fck ownership plans aat €30 cont 1126 135.0 1208
(ESOPs). Under these plans, we match a certain percentage of eligi- AdStionsl (reduced) ESOP cost __@% 2.3 146
ble employee contributions with shares of our common stock. In Total ESOP cost $ 1041 $ 122.7 $ 1352
a—
1989, two leveraged ESOPs were established by Bell Atlantic to
purchase Bell Atlantic common stock and fund matching contribu- ~ Dwadends recened for :
tions. In 1990, NYNEX established a leveraged ESOP to fund match- %% %<® iy o STl . -
ing contnibutions to management employees and purchased shares Total company Contributions 10
of NYNEX common stock. At the date of the merger, NYNEX woraged ESOP tusts $ 1439 $ 1365 $ 1418

common stock outstanding was converted to Bell Atlantic shares
using an exchange ratio of 0.768 per share of Bell Atlantic common
stock 1o one share of NYNEX common stock.

The Bell Atlantic leveraged ESOP trusts were funded by the issuance
of $790.0 million in senior notes. The annual interest rate on the
senior notes is 8.17%. The senior notes are payable in semiannual
installments, which began on January 1, 1990 and end in the year
2000. The NYNEX les *raged ESOP trust was established through a
company loan of $450 million, the proceeds of which were used to
purchase common shares of NYNEX stock held in treasury. NYNEX
issued and guaranteed $450 million of 9.55% debentures, the
proceeds of which were principally used to repurchase common
shares in the open market. The debentures require annual payments
of principal and are due on May 1, 2010. Interest payments are due
semiannually. All of the leveraged ESOP trusts repay the debt,
including interest, with funds from our contributions to the ESOP
trusts, as well as dividends received on unallocated and allocated
shares of common stock.

In addition to the ESOPs described above, we maintain savings
plans for associate employees of the former NYNEX companies, and
employees of certain other subsidiaries. Compensation expense
associated with these savings plans was $80.8 million in 1998, $71.1
million in 1997, and $69.1 million in 1996.
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The components of income tax expense from continuing operations
are presented in the following table:

$ 15139 It 12074 I $ 14502
3683 1954
18822 . 1688
1784 2359

State and local ' 483
2842}
57.3
(9C.2)

$ L7823

Investment tax credtts
Other credits
Total incorme tax expense

__(1094)
$ 20081

$ 15292

During 1997, two states in our operating region enacted significant
changes in their tax laws. In New Jersey, a law was enacted that
repealed the gross receipts tax applicabie to telephone companies and
extended the net-income-based corporate business tax to include
telephone companies. This resulted in 3 decrease in deferred state
income tax expense of $75.4 million. In Maryland, a law was enacied
that changed the determination of taxable income. This resulted in
an increase in deferred state income tax expense of $8 3 nulbon.

The following table shows the principal reasons for the difference
between the effective income tax rate and the statutory federal
income tax rate:

sos l

S0% '
4

Deferred taxes arise because of differences in the book and tax bases
of certain assets and liabilities. Significant components of deferred
tax labilities (assets) are shown in the following table:

DOLARS W 0N

$ 36345 | $
24370
4708

(4.065.0)
(94.3)

(117.4)
_11.1148)
_(5.2864)  (5.3915)
Valuation allowance £ 7.2 794
Net deferred tax lLability g . $ 18518

Other

Deferred tax assets include approximately $2,609 million at
December 31, 1998 and $3,126 million at December 31, 1997 related
to postretirement benefit costs recognized under SFAS No. 106,
“Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than
Pensions.” This deferred tax asset will gradually be realized over the
estimated lives of current retirees and employees.

The valuation allowance primarily represents the tax benefits of
capital losses, certain state net operating loss carryforwards, and
other deferred tax assets which may expire without being utilized.
During 1998, the valuation allowance increased $237.8 million. This
increase primanly relates to state net operating losses and the write-
down of certain foreign investments, for which tax benefits may
never be realized.
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We have adopted SFAS No. 131, "Disclosures about Segments of an
Enterprise and Related Information.” SFAS No. 131 establishes stan-
dards for the way companies must determine and report informa
tion about operating segments in their annual and interim reports

We have four reportable segments, which we operate and manage as
strategic business units and we organize by products and services.
We measure and evaluate our reportable segments based on adjust-
ed net income, which excludes undistributed corporate expenses
and special items ansing during each period. Special items are trans-
actions that management has excluded from the business units’
results, but ha included in reported consolidated carnings. We
generally account for intersegment sales of products and services
and asset transfers at current market prices. Intersegment revenues
were not material in 1998, 1997 and 1996. We are not dependent on
any single customer.

Our segments and their principal activities consist of the following:

Segmest ] Description

Domestic Telocom | Domestic wireline teeCOMMUNICAtIONS Se7VICes - Dman
Iy Our nine operating telephone subsidianes that provide
local telephone services from Mane 0 Virginia including
vorce and data Uransport, enhanced and custom calling
features, network access, dweclory assistance, private
hnes and pubiic telephones. This segment aiso provides
customer premises equipment distribution, systems
integration. biling and collections, and Internet access
services. Domestic Telecom represents the aggregation
of our domestic wireline business units (Consumer,
enterpnse, genaral, and network services), which focus
on specific markets to iInCrease revenues and customer
satisfaction

Wireless telecommunications services 10 Customers in
24 states in the United States and foreign wireless
iInvestments servicing customers in Latin America,
Europe and the Pacific Rim

Domestic and international publishing businesses
Including print directories and Internet-based shopping
guides, as well as website creation and hosting and
other electronic commerce services. This segment has
operations prncipally in the United States and Central
Curope

international wireline telecommunications investments
in Europe and the Pacific Rim and lease financing and
other businesses

GEOQQGRAPHIC ARTAS

Our foreign investments are located principally in Europe, Latin
America and the Pacific Rim. Domestic and foreign operating
revenues are based on the location of customers. Long-lived assets
consist of property, plant and equipment (net of accumulated depre-
ciation) and investments in unconsolidated businesses. The table
below presents financial information by major geographic area:

(OOLLARS = W L0ns)

1993 1997 1988

Domestic
Operating revenues
Long-lived assets

Foreign

Operating revenues
Long lived assets
Consocliasted
Operating revenues
Long-livec assets

$ 31,1682 | $ 29.760 2_l $ 28817.7
385278 374315 369297

397.7
2.563.7

3375
41273

4337
27521

31,5659
41,0915

30,1939
40,1836

29,155.2
41,057.0
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(DOLLARS N o

1997 1996

Domestic Telecom
Operating revenues
Depreciation and amortizaton
income (loss) from
unconsohdated businesses
Interest income

interes! expense
Income tax expense
Extraorcnary tem

Net mcome

51951

272
446
9721
19583
(10.8)
31725
41,2168

2
6,409.4

$ 255575 I $ 24.809.2 I $241362

49896 49115
(137
146
906 .4
1.7920

(TN
59
8402
1.5985

29933
394286

2.790.5
386159
39 1519
49138

33,7979
5916

(96.2)
106
2754
1146
228.5
7.7386

1.767.7
9957

$ 26843
303.3

(1411)
20
1408
9.2
796
6.0934

1.706.5
936 6

$ 22152 §$ 21593

94

27
11
165
410.7
656.6
14745

221
340

$ 25,5575 I $ 248092 I $24,1362

37979
22636

1239

31,7429
(177.0)

$ 31,5659

33474
2,215.2
2781
306499
(192.9)

(263.1)

$ 30,1939

26843
2,1593
29,4356 |
(210.8)

(69.8)
$ 29.155.2

$ 31725
2285
6839
135.3
2202
1035
358.4
9653

$ 29833
95.0
656.6
484

3.7933
535

13919

$ 24549

$ 2.790.5
79.6
585.1
118
3.467.0 |
7.2
(72.2)

$ 34020

$41.2168
7.7386
1.741.0
5.353.2
56.049.6

r
i)

$551439

$ 394286
7.089.7
14745
55833

535761
3880

$53964.1

$ 38.618.9
6.093.4
906.2
5.0816
53,7001 |
339.0)
$53.3611

Reconciling items include undistributed corporate expenses, corpo-
rate assets and intersegment climinations. Corporate assets are
comprised primarily of our investment in Viacom. In December 1998,
one-half of our investment in Viacom was repurchased (see Note 3).
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Adjustments include special items and line item reclassifications.
Special items included merger-related costs (see Note 2), retirement
. and other charges. The effect of these
special items on cach of the segment’s net income is provided in the
following table

incentives (see Note 15

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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The tables that follow provide additional financial information
related to our consolidated financial statements:

MY A e ~
S SabtD SORINR 8. 1998 1997 1996 INCOME STATEMENT INFORMATION
DOLLARS W W LN )
Domastic Yelecom I I YEARS ENOED DECTMBIR 31 1998 1997 1998
Reported net income $ 23821018 201650 8 24134 l l
o Fogat, 790.4 976.8 377.1 Tases other than income $ 14659 1S 16069 §S 14999
Adusted net income $ 31725 § 29933 § 27905 DIV S1Pnne mnaay
net of amounts capitaized 1.3759 1.275.2 1.124.1
Global Wireless Capitalized nterest 904 810 1285
Reported net income s 509 § 1125 § 729 Advertising expense 4532 970 3575
Special tems 177.6 (17.6) 6.7
od net s ] 94, 7 L
s s g L 6. e Interest expense incurred includes $40.5 million in 1998, $45.2
Divectory million in 1997 and $42.1 million in 1996 related 10 our lease
Reported net income $ 6616 $ 5637 §$ 8550 financing business. Such interest expense is classified as Other
Special tems LE LR 929  (260.9)] Operating Expenses.
Adusted net income $ 6839 § 6566 § 585.1
BALANCE SHMEET INFORMATION
Reported net income $ 2302 § 286 § 56.9 DOLLANS ™ L0
Special tems 3656 198 (451 o e 1998 1997
Adusted net income $ 1354 § 484 § 118
A mts Payable and Ac ‘wed Uabilities
Reconciing Mems Accounts payable $ 34011 $ 35754
Reported net mcome $ 1009 $ (2664) $ 38 Accrusd expenses 12715 1.000.7
Special tems 25 3200 34 Accrued vacabon pay 6343 618.1
Adusted net income $ 1034 § 536 § 72 Accruedssanes andwages 459 219
Interest payabie 3290 2458
Accrued tases SR - 1 £ NS O
$ 61050 $ 59664
Other Current Liabilities
18 Advance bilings and customer deposits $ 6957 § 6430
= Proposed Bell Atiantic - GTE Merger Diwvidend payable 6106 597.8
Other IR X WA (¢
Bell Atlantic and GTE Corporation have announced a proposed $ 14386 $ _13%50

merger of equals under a definitive merger agreement dated as of July
27, 1998. Under the terms of the agreement, GTE sharcholders will
receive 1.22 shares of Beil Atlantic common stock for each share of
GTE common stock that they own. Bell Atlantic sharcholders will
continue to own their exsting shares after the merger.

We expect the merger to qualify as a pooling of interests. The
completion of the merger is subject to a number of conditions,
including certain regulatory approvals, receipt of opinions that the
merger will be tax-free, and the approval of the shareholders of both
Bell Atlantic and GTE.

CASH FLOW INFORMATION
(DOLLARS N WLIONG)

VEARS ONOCD DECEMSES 31 1998 1997 1996
Cash Paid
Income Laxes, net of

amounts refunded $ 13693018 1402818 16679
Interest, net of amounts

capitaleed 1,201.2 1.2154 1,1625
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20- .omprebeasive ncomae

Effective January 1, 1998, we adopted SFAS No. 130, “Reporting Comprehensive Income.” The new rules establish standards for the reporting
of comprehensive income and its components in financial statements. Comprehensive income consists of net income and other gains and
losses affecting sharcowners’ equity that, under generally accepted accounting principles, are excluded from net income. The adoption of SFAS
No. 130 did not affect our statement of income, but did affe<t the presentation of our statement of changes in sharcowners’ investment and
balance sheet.

Changes in the components of other comprehensive income (loss), net of income tax expense (benefit), are as follows:

TiA®S ESGD DECTMSER Y1, 1998 1997 1996
P o o s I I
Foregn currency transiation adustments, tames of $1.8, $(1.8) and $(4.7) $ (1464 $ 234.0) $ 2218
Less: rec i Y SO ns _ (- - ) 1)
Net foregn currency transiation adjustments _ {146.2) 1234.0) it 2219 |
Unreaitzed Gains (Losses) on Securities
Unrealized holking gains (losses), taxes of $15.9, $0 and $(1.3) 120 35 (5.8)
Less: reclassfication agjustments for gains realzed in
net ncome, taxes of $12.8 $.7 anad $.1 100 3 LRI _ o o n
Net unrealized gans (losses) on securntes .20 y 2. ] . 45_.9!_
Minlmum Pension Liability Adjustment, taxes of $10.7) 16.7) 4 i
Other Comprebenaive incoms (Loss) $ (1609 $ 231.7) $ 2160
The components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) are as follows
= secemesn 11 1998 1997
Forewgn currency transiation adustments $ 6996 ' $ (5534
Unrealized gans (l0sses) on secunbes 21 1
Minsmum pension kabiity agustment ez .
A sdated other compre: ive Income (loss) $ (T4 $ (5533
21- Quarterty Financial info: mation (Unsudited)
P LARL AW NE EACERT PR AnARL AMOUNTS)
Operatryg Operatry _ nCome (L Betore £xtraordnary Nem ) ‘eet
RAFTYR Dkl Moot ocome Amourt Per Srare Basc Per Share Dvstea income (Loss)
1998
March 31 $7.651.1 $1.7120 $ 9096 $ 58 $ 57 $ 8934
June 30 79278 19526 1.027.2 66 65 1,020.9
September 30* 7.909.9 1,130.1 (7.2) (.01) (.01) (8.1)
December 31 80771 18325 1.061.2 66 65 1,059.1
1997
March 31 $7.4165 $14585 $ 6982 $ 45 $ 45 $ 6982
June 30 7.7078 18479 896.8 58 57 896.8
September 30** 7.3739 4210 (80.1 (.05) (.05) (80.1)
December 31 7.695.7 16141 940.0 61 60 940.0

*  Results of operations for the thard quarter of 1998 include approxumately $1,100 malbon (after-tax) of costs assocuated with the completion of our retire-
ment incentive program. as well as charges 10 adyust the carrying values of two Asian investments and 1o write-down assets

** Results of opcrations for the third quarter of 1997 include approximately $1,050 mallion (after-tax) of costs incurred in connection with consolidating oper
ations and combining the organizations of Bell Atlantic and NYNE{ and for other special items arming duning the quarter, as well as charges assocuated with
the completion of the merger and with our retirement incentive program

Income (loss) before extraordinary item per common share » computed independently for cach quarter and the sum of the quarters may not equal the
annual amount.

50
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Report of Management

We, the management of Bell Atlantic Corporation, are responsible
for the consolidated financial statements and the information and
representations contained in this report. The financial statements
have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted account-
ing principles and include amounts based on management’s best
estimates and judgments. Financial information elsewhere in this
report is consistent with that in the financial statements.

Management has established and maintained a system of internal
control which is designed to provide reasonable assurance that
errors or irregularities that could be material to the financial state-
ments are prevented or would be detected within a timely period.
The system of internal control includes widely communicated state-
ments of policies and business practices, which are designed to
require all employees to maintain high ethical standards in the
conduct of our business. The internal controls are augmented by
organizational arrangements that provide for appropriate delegation
of authority and division of responsibility and by a program of
internal audits.

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP, independent accountants. Their audit was conducted in accor-
dance with generally accepted auditing standards and included an
evaluation of our .aternal control structure and selective tests of
transactions. The Report of Independent Accountants appears on

this page.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, which 1s composed
solely of outside directors, meets periodically with the independent
accountants, management and internal auditors to review accounting,
auditing, internal controls, litigation and financial reporting matters.
Both the internal auditors and the independent accountants have free
access to the Audit Committee without management present.

We

Ivan G. Seidenberg
Chairman of the Board
and Chief Executive Officer

/4.4.6 VoAl

Frederic V. Salerno

Senior Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer/
Strategy and Business Development

Doreen A. Toben
Vice President - Controller

Report of Independent Accountants

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SHAREOWNERS OF

BELL ATLANTIC CORPORATION:

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the
accompanying index present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Bell Atlantic Corporation and its subsidiaries at
December 31, 1998 and 1997, and the results of their operations and
their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 1998, in conformity with generally accepted account-
ing principles. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement
schedule listed in the accompanying index presents fairly, in all
material respects, the information set forth therein when read in
conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements.
These financial statements and financial statement schedule are the
responsibility of the Company'’s management; our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these financial statements and the financial
statement schedule based on our audits. We conducted our audits of
these statements in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards which require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the over-
all financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for the opinion expressed above.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, in
1996, the Company changed 1ts method of accounting for directory
publishing revenues and expenses.

Mmﬂ/

New York, New York

February 9, 1999




SOR ol vEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998, 1967 a0 3

DoscrmRan

Allowance for Uncollectibie Accounts Recevable
Year 1998 $ 1.0570
Year 1997 566 1.0426
Year 1996 956 6

Valuation Aliowance for Deferred Tax Assets
Year 1998
Year 1997
Year 1996

Restructunng Reserves
Year 1998
Year 1997
Year 1996

Aiowance For Uncoliectible Fmance Lease Recenable
Year 1998 $
Year 1997
Year 1996

(s} Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts Receivable includes (1) amounts previously written off which were credited directiv 1o this sccount when recovered,
and (2) accruals charged to accounts payable for antipated uncollectible charges on purchases of accounts recervable from others which were balled by us

Allowance for Uncollectible Finance Lease Recervables includes amounts tramsferred from other aciounts

(b} Amounts writien off as uncolicctible o transferred to other accounts or utilized (except for the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets




omputation ot Katio o arnings to harges

VEARS N4 GRCOWOSER 51

Income before provision for income taxes,
extraordinary tems, and cumulative effect of
changes in accounting principles $ 49112

Minority interest 1309

Loss (income) from unconsolidated businesses (14.2)

Dividends from unconsolidated businesses 1948

interest expense, including interest related to
lease financing activities 11241

Portion of rent expense representing inlerest 177.3

Amortization of capitalized interest o 100

Income, as adjusted $ 65341

Fixed charges:
interest expense, inrluding interest related to

lease financing activities $ 13759 $ 12752 $ 11241 $ 1.305.0
Portion of rent expense representing interest 185.2 1909 177.3 1771
Capitalized interest 904 81.0 1285 73.2
Priority distributions - 188 585 471
Preferred stock  vidend requirement 208 o 155 149 9.8

Fixed Charges $ 16720 $ 15814 $ 15033 $ 16122

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges 431 3.69 4.35 3.94

* Restated as required by revision of ltem 503(d) of Regulation S-K
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BELL ATLANTIC COMMUNICATIONS, INC. South Dakota Tariff No. |
Original Title Page

Specialized Common Carrier Service

Regulations and Rates

of

BELL ATLANTIC COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

This tariffis filed in accordance with the Rules and Regulations of the South Dakota
Public Utilities Commission. All services contained in this tanff are competitive.

This tanff contains the descriptions, regulations, and rates applicable to the
furnishing of service and facilities for interexchange telecommunications services
provided by Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc. ("BACI") within the State of South
Dakota. This tanff is on file with the Commission. Copies may be inspected during
normal business hours at the Company’s principal place of business at 1320 N.
Courthouse Road, 9* Floor, Arlington, Virginia 22201.

Issued: Effective:

Issued By: Dorothy L. Jones, Acting Director - Regulatory
Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc.
1320 N. Courthouse Road, 9th Floor
Arlington, Virginia 22201 5d09900




BELL ATLANTIC COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

South Dakota Tariff No. |
Original Page 1

CHECK SHEET

Pages of this tariff listed below are effective as of the date shown at the bottom of the respective
page(s). Original and revised pages as named below comprise all changes from the original tariffand

are currently in effect as of the

date on the bottom of this page.

Number of Number of

Pag: Revisions Page Revisions
Title Original * 26 Original »
1 Original . 27 Original »
2 Original s 28 Original .
3 Original s 29 Original .
4 Original . 30 Original o
5 Original . 31 Original .
6 Original s 32 Original y
7 Original . 33 Original .
8 Original » 34 Original -
9 Original ‘ 35 Original .
10 Original ¢ 36 Original .
11 Original b 37 Original e
12 Original ‘ 38 Original .
13 Original g 39 Original ”
14 Original ” 40 Original .
15 Original e 41 Original g
16 Original » 42 Original =
17 Original . 43 Original s
18 Original .

19 Original .

20 Original .

21 Original .

22 Original $

23 Original .

24 Original y

25 Original .

* - Indicates those pages included with this filing.

Issued: Effective:
Issued By: Dorothy L. Jones, Acting Director - Regulatory

Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc.
1320 N. Courthouse Road, 9th Floor
Arlington, Virginia 22201




South Dakota Tariff No. 1

BELL ATLANTIC COMMUNICATIONS, INC.
Original Page 2

CONCURRING CARRIERS
None
CONNECTING CARRIERS
Nomne
OTHER PARTICIPATING CARRIERS

Noae

Issued: Effective:

Issued By: Dorothy L. Jones, Acting Director - Regulatory
Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc.
1320 N. Courthouse Road, 9th Floor
Arlington, Virginia 22201




BELL ATLANTIC COMMUNICATIONS, INC. South Dakota Tariff No. 1
Oniginal Page 3

EXPLANATION OF SYMBOLS AND ABBREVIATIONS

SYMBOLS

(C) To signify changed regulation.

(D) To signify discontinued rate or regulation.

() To signify an increase.

(M) To signify matter relocated without change.

(N) 1o signify new rate or regulation.

(R)  To signify reduction.

(S)  To signify reissued matter.

(T)  To signify change in text but no change in rate or regulation.

() To signify a correction.

ABBREVIATIONS

BACI - Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc.
ISDN - Integrated Services Digital Network
LEC - Local Exchange Company

MTS - Measured Toll Service

PBX - Private Branch Exchange

Effective:

Dorothy L. Jones, Acting Director - Regulatory
Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc.
1320 N. Courthouse Road, 9th Floor

Arlington, Virginia 22201




BELL ATLANTIC COMMUNICATIONS, INC. South Dakota Tanff No. 1

Original Page 4
TABLE OF CONTENTS
DA OB e ey e R R 6
- ¥ R e At S AL it g e 9
Description of ServiceandRates .. ....................... 32
MICEl I aeONE SOIVIORS . .. s i et e i, 38

Effective:

Dorothy L. Jones, Acting Director - Regulatory
Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc.
1320 N. Courthouse Road, 9th Floor
Arlington, Virginia 22201




BELL ATLANTIC COMMUNICATIONS, INC. South Dakota Tariff No. |
Original Page 5

APPLICATION OF TARIFF

The regulations, rules and conditions set forth in this tariff apply to the provision of
non-facilities based long distance resold intrastate telecommunications services
fumnished within the State of South Dakota by Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc.,
subject to the jurisdiction of the South Dakota Public Utilities Commission.

Issued: Effective:

Issued By: Dorothy L. Jones, Acting Director - Regulatory
Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc.
1320 N. Courthouse Road, 9th Floor
Arlington, Virginia 22201 V900




BELL ATLANTIC COMMUNICATIONS, INC. South Dakota Tanff No. |
Original Page 6

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS
The following definitions are applicable to this tariff:

Access Line - A local channel for voice, data, or video communications which connects the
Customer location to a location of the Company or its underlying carmier or service provider.

Account - The Customer who has agreed, orally or in writing, to honor the terms of service
established by the Company. An Account may have more than one service or telephone number
and/or telephone numbers billed to the same Customer address. An Account may include multiple
locations for the same Customer.

Account Code - A numerical code, assigned to the Customer, to enable the Company (o complete
calls as authoiized by the Customer. Multiple Account Codes may be assigned to the Customer.

Aggregator - Any person or other legal entity that may be a Customer and, in the ordinary course
of its operations, makes telephones available to the public or to transient users of its premises, for
telephone calls using a provider of operator services.

Authorization Code - A pre-defined series of numbers 1o be dialed by the Customer upon access
to the Company’s system to identify the caller and validate the caller’s authorization to use the
services provided. The Customer is responsible for charges incurred through the use of his or her
assigned Authorization Code. An example of an Authorization Code is a calling card account
number and personal identification number.

Business Customer - For the purpose of this tariff, a Business Customer is a customer of the
Company whose primary use of the Company’s service is for business purposes. A Business
Customer is also a Customer who accesses the Company's service using an access line that has been
assigned to a business class of service by the local service provider.

Calling Card Call - A Calling Card Call is an operator assisted or automated call placed by a
Customer where the call charges are billed to a local telephone company issued authorization code
rather than to the originating or terminating telephone number.

Effective:

Dorothy L. Jones, Acting Director - Regulatory
Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc.
1320 N. Courthouse Road, 9th Floor
Arlington, Virginia 22201




BELL ATLANTIC COMMUNICATIONS, INC. South Dakota Tariff No. 1
Original Page 7

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS, (Cont'd.)

Casual Calling - A service whereby the Customer accesses the Company’s service by dialing a
Company-provided access code prior to placing the call, such as 101XXXX + 1 + area code +
destination number.

Collect Call - A billing arrangement by which the charges for a call may be billed to the called
party, providid the called party agrees to accept the charges.

Commission - The South Dakota Public Utilities Commission.

Company - Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc. unless stated otherwise.

Consumer - A person who is not a Customer initiating any telephone calls using operator services.
Customer - Any person, firm, partnership, corporation or other entity which subscribes to or uses
service under the terms and conditions of this tanff. The Customer is responsible for the payment
of charges for service offered by the Company which are subscribed to or used by the Customer. The

Customer is also responsible for payment of charges for a third person's use of service to which the
Customer subscribes.

Equal Access - The ability of the Company to serve Customers on a presubscribed basis rather than
through the use of dial access codes such as, 101 XXXX.

Initial And Additional Period - The Initial Period denotes the interval of time allowed for a service
at the rate specified for a connection between given service points. The Additional Period denotes
the interval of time used for measuring and charging for time in excess of the Initial Peniod.

LATA - Local access and transport arca. A geographic area established by the US District Court for
the District of Columbia in Civil Action No. 82-0192.

LEC - Local Exchange Company

Issued: Effective:

Issucd By: Dorothy L. Jones, Acting Director - Regulatory
Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc.
1320 N. Courthouse Road, 9th Floor
Arlington, Virginia 22201 109900




BELL ATLANTIC COMMUNICATIONS, INC. South Dakota Tariff No. 1
Original Page 8

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS, (Cont'd.)

Operator Station Call - A service whereby the Customer places a non-Person to Person call with
the assistance of an operator (live or automated).

Person to Person Call - A service whereby the person originating the call specifies a particular
person to be reached, or a particular station, room number, department, or office to be reached.

Premises - The physical space designated by the Customer for the termination of the Company's
service.

Residential Customer - For the purpose of this tariff, a Residential Customer is a Customer of the
Company whose primary use of the Company's service is for personal use in a house, apartment or
other residential dwelling. A Residential Customer is also a Customer who accesses the Company’s
service using an access line that has not been assigned a business class of service by the local service
provider.

Switched Access - A method for reaching the Company through the local service provider's
switched network whereby the Customer uses standard and/or ISDN local lines.

Terminal Equipment - Telecommunications devices, apparatus and associated wiring on the
Premises of the Customer.

Third Party Billing - A billing arrangement by which the charges for a call may be billed to a
telephone number that is different from the calling number and the called number.

Travel Card - .\ proprietary calling card offered by Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc. which is
accessed by dialing a Company-provided access number.

Issued: Effective:

Issued By: Dorothy L. Jones, Acting Director - Regulatory
Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc.
1320 N. Courthouse Road, 9th Floor
Arlington, Virginia 22201 sdo9900




BELL ATLANTIC COMMUNICATIONS, INC. South Dakota TanfT No. 1

Original Page 9

2.1

SECTION 2 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS
Undertaking of BACI and Locations of Service

The Company’s service is fumnished to Customers for interexchange communications
onginating and terminating within South Dakota under the terms of this tanff. The
Company’s service is available twenty-four hours per day, seven days per week, except as
otherwise provided in the Company’s tariffs..

Travel Card services will be provided within other states, between this state and other states,
and between other states only where the Company has all necessary authorizations from the
Federal Communications Commission and the applicable state commission. Interstate Travel
Card services will be provided under tanffs filed with the FCC. Travel Card services
furnished within other states will be provided under taniffs filed with such other states or
prevailing terms where taniffs are not required by applicable law.

Issued:

Effective:

Issued By: Dorothy L. Jones, Acting Director - Regulatory

Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc.
1320 N. Courthouse Road, 9th Floor
Arlington, Virginia 22201 1409900




BELL ATLANTIC COMMUNICATIONS, INC. South Dakota Tan No. 1
Original Page 10

SECTION 2 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS, (Cont'd.)
2.2 Use of Service

2.2.1 Service may be used for any lawful purpose for which it is technically suited. Service
may not be used for unlawful purposes.

2.2.2 The Customer obtains no property right or interest in the use of any specific type of
facility, service, equipment, number, process, or code. All rights, title and interest to
such items remain, at all times, solely with the Company or its underlying carrier or
service provider, as appropriate.

2.2.3 Recording of telephone conversations transmitted over service provided by the
Company under this tariff is prohibited except as authorized by applicable federal,
state and local laws.

Issued: Effective:

Issued By: Dorothy L. Jones, Acting Director - Regulatory
Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc.
1320 N. Courthouse Road, 9th Floor
Arlington, Virginia 22201 309900




BELL ATLANTIC COMMUNICATIONS, INC. South Dakota Tariff No. |

Oniginal Page 11

SECTION 2 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS, (Cont'd.)

23 Limitations of Service

231

23.2

233

235

Service is offered subject to the availability of the necessary facilities and/or
equipment, including, but not limited to, billing systems, and subject to the
provisions of this tariff. The Company may decline applications for service to or
from a location where the necessary facilitics or equipment are not available. The
Company may discontinue fumnishing service ir: accordance with the terms of this
tariff.

The Company reserves the right to discontinue or limit service when necessitated by
conditions beyond its control (examples of these conditions are more fully set forth
elsewhere in this tariff), or when service is used in violation of provisions of this
tariff or the law.

The Company does not undertake to transmit messages, but offers the use of its
service when available, and, as more fully set forth elsewhere in this taniff, shall not
be liable for errors in transmission or for failure to establish connections.

The Company reserves the right to refuse to process Third Party Billed calls when
the billed party and/or standard validation techniques do not confirm acceptance, or
based on characteristics of the originating or terminating location.

The Company reserves the right to refuse to process Travel Card, Calling Card/credit
¢ ard billed calls when authorization for use of the card cannot be validated or to
prevent the unlawful use of service. The Customer may be required to provide an
acceptable alternate billing method or the Company may refuse to place the call.

Issued By:

Effective:

Dorothy L. Jones, Acting Director - Regulatory
Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc.
1320 N. Courthouse Road, 9th Floor
Arlington, Virginia 22201 09900




BELL ATLANTIC COMMUNICATIONS, INC. South Dakota Tariff No. 1

Original Page 12

SECTION 2 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS, (Cont'd.)

23 Limitations of Service, (cont'd.)

. 3.6

2.3.7

238

The Company reserves the right to discontinue service, limit service, or to impose
requirements as required to meet changing regulatory or statutory rules and
standards, or when such rules and standards have an adverse material affect on the
business or economic feasibility of providing service, as determined by the Company
in its reasonable judgment. In such circumstances, the Company's tariff will be
revised accordingly.

Service is offered subject to restrictions imposed upon the Company by any authority
having jurisdiction over the Company’s provision of service.

The Company may require the Customer to sign an application for service form
furnished by the Company and to establish credit as provided in this tariff, as a
condition precedent to the initial establishment of service. The Company’s acceptance
of an application or order for service by an applicant whose credit has not been duly
established may be subject to the deposit , advance payment and/or refusal of service
provisions described in this tariff. The Company may also require a signed
authorization from the Customer for additions to or changes in existing service for
such Customer. An application for service canceled by the applicant or by the
Company prior to the establishment of service is subject to the provisions of this
tariff conceming cancellation charges.

Issued:

Issued By:

Effective:

Dorothy L. Jones, Acting Director - Regulatory
Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc.
1320 N. Courthouse Road, 9th Floor
Arlington, Virginia 22201 sdo9900




BELL ATLANTIC COMMUNICATIONS, INC. South Dakota Tariff No. |

Original Page 13

24

SECTION 2 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS, (Cont'd.)

Assignment or Transfer

The Customer may not transfer or assign the use of service offered by the Company without
the express prior written consent of the Company. Such transfer or assignment shall only
apply where there is no interruption of the use or in the location of service. All terms and
conditions contained in this tariff shall apply to all such permitted transferees or assignees,
as well as all conditions of service.

Limitation of Liabilities

2.5.1

The liability of the Company for damages of any nature arising from errors, mistakes,
omissions, interruptions, or delays of the Company, its agents, servants, or
employees, in the course of establishing, furnishing, rearranging, moving,
terminating, or changing the service or facilities or equipment shall not exceed an
amount equal to the charges applicable under this tarifT(calculated on a proportionate
basis where appropniate) for the period during which such error, mistake, omission,
interruption or delay occurs.

In no event shall the Company be liable for any incidental, indirect, special, or
consequential damages (including, but not limited to, lost revenue or profits) of any
kind whatsoever regardless of the cause or foreseeability thereof.

When the services or facilities of other common carriers or other service providers
are used separately or in conjunction with the Company's services, facilities or
equipment in establishing connection to points not reached by the Company’s
services, facilities or equipment, the Company shall not be liable for any act or
omission of such other common carriers, or other service providers, or their
respective agents, servants or employces.

Effective:

Dorothy L. Jones, Acting Director - Regulatory
Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc.
1320 N. Courthouse Road, 9th Floor
Arlington, Virginia 22201



BELL ATLANTIC COMMUNICATIONS, INC. South Dakota Tariff No. 1

Original Page 14

SECTION 2 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS, (Cont'd.)

2.5 Limitation of Liabilities, (cont'd.)

254

255

2.5.6

The Company shall not be liable for any failure of performance hereunder if such
failure is due to any cause or causes beyond the reasonable control of the Company.
Such causes shall include, without limitation, acts of God, fire, explosion, vandalism,
cable cut, meteorological phenomena, floods, storm or other similar occurrence, any
law, order, regulation, direction, action or request of the United States government
or of any other government or of any civil or military authority, national
emergencies, insurrections, riots, wars, strikes, lockouts or work stoppages or other
labor difficulties, supplier failures, shortages, breaches or delays, or preemption of
existing service to restore service in compliance with state and federal laws.

The Company shall not be liable for interruptions, delays, errors, or defects in
transmission, or for any injury whatsoever, caused by the Customer, or the
Customer's agents, servants, employees, or customers, or by services, facilities or
equipment provided by the Customer or such agents, servants, employees, or
customers.

The Company shall not be liable for unlawful use, or use by any unauthorized person,
of its service, or for any claim arising out of a breach in the privacy or security of
communications transmitted by the Company. The Company is not liable for any
damages, including toll usage charges, the Customer may incur as a result of the
unauthorized use of its telecommunications facilities. Such unauthorized use of its
telecommunications facilities includes, but is not limited to, the placement of calls
through Customer-provided equipment which are transmitted or carried on the
Company's network. The Customer is responsible for controlling access to, and the
use of, its own telecommunications facilities.

Issued:

Issued By:

Effective:

Dorothy L. Jones, Acting Director - Regulatory
Beli Atlantic Communications, Inc.
1320 N. Courthouse Road, 9th Floor
Arlington, Virginia 22201 1da¥900
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BELL ATLANTIC COMMUNICATIONS, INC. South Dakota Tanff No. |
Original Page 15

SECTION 2 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS, (Cont'd.)
25 Limitation of Liabilities, (cont'd.)

257 W Vv V

Effective:

Issued By: Dorothy L. Jones, Acting Director - Regulatory
Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc.
1320 N. Courthouse Road, 9th Floor
Arlington, Virginia 22201 3do9900




BELL ATLANTIC COMMUNICATIONS, INC. South Dakota Tariff No. |
Original Page 16

SECTION 2 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS, (Cont'd.)
2.6 Liabilities of the Customer

The Customer shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Company (including the costs
of litigation and reasonable attorney’s fees) against:

(i) Claims for libel, slander, infringement of copyright or unauthorized use of any
trademark, trade name or service mark arising out of the material, data, information,
or other content transmitted over the Company’s services, facilities or equipment; and

(i)  Claims for patent infringement arising from combining or connecting the Company's
services, facilities or equipment with services, facilities, equipment, apparatus or
systems of the Customer or the Customer’s agents, servants, employees, or
customers; and

(iii)  All other claims (including, without limitation, claims for damage to any business or
property, or injury to, or death of, any person) arising out of any act or omission of
the Customer, or the Customer’s agents, servants, employees, or customers, in
connection with any service or facilities or equipment provided by the Company.

Issued: Effective:

Issued By: Dorothy L. Jones, Acting Director - Regulatory
Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc.
1320 N. Courthouse Road, 9th Floor
Arlington, Virginia 22201 sdo9900




BELL ATLANTIC COMMUNICATIONS, INC. South Dakota Tariff No. 1
Original Page 17

SECTION 2 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS, (Cont'd.)
2.7 Taxes and Fees

2.7.1 All state and local taxes (¢.g., gross receipls tax, sales tax, municipal utilities tax) are
listed as a separate line item on the Customer’s bill and are not included in the quoted
rates and charges set forth in this tariff.

2.7.2 To the extent that a municipality, other political subdivision or agency of
government, or the Commission imposes upon and collects from the Company a
gross receipts tax, occupation tax, license tax, permit fee, franchise fee, or regulatory
fee, such taxes and fees shall, insofar as practicable and allowed by law, be billed pro
rata to Customers receiving service from the Company within the territorial limits of
such municipality, other political subdivision or agency of government.

Issued: Effective:

Issued By: Dorothy L. Jones, Acting Director - Regulatory
Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc.
1320 N. Courthouse Road, 9th Floor
Arlington, Virginia 22201 sdo9900




BELL

ATLANTIC COMMUNICATIONS, INC. South Dakota Tariff No. 1
Original Page 18

2.8

2.9

SECTION 2 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS, (Cont'd.)
Terminal Equipment

The Company's facilities and service may be used with or terminated in Customer-provided
terminal equipment or Customer-provided communications systems, such as atelephone set,
PBX or key system. Such terminal equipment shall be furnished and maintained at the
expense of the Customer, except as otherwise provided in this tariff or separately agreed
upon by the Customer and the Company. The Customer is responsible for all costs at his or
her premises, including, but not limited to, personnel, wiring, electrical power, and the like,
incurred in the use of the Company's service. When such terminal equipment is used, the
equipment shall comply with applicable rules and regulations of the Federal
Communications Commission, including, but not limited to, Part 68. In addition, equipment
must comply with generally accepted minimum protective criteria standards and engineering
requirements of the telecommunications industry which are not barred by the Federal
Communications Commission.

Installation

No installation of the Company's services at the Customer’s premises is required to use the
Company's service. Service is initiated by request of the Customer. The Company may refuse
to provision service when the Company cannot verify that the party requesting the
Company's service is authonized to request or to change service.

Issued:

Effective:

Issued By: Dorothy L. Jones, Acting Director - Regulatory

Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc.
1320 N. Courthouse Road, 9th Floor
Arlington, Virginia 22201 sdo9900



BELL ATLANTIC COMMUNICATIONS, INC. South Dakota Tariff No. |

Original Page 19

SECTION 2 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS, (Cont'd.)

2.10 Payment for Service

2.10.1

2.10.2

2.10.3

Service is provided and billed on a monthly basis unless otherwise stated in the
service description in this tariff. Bills are due and payable upon receipt. A late fee
of 1.5% per month (or the maximum amount allowed by law, whichever is lower)
may apply to any unpaid and past due balance. The late fee may be charged by the
Company directly or by the Company’s billing service provider. The late fee begins
to accrue no sooner than the 25* day after the billing date. In the event that the
Company incurs fees or expenses, including attorney's fees, collecting, or attempting
to collect, any charges owed to the Company, the Company may charge the
Customer, and the Customer will pay, all such fees and expenses reasonably
incurred. Collection fees on overdue charges apply in addition to all applicable late
payment charges and shall begin to accrue when the Account is assigned to an
outside collection agency.

The Customer is responsible for payment of all charges for service fumished to or
used by the Customer, or the Customer’s agents, servants, employees or customers.
The Customer is also responsible for payment of charges for all other third persons’
use of service to which the Customer subscribes. All charges due from the Customer
are payable to the Company or to the Company's authorized billing agent in
immediately available U.S. dollars. Any objections to billed charges must be
reported to the Company or its billing agent within six months after receipt of bill.
Adjustments to the Customer’s bill shall be made to the extent that circumstances
exist which reasonably indicate that such changes are appropriate.

The security of the Customer’s Authorization Codes is the responsibility of the
Customer. All calls placed using such Authorization Codes shall be billed to and
shall be the obligation of the Customer. The Customer is responsible for all calls
placed via the Customer’s Authorization Code, whether such use is as a result of the
Customer’s intentional or negligent disclosure of the Authorization Code or
otherwise. However, the Customer shall not be responsible for charges in connection
with the unauthorized use of Authorization Codes arising after the Customer notifies
the Company of the loss, theft, or other breach of security of such Authorization
Codes.

Issued:

Issued By:

Effective:

Dorothy L. Jones, Acting Director - Regulatory
Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc.
1320 N. Courthouse Road, 9th Floor
Arlington, Virginia 22201 5d09900




BELL ATLANTIC COMMUNICATIONS, INC. South Dakota Tariff No. |

Original Page 20

SECTION 2 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS, (Cont'd.)

2.10 Payment for Service, (cont'd.)

2.104

2.10.5

2.10.6

2.10.7

2.10.8

The Company reserves the right to assess a charge of $20.00, or the maximum
amount allowed by law (whichever is less), whenever a check or draft presented for
payment of service is not accepted by the institution upon which it is written.

The Customer shall be responsible for payment of rates and charges for all calls
placed by or through Customer’s equipment by any person. In particular and without
limitation of the foregoing, the Customer is responsible for payment of rates and
charges for any calls placed by or through the Customer’s equipment via any remote
access features.

The Company reserves the right to examine the credit record or other available
external sources of credit of an applicant or Customer. The Customer whose service
has been disconnected for nonpayment of bills shall be required to pay any unpaid
balance due to the Company before service is restored, and a deposit may be
required.

The Company shall make no refund of overpayment by the Customer unless the
claim for such overpayment, together with proper evidence, is submitted within two
years of the date of alleged overpayment. In calculating refunds, any applicable
discounts shall be adjusted based upon the actual monthly usage after all credits and
adjustments have been applied.

Billing Disputes / Customer Complaint Procedure

South Dakota law provides for Customers to dispute a bill up to 180 days from
receipt of the bill. While the charge is in dispute, the Customer shall only be required
to pay the undisputed portion in full. The Company will resolve any disputes brought
to its attention as promptly and effectively as possible. Customer Service
Representatives can be reached via the following toll-free telephone number: 1-800-
556-2355. Billing Inquires may be directed to 1-800-556-2355.

Any unresolved disputes may be directed to the attention of the South Dakota Public
Utilities Commission, State Capitol Building, 500 East Capitol Avenue, Pierre, South
Dakota 57501-5070. The toll free telephone number is 1-800-332-1782 and TTY
through Relay South Dakota 1-800-877-1113.
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SECTION 2 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS, (Cont'd.)

2.11 Deposits

2.11.1

2.11.2

2.1i.3

Each applicant for service may be required to establish credit. Any applicant whose
credit has not been duly established may be required to make a deposit at the time of
application to be held as a guarantee of payment of charges. In addition, an existing
Customer may be required to make a deposit or increase a deposit currently held. The
Company shall pay interest on deposits pursuant to applicable rules and regulations.

A deposit shall not exceed the estimated charges for two months service for
customers with past service and average cost of service for two months or $130
whichever is less for customer with no past service, and shall be returned: 1) when
an application for service has been canceled prior to the establishment of service; or
2) at the end of twelve (12) consecutive months of a satisfactory credit history; or 3)
upon discontinuation of service. The Company shall apply the deposit against any
outstanding balances due. If a credit balance exists after such application, the
Company shall refund the balance to the Customer.

The fact that a security deposit has been made in no way relieves the Customer from
the prompt payment of bills upon presentation.

2.12 Advance Payments

The Company reserves the right to require an advance payment from the Customer instead
of, or in addition to, a security deposit. The advance payment shall be in an amount equal to,
or less than, estimated installation charges plus two months' estimated billing.
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SECTION 2 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS, (Cont'd.)

2.13 Interruption of Service

2.13.1

z.13.2

2.133

Credit allowances for interruptions of service which are not due to the Company's
testing or adjusting, to the negligence or other wrongful act or omission of the
Customer, or to the failure of services, channels, equipment and/or communications
systems provided by the Customer or the Customer’s agents, servants, employees,
or customers, are subject to the general liability provisions set forth in this tanff. It
shall be the obligation of the Customer to notify the Company immediately of any
interruption in service for which a credit allowance is desired by the Customer.
Before giving such notice, the Customer shall ascertain that the trouble is not within
his or her control, or is not in wiring or equipment, if any, furnished by the Customer.
Interruptions caused by Customer-provided, or Company-provided, automatic
dialing equipment are not deemed an interruption of service as defined herein since
the Customer has the option of using the long distance network via dial access code.

For purposes of credit computation, every month shall be considered to have 30 days
and every day 24 hours. For services with a monthly recurring charge, no credit shall
be allowed for an interruption of continuous duration of less than two hours. For toll
services billed on a per-call basis, credits will be limited to, at maximum, the price
of the initial period of the individual call that was interrupted.

Credit is computed by multiplying the monthly recurring rate by the ratio that the
number of hours in the period of interruption bears to 720 hours (30 days times 24
hours). The credit shall be based upon the non-usage charges for the month during
which the interruption occurred, excluding equipment and access line charges.

An interruption is measured from the time the Customer notifies the Company of the
interruption until the trouble is cleared. Each interruption is considered separately for
the purposes of establishing credit allowance. Unless otherwise specified in this
tariff, the credit for a billing period shall not exceed the monthly rate.
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SECTION 2 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS, (Cont'd.)
2.14 Cancellation, Suspension and Restoration of Service

Service continues to be provided until canceled by the Customer or until canceled by the
Company as set forth below. The Company may render bills subsequent to the cancellation
of service for charges incurred before cancellation. The Customer shall pay such bills in full
in accordance with the payment terms of this tariff.

2.14.1 Cancellation by the Customer

The Customer may have service canceled upon written or verbal notice to the
Company. The Customer shall pay the Company for service furnished until the
cancellation date specified by the Customer or until the date that the written
cancellation notice is received, whichever is later. Cancellation of service is subject
to carly termination liability obligations as set forth in the tariff.
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SECTION 2 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS, (Cont'd.)
2.14 Cancellation and Restoration of Service, (cont'd.)
2.14.2 Refusal, Suspension or Cancellation of Service Without Prior Notice

A. Service may be suspended by the Company, without prior notice to the
Customer, by blocking traffic and all services to certain cities, countries,
NPA-NXX exchanges, or individual telephone numbers, or by blocking calls
using certain Customer Travel Cards, when the Company deems it necessary
to take such action to prevent unlawful or fraudulent use of its service. The
Company will restore services as soon as it can be provided without undue
risk, and will upon request by the Customer, assign new Travel Card numbers
and authorization codes to replace ones that have been deactivated.

B. For violation of law or this tariff: Except as provided elsewhere in this tariff,
the Customer shall be subject to refusal, suspension or cancellation of
service, without prior notice, for any violation of terms of this tariff, for any
actual or apparent violation of any law, rule, regulation, order, decree or
policy of any government authority of competent jurisdiction, or by reason
of any order or decision of a court or other government authority having
Jurisdiction which prohibits the Company from fumnishing such service or
prohibits Customer from subscribing to, using, or paying for such service.

C. For the Company to comply with any order or request of any governmental
authority having junsdiction: The Customer shall be subject to refusal,
suspension or cancellation of service, without prior notice, in order to permit
the Company to comply with any order or request of any governmental
authority having jurisdiction.
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SECTION 2 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS, (Cont'd.)

2.14 Cancellation and Restoration of Service, (cont'd.)

2.14.2 Refusal, Suspension or Cancellation by the Company Without Prior Notice,
(cont'd.)

D.

For unauthorized or unlawful use of Travel Card numbers and Authorization
Codes: Travel Card Numbers and Authorization Codes are issued by the
Company only to the Customer and may not be sold or otherwise distributed
without the written consent of the Company. Any unauthorized or unlawful
use of such numbers or Authorization Codes shall result in the immediate
refusal, suspension or cancellation of service without prior notice.

The Company may refuse, suspend, or cancel service immediately and
without prior notice in the event of excessive network usage which is
determined to be fraudulent or beyond the Customer’s demonstrated ability

1o pay.

Without prior notice in the event of Customer or Customer’s authorized user
use of equipment in such a manner as to adversely affect the Company’s
facilities and/or equipment or service to others.

Without prior notice in the event of tampering with the facilities and/or
equipment or services owned by the Company or its suppliers and used to
provide service under this tanf¥.

Without prior notice in the event of unauthorized or fraudulent use of service.
Whenever service is discontinued for fraudulent use of service, the Company
may, before restoring service, require the Customer to make, at his or her
own expense, all changes in facilities or equipment necessary to eliminate
illegal use and to pay an amount reasonably estimated as the loss in revenues
resulting from such fraudulent use.
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SECTION 2 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS, (Cont'd.)
2.14 Cancellation and Restoration of Service, (cont'd.)
2.14.3 Refusal, Suspension, or Cancellation of Service with Notice

The Company may refuse, suspend or cancel service under the following conditions
provided that, unless otherwise stated in this tariff, existing Customers shall be given
15 days written notice to comply with any rule or remedy any deficiency.

A. The Company reserves the right to refuse, suspend, or cancel service for
applicants or Customers who cannot show reasonable credit-worthiness or
cannot satisfy deposit requirements set forth in this tariff.

B. For nonpayment: The Company, by written notice to the Customer and in
accordance with applicable law, may refuse, suspend or cancel service
without incurring any liability when there is an unpaid balance for service
that is more than 30 days overdue.

e For returned checks: The Customer whose check or draft is returned unpaid
for any reason, after two attempts at collection, shall be subject to refusal,
suspension or cancellation of service in the same manner as provided for

nonpayment of overdue charges.

D. For lack of use: The Company, by written notice to the Customer, may
refuse, suspend or cancel service in the same manner as provided for
nonpayment of overdue charges if after three full billing cycles the service
has not been used.
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SECTION 2 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS, (Cont'd.)

2.14 Cancellation and Restoration of Service, (cont'd.)
. 14.3 Refusal, Suspension, or Cancellation of Service with Notice, (cont’d.)

E. For use of service for any purpose other than that described in this taniff for
the application for service.

F. For neglect or refusal to provide reasonable access to the Company or its
agents, employees, or contractors for the purpose of inspection and
maintenance of facilities and/or equipment owned by the Company or its
suppliers and used to provide service under this tanff.
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SECTION 2 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS, (Cont'd.)
2.14 Cancellation and Restoration of Service, (cont'd.)
2.i4.4 Restoration of Service

If service has been refused, suspended, or canceled for nonpayment or as otherwise
provided herein and the Customer wishes it continued, service shall, at the
Company's discretion, be restored when all past due amounts are paid or the event
giving rise to the refusal, suspension, or cancellation (if other than nonpayment) is
corrected.

2.14.5 Use and Restoration in Emergencies

The use and restoration of service in emergencies shall in all cases be subject to the
priority system specified in Part 64, Subpart D, of Chapter 47 of the Code of Federal

Regulations.
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2.1

2.16

SECTION 2 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS, (Cont'd.)
Application for Service

The Company reserves the right to require Customers to make application(s) for service in
witing using forms provided by the Company. Upon acceptance of an application for service
by the Company, all applicable provisions in the Company'’s tari{fs, as amended from time-
to-time which are lawfully on file, become the agreement for service between the Company
and the Customer. Requests for additional service and changes to service, upon acceptance
by the Company, become a part of the agreement for service, provided that each item of
additional service shall be subject to the applicable minimum term of service. Acceptance
or use of service offered by the Company shall be deemed an application for such service and
an agreement by the Customer to subscribe to, use, and pay for such service in accordance
with the applicable tariffs of the Company, as amended from time to time, which are lawfully
on file. Any change in rates or other tariff provisions which are lawfully made and for which
required notice has been given shall be deemed to modify all agreements for service affected
by such changes without further notice by Company to the Customer. Customer provision
of false information, or a failure by the Customer to provide material information, in an
application for service (either written or verbal) shall be deemed an attempt to avoid payment
or to otherwise defraud the Company. In such circumstances, the Company may, at its option
and with proper notice, revoke the application and refuse, cancel or suspend any service
provided to the Customer without further liability or obligation to the Customer.

Interconnection

2.16.1 Service furnished by the Company may be interconnected with services or facilities
of other authorized communications common carriers and with private systems,
subject to technical limitations established by the Company. Service fumished by the
Company is not part of a joint undertaking with such other common carriers or
systems. The Company does not undertake to provide any special facilities,
equipment, or services to enable the Customer to interconnect the facilities or the
equipment of the Company with services or facilities of other common carriers or
with private systems. Customer is responsible for all charges billed by other carriers
in connection with the use of service. Any special equipment or facilities necessary
to achieve compatibility between carriers are the sole responsibility of the Customer.
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SECTION 2 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS, (Cont'd.)
2.16 Interconnection, (cont'd.)

2.16.2 Interconnection with the services or facilities of other common carmiers shall be under
the applicable terms and conditions of this tarifl and the other common carrier’s
tanffs.

2.16.3 The Customer shall ensure that the facilities or equipment provided by the Customer
are properly interconnected with the services, facilities and equipment of the
Company and its suppliers. If the Customer maintains or operates the interconnected
services, facilities or equipment in a manner which results or may result in harm to
the Company’s facilities, equipment, personnel, or the quality of service, the
Company may, upon written notice, require the use of protective equipment at the
Customer’s expense. If this written notice fails to eliminate the actual or potential
harm, the Company may, upon written notice, terminate the existing service of the
Customer.

2.17 Inspection, Testing and Adjustment

Upon reasonable notice, the facilities provided by the Company and its suppliers shall be
made available to the Company for such inspection, tests and adjustments as may be deemed
necessary for maintenance in a condition satisfactory to the Company. No interruption
allowance will be granted for the time during which such tests and adjustments are made.

2.18 Local Charges and Wireless Air Time Charges

In certain instances, the Customer may be subject to charges by local exchange companies,
including, but not limited to, message unit charges or to wireless air time charges to access
the Company’s network or to terminate calls. The Company shall not be responsible for any
such charges incurred by the Customer in gaining access to the Company’s network.
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SECTION 2 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS, (Cont'd.)

2.19 Other Rules

2.19.1 The Company reserves the right to discontinue service, limit service, or to impose
requirements on Customers as required to meet changing regulations, rules or
standards of the Commission.
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SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE AND RATES
3.1  General
Presubscribed service is offered from locations served with equal access end offices.

The Company's service is available twenty-four hours per day, seven days a week except as
otherwise provided in the Company’s tariffs.
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32

SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE AND RATES, (Cont'd.)
Calcnlation of Distance

Usage charges for all mileage sensitive services are based on the airline distance between the
rate center locations associated with the originating and terminating points of the call.

The distance between the originating and terminating points is calculated by using the "V"
and "H" coordinates of the applicable rate centers as defined by BellCore (Bell

Communications Research) and on file with the FCC in AT&T Tariff FCC No. 10, in the
following manner:

Step 1 - Obtain the "V" and "H" coordinates for the rate center of the originating and the
destination points.

Step 2 - Obtain the difference between the "V" coordinates of each of the rate centers. Obtain
the difference between the "H" coordinates.

Step 3 - Square the differences obtained in Step 2.
Step 4 - Add the squares of the "V" difference and "H" difference obtained in Step 3.

Step 5 - Divide the sum of the square obtained in Step 4 by ten (10). Round to the next
high.r whole number if any fraction resuits from the division.

Step 6 - Obtain the square root of the whole number obtained in Step 5. Round to the next
higher whole number if any fraction is obtained. This is the distance between the originating
and terminating rate centers of the call.

: (vl_vl)2+(’.l_,".‘)2
Formula: J 10
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SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE AND RATES, (Cont'd.)
33 Timing of Calls
Billing for calls placed over the network is based in part on the duration of the call.

3.3.1 Timing for all calls begins when the called party answers the call (i.e. when two way
communications are established). Answer detection is based on standard industry
answer detection methods, including hardware and software answer detection.

3.3.2 Chargeable time for all calls ends when the calling party disconnects from the call.

3.3.3 Minimum call duration for billing purposes is one minute unless otherwise specified
in the individual rate schedules of this taniff..

3.3.4 Calls are measured and billed in one minute increments on a per call basis, unless
otherwise indicated in this tariff. Any partial minute is rounded up to a full minute.
Fractional billing increments are round to the full billing increment as stated in the
product description.

3.3.5 No charges apply to incomplete calls. An incomplete call is a station call in which
the called station does not answer, or a person to person call in which the station does
not answer or the requested person is unavailable, or a collect call for which the
called party refuses to accept the charges.

3.3.6 Usage charges are computed on a per call basis. When computation of call charges
result in fractional cents, the resulting charge is rounded to the nearest penny.
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SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE AND RATES, (Cont'd.)
34 Time-Of-Day Rate Periods

Unless otherwise specified in the product description in this tarifT, the following time-of-day
and day-of-week rate periods are applicable to all calls.

DAY RATEPERIOD 8:00 AM to 5:00* PM Monday through Friday

EVENING RATE PERIOD 5:00 PM to 11:00* PM Sunday through
Friday

NIGHT/WEEKEND RATE PERIOD 11:00 PM to 8:00* AM Sunday through
Friday, all day Saturday and Sunday until
5:00* PM

* to, but not including

Calls are billed based on the rate in effect for the actual time-of-day rate period(s) during
which the call occurs. Calls that cross rate period boundaries are billed the rate in effect in
that boundary for each portion of the call.

Other Rate Periods
Peak: Daytime Rate Period, per above.
Off Peak: All other days and hours which are not included in
Daytime Rate Period above.
Flat: Twenty-four hours per day, seven days a week.
Issued: Effective:
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SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE AND RATES, (Cont'd.)
35 Panl

3.5.1 General Description
Plan 1 Service is offered to Residential Subscribers for outbound direct dialed
presubscribed to the Company.
Calls are billed in one (1) minute increments after an initial minimum call duration
of one (1) minute. Any partial minute is rounded up to a full minute. There is no
minimum monthly billing.

3.5.2 Usage Rate Per Minute
The Customer is charged for actual usage for each call.
Intrastate Usage Sensitive Charges:

Rate Per Minute (Peak):
Rate Per Minute (Off-Peak):
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SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE AND RATES, (Cont'd.)
3.5 Plan 1 Service, (cont'd.)
3.5.3 Travel Card Service

Optional Travel Card Service is available to Plan 1 Subscribers for originating
telephone calls while away from home. Service is accessed by dialing the Company-
designated toll free access number, followed by 0 + the destination number, the
Travel Card number, and the personal identification (PIN) number. Calls are billed
in one (1) minute increments. The minimum call duration for billing purposes is one
(1) minute. Partial minutes are rounded up to the next minute.

Usage Charge Per Minute: $0.5000

When operator assistance is provided by the Company operator to complete the call,
a per call service charge applies as specified in Section 4.4.6 of this tariff. Service
charges do not apply when the caller is placing the call from a rotary dial telephone
and must use the operator to input the required digits.
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SECTION 4 - MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES
4.1  Directory Assistance

Directory Assistance is available to the Customer using the Company's communications
services. The Directory Assistance charge applies to each call regardless of whether the
Directory Assistance bureau is able to furnish the requested telephone number. All applicable
service charges and surcharges apply in addition to the Directory Assistance charge specified
below.

4.1.1 Directory Assistance Rates

Per Call $0.95

Issued: Effective:
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SECTION 4 - MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES, (Cont'd.)

4.2  Operator Services

Operator Services allow Customers and Consumers to place calls using operator assistance
for call completion or billing.

Usage charges and an appropriate service charge will be assessed on a per call basis, as stated
in this tariff. For calls made using a Travel and/or Calling Card, acceptance of the card will
be dependent upon the Company's ability to verify the card as valid. Only those cards
accepted by the Company may be used to bill the Company’s services. The Company
1serves the right to verify acceptance of charge prior to billing charges to a third party
number.

42.1

422

423

Operator Services may be used by a Customer and by an Aggregator and their
respective Consumers (i.c., patrons, guests, invitees or employees) to complete
Operator Station, Person-to-Person, Collect, Third-Party, Calling Card, and/or Travel
Card calls.

Charges for Operator Assisted Calls include two components: a usage-sensitive
component and a fixed per-call service charge based upon the type of operator
service provided. A third component, the Operator Assisted 0- Surcharge, applies to
calls for which the Customer or Consumer has the capability of dialing the
destination number but elects to have the Company operator dial the number instead.

The usage-sensitive portion of the charge for an Operator Assisted Call is set forth
in Section 4.2.7 below.

The fixed per-call service charge portions of the charge for an Operator Assisted Call
is set forth in Section 4.2.6 below.
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SECTION 4 - MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES, (Cont'd.)

4.2  Operator Services, (cont'd.)

4.2.5 Service may be suspended by the Company, without notice to the Customer or the

Aggregator, by blocking traffic to certain countries, cities, or NPA-NXX
exchanges, or individual telephone number, or by blocking calls using certain
Customer Authorization Codes, Travel Cards, Calling Cards or credit cards, when
the Company deems it necessary to take such action to prevent unlawful or
fraudulent use of service. The Company shall restore service as soon as it can be
provided without undue risk, and shall, upon request by the Customer affected,
assign a new Authorization Code to replace the one that has been deactivated. The
Company reserves the right to validate the credit worthiness of Customers through
available credit card, Travel Card, Calling Card, called number, Third Party
telephone number and room number verification procedures. Where a requested
billing method cannot be validated, the Customer or Consumer may be required to
provide an acceptable alternate billing method or the Company may refuse to place
the call.
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SECTION 4 - MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES, (Cont'd.)
42  Operator Services, (cont’d.)

4.2.6 Per-Call Service Charges

. Dialed Calling Card Stati
Customer Dialed/Automated $1.20
Customer Dialed and Operator Assisted $1.20
Operator Station
Collect $2.45
Third Party Billed $2.45
Other $2.45
Person to Person $4.90
Operator Dialed Calling Card $2.25
Travel Card, Operator Assisted $2.25
Operator Dialed Surcharge, per call SL.15

Issued: Effective:

Issued By: Dorothy L. Jones, Acting Director - Regulatory

Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc.
1320 N. Courthouse Road, 9th Floor
Arlington, Virginia 22201 309960




BELL ATLANTIC COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

South Dakota Tariff No. 1
Original Page 42

SECTION 4 - MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES, (Cont'd.)

4.2  Operator Services, (cont’d.)
4.2.7 Per Minute Usage Charges

Mileage Day Evening Night/Weekend _.I
Each Each Each
Initial Add'l Initial Add'l
Minute Minute Minute Minute
1-10 4700 4700 4700 4700
11-16 4700 4700 4700 4700
17 - 22 4700 4700 4700 4700
23 -40 4700 4700 4700 .4700
41 - 55 4700 4700 4700 4700
56 - 124 4700 4700 4700 4700
125-292 |.4700 4700 4700 4700
293+ 4700 4700 4700 4700
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4.3

SECTION 4 - MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES, (Cont'd.)
Busy Line Verification and Interrupt

Busy Line Verification and Interrupt services are offered in areas where the service may
be obtained from the local exchange carrier.

With Busy Line Verification (BLV), the BACI operator will contact the LEC operator to
determine if the called number or line is in use. Only one BLV will be made per telephone
cail and an associated service charge will apply whether or not conversation was detected
on the line. The operator will not complete the call for the Customer initiating the
verification request. The following service charge will apply per BLV request.

Busy Line Interrupt (BLI) allows the BACI operator to contact a LEC operator to interrupt
a telephone conversation in progress, upon the caller’'s request and after a Busy Line
Verification occurs. Upon the caller's request, the BACI operator will contact the LEC
operator, who will interrupt the busy line and inform the called party that there is a call
waiting from the caller. The LEC operator will not complete the call, but will only inform
the called party of the request. If the call is released the BACI operator will offer 0
complete the call for the Custemer initiating the interrupt request. The following service
charge will apply per BLI request. Applicable per minute charges will apply to the
compleied call. Only one BLI attempt will be made per telephone call and a charge will
apply whether or not the called party releases the line.

Busy Line Verification, per request $6.50
Busy Line Interrupt, per request $13.00

When a call is subject to more than one of the service charges listed above, only the
highest service charge applies.

Issued:

Effective:

Issued By: Dorothy L. Jones, Acting Director - Regulatory
Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc.
1320 N. Courthouse Road, 9th Floor
Arlington, Virginia 22201 109900




ATTACHMENT V

Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc.

Sales & Marketing Material

There are no sales and marketing matenals currently available.




ATTACHMENT Vi1

Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc.

Cost Support Data

This information is being filed as proprietary and confidential.
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BELL ATLANTIC COMMUN!CATIONS, INC.

ATTACHMENT V1

PROFILES OF KEY PERSONNEL




BELL ATLANTIC COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

PROFILES OF KEY PERSONNEL

Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc. possesses the managerial and technical expertise to provide
resold interexchange telecommunications services. The Company’s management team consists of
professionals with backgrounds in finance, telecommunications and marketing. Included in Bell

Atlantic Communications, Inc. managerial team are the following individuals:

MA' 'RA C. BREEN, President and CEO

Maura C. Breen is president and chief executive officer of Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc. She
is responsible for leading the business unit that will market and sell Bell Atlantic’s long distance
services to consumers as regulatory approvals are received. She has over 20 years experience in

managing telecommunications businesses with Bell Atlantic and NYNEX Corporation.

Prior to her current position, Breen served as Vice President, Operations, Consumer Sales and
Service for Bell Atlantic’s local telephone companies in the mid-Atlantic and Northeastern United
States. In that role, she directed and led the execution of competitive marketing and customer care
strategies.

Previously, Breen held several positions with increasing responsibility with NYNEX Corporation
and its affiliates before consummation of the NYNEX/Bell Atlantic merger, including Vice President
of Consumer Sales and Service, North and Vice President of Channel Management.

A graduate of Skidmore College in Saratoga Springs, New York, Breen also attended executive
development programs at Rutgers University and Harvard University. She is currently a David

Rockefeller Fellow.




MANAGEMENT HISTORY AND
PROFILES OF KEY PERSONNEL, (cont'd)

JILL WAGNER, Vice President - Marketing

Jill Wagner is vice president of marketing for Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc. She is responsible
for the launch of long distance service and oversees the marketing effort for the company’s consumer

long distance products including the development of calling plans.

Wagner is a 22-year veteran of the telecommunications and high technology industries and led
Southern New England Telephone (SNET) into a new competitive era. She joined Bell Atlantic
Communications on July 26, 1999. Wagner began her career in AT&T's management development
program in 1977. She joined MCI Communications in 1983 and managed the corporate
development team responsible for strategic and new product planning. In 1985, Wagner moved to
IBM, where she managed marketing and sales for various products, networking systems and
applications software divisions. Prior to joining SNET in 1993, Wagner was a partner with
Yankelovich Partners.

Wagner holds a Master's degree in policy analysis from Harvard University and a Bachelor of
Science degree in industrial administration from lowa State University.




MANAGEMENT HISTORY AND
PROFILES OF KEY PERSONNEL, (cont'd)

DONALD J. CARR, Vice President, Sales and Customer Service

Donald J. Carr joined Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc. in 1996 bringing 27 years of sales,
organizational development, operations, and management experience from various Bell Atlantic
leadership positions in Large Business, Marketing, External Affairs, and C&P Telephone of
Maryland. Before his position at Bell Atlantic Communications, Mr. Carr was Vice President of

Sales for Bell Atlantic Public and Operator Services.

At Bell Atlantic Communications, Mr. Carr is responsible for leadership of all channel activity
relative to the acquisition and service of long distance customers. Responsibilities include the
planning, sel=ction, and implementation of sales channels and the attainment of acquisition goals.
These channels include internal and external channels, inbound and outbound telemarketing, as
well as alternate channels. Mr. Carr’s other responsibilities include New Business Development
and Out o."Region Operations.

Mr. Carr holds a MBA in Marketing from Loyola College and 2 BS in Business Administration
from Elizabethtown College.




MANAGEMENT HISTORY AND
PROFILES OF KEY PERSONNEL, (cont'd)

DOROTHY L. JONES, Acting Director - Regulatory

Dorothy Jones brings to Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc. 25 years of telecommunications
experience. Before joining BACI, Ms. Jones was Lead Product Manager for IntraLATA Consumer
Toll Services for Bell Atlantic Network Services, Inc. In that position, her responsibilities included
pricing, regulatory support and marketing coordination of toll services of Bell Atlantic. Ms. Jones'
previous experience includes a variety of regulatory and product management positions in Billing
& Collection, Switched Access and Special Access. She also held numerous positions in both line
and staff capacities in Operator Services. Ms. Jones received a Business Administration degree from
Howard Community College.

GILBERT A. SMITH, Chief Financial Officer

Gilbert Smith joined Bell Atlantic in 1994, where he worked in planning, program administration
and international finance. Most recently, he was responsible for controlling Bell Atlantic's foreign
wireline investments, including the accounting functions, finance operations, treasury and tax

administration, compliance, auditing, investor relations, business practices, contract and project

accounting, and general administration. Prior to joining Bell Atlantic, Mr. Smith spent several years
with Arthur Andersen & Co. as an audit manager. He is a graduate of Howard University-
Washington, DC and has an MBA from George Washington University.
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South Dakota Public Utilities Commission

WEEKLY FILINGS
For the Period of November 25, 1999 through December 1, 1999

If you need a complete copy of a filing faxed, overnight expressed, or mailed to you, please
contact Delaine Kolbo within five business days of this filing.
Phone: 605-773-3705 Fax: 605-773-3809

CONSUMER COMPLAINTS

CT99-064 In the Matter of the Complaint filed by Janice Catron, Mitchell, South
Dakota, against Qwest Communications, Inc. Regarding
Unauthorized Switching of Services.

The Complainant indicates that her long distance service was switched without her
authorization. For relief, the Complainant requests all charges be removed and $1000
damages.

Staff Analyst: Leni Healy
Staff Attorney: Karen Cremer
Dated Filed: 11/23/99
Intervention Deadline: NA

CT99-065 In the Matter of the Complaint filed by Frank and Dorothy Vavra,
Gregory, South Dakota, against Qwest Communications, Inc.
Regarding Unauthorized Switching of Services.

The Complainants allege that their long distance service was switched to Qwest without
authorization. The Complainants are requesting that all charges and the $5 switching
fee be removed, that Qwest pay all associated fees for pursuing the complaint and that
the Commission impose appropriate fines and penalties.

Staff Analyst: Leni Healy
Staff Attorney: Karen Cremer
Date Filed: 11/23/99
Intervention Date: NA

CT99-066 In the Matter of the Complaint filed by Frank E. Daly, Aberdeen,

South Dakota, against OLS, Inc. Regarding Switching
Telecommunications Services Through Deceptive Tactics.

The Complainant claims that he was contacted by OLS to maintain one billing for
telecommunication services. The Complainant further claims that the OLS
representative was questioned if the process would change his current long distance




service. The Complainant claims the OLS representative promised that his service
would not change. The Complainant's service was switched to OLS. The Complainant
requests that South Dakota Law be implemented and that OLS shouid be banned from
operating in this state.

Staff Analyst: Leni Healy
Staff Attorney: Karen Cremer
Date Filed: 12/01/99
Intervention Deadline: NA

TELECOMMUNICATIONS

- TC99-110  In the Matter of the Application of Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc.
for a Certificate of Authority to Provide Telecommunications
Services in South Dakota.

On November 29, 1999, the Commission received a request from Bell Atlantic
Communications, Inc. (Bell Atlantic) for a Certificate of Authority to provide intrastate
interexchange telecommunications services in South Dakota. Bell Atlantic intends to
provide travel cards, operator services, and outbound intrastate toll service on a
presubscribed basis to customers.

Staff Analyst: Heather Forney
Staff Attomey: Camron Hoseck
Date Filed: 11/29/99
Intervention Date: 12/17/99

TC99-111  In the Matter of the Application of MVX.COM Communications, Inc.
for a Certificate of Authority to Provide Local Exchange Services in
South Dakota.

On December 1, 1999, the Commission received a request from MVX.COM for a
certificate of authority to provide local exchange service within the State of South
Dakota. It intends to provide service through resale only.

Staff Analyst: Heather Forney
Staff Attorney. Karen Cremer
Date Filed: 12/01/99
Intervention Date: 12/17/99

You may receive this listing and other PUC publications via our website or via internet e-mail.
You may subscribe or unsubscribe to the PUC mailing lists at http://www.state.sd.us/puc/




210 N Park Ave.
Winter Park, FL
32789

P.O. Drawer 200
Winter Park, FL
327900200

Tel. 407-740-8575
Fax. 407-740-0613
tmi@tminc.com

RECEIVED
JA! 2

SOUTH DAKOTA PUBLIC
UTILITIES COMMISSION
January 13, 2000

Via Overnight Delivery

Mr. William Bullard, Jr.

Executive Director

South Dakota Public Utilities Commission
500 East Capitol

Pierre, South Dakota 57501

Re:  TC99-110; Registration of Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc. for Authority
to Provide Intrastate Telecommunications Services within the State of South
Dakota - Data Request Responses

Dear Mr. Bullard:

Enclosed for filing are the original and ten (10) copies of responses of Bell Atlantic
Communications, Inc. to the Data Requests issued on January 3, 2000 by Utility
Analyst Heather K. Fomey.

Please return, date-stamped, the extra copy of this cover letter in the enclosed self-
addressed stamped envelope provided for this purpose.

Any questions you may have regarding the above filing should be directed to me at
(407) 740-8575.

Sincerely,

c@'

Consultant to
Bell Atlantic

cations, Inc.

cc: John Broten, BACI
Calvin Whetstone, BACI
Heather Forney

file: BACI-SD

tms: sdo9900a



Before the South Dakota

Public Utilities Commission
In the Matter of the Application )
of Bell A.lantic Communications, Inc. )
for a Certificate of Authority to ) TC99-110
Provide Telecommunications Services )
in South Dakota )

Data Request Responses of Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc.

SDCL 49:31:03 states, “A telecommunications company has the burden to prove in its
application that it has sufficient technical, financial and managerial capabilities to offer the
telecommunications services described in its application before the commission may grant
a certificate of authority.” ARSD 20:10:24:02(8) states that the applicant shall submit a
current balance sheet, income statement, and cash flow statement. The financial statements
that were provided as part of the application were for Bell Atlantic Corporation, an affiliate
of BACI. Please submit financial statements for the Applicant itself. If BACI is unable to
provide this information, | would suggest that the applicant provide a written request for a
waive of the specific rule subsection including an explanation and justification for the
request. Without the required financial information, Commission staffis unable to determine
the “ financial capability” of the applicant. I staff is unable to determine BACI's financial
capability, we would request that the applicant post a $25,000 bond naming the South
Dakota Public Utilities Commission and South Dakota Consumers as beneficiaries. If the
applicant agrees to this option, bond requirement language would be placed in the
Commission Order granting authority. The applicant is free to apply to the Commission for
removal of the bond requirement once financial capability improves or is made known.

Response: Sec Attachment 1. The Applicant is wiling to post a bond if deemed
necessary by the Commission.

Please provide the federal tax identification number of the Applicant in accordance with
ARSD 20:10:24:02(13).

Response: 54-1762657

The number and nature of complaints filed against the applicant with any state or federal
regulatory commission regarding the unauthorized switching of a customer's
telecommunications provider and the act of charging customers for services that have not
been ordered has not been provided as required by ARSD 20:10:24:02(14).

Response: BACI has had no formal complaints for unauthorized switching or charging
for services not ordered.



BACI’s tariff attemps to limit the liability of the company. Under South Dakota law found
at 49-13-1 and 49-13-1.1, a person has the right to claim damages from a
telecommunciations company by coming before the Commission or a court of competent
jurisdiction. Please remove sections 2.5.1, 2.5.2 and 2.6 (i11) from the tariff. If you have any
questions or concerns regarding this issues, please contact Camron Hoseck, staff attomey.

Response: See Attachment 2. Pursuant to the telephone conversation between Steve
Bozzo of BACI and Camron Hoseck, 2.6(iii) has not be removed as it
pertains only to customer indemnity and does not need to be removed. BACI
agrees to withdraw Sections 2.5.1 and 2.5.2 of its tariff at this time. This
action is without prejudice to BACI's view that Sections 49-13-1 and 49-
13.1.1 do not bar reasonable tariff liability limitation.



Attachment 1

Financial Statements
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Sent By: BELL ATLANTIC LONG DISTANCE; 703 526 5624; Jan-13-00 10:18AM; Page 2/3

REPT ID: BALSHTOV BCIX BA COMMUNICATIONS, INC. . - - s
LAYOUT: Beishtbu BALANCE SHEET
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BCDUBACOMMUNICATIONS. INC___ - ... === = + - o

BALANCE SHEET
As OF: 12399 RUN: January 12,2000 at 18:15

PAYROLL LiolLMES
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BELL ATLANTIC COMMUNICATIONS, INC. South Dakota Tariff No. 1
Original Page 13

SECTION 2 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS, (Cont'd.)
2.4  Assignment or Transfer

The Customer may not transfer or assign the use of service ~ffered by the Company without
the express prior written consent of the Company. Such transfer or assignment shall only
-pply where there is no interruption of the use or in the location of service. All terms and
conditions contained in this tariff shall apply to all such permitted transferees or assignees,
as well as all conditions of service.

2.5  Limitation of Liabilities

2.5.1 When the services or facilities of other common carriers or other service providers
are used separately or in conjunction with the Company’s services, facilities or
equipment in establishing connection to points not reached by the Company’s
services, facilities or equipment, the Company shall not be liable for any act or
omission of such other common carriers, or other service providers, or their
respective agents, servants or employees.

Issued: Effective:

Issued By: Dorothy L. Jones, Acting Director - Regulatory
Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc.
1320 N. Courthouse Road, 9th Floor
Arlington, Virginia 22201 sdo9900



BELL ATLANTIC COMMUNICATIONS, INC. South Dakota TanfT No. 1

Original Page 14

SECTION 2 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS, (Cont'd.)

25 Limitation of Liabilities, (cont’d.)

252

2.5.3

254

The Company shall not be liable for any failure of performance hereunder if such
failure is due to any cause or causes beyond the reasonable control of the Company.
Such causes shall include, without limitation, acts of God, fire, explosion, vandalism,
cable cut, meteorological phenomena, floods, storm or other similar occurrence, any
law, order, regulation, direction, action or request of the United States government
or of any other govemment or of any civil or military authority, national
emergencies, insurrections, riots, wars, strikes, lockouts or work stoppages or other
labor difficulties, supplier failures, shortages, breaches or delays, or preemption of
existing service to restore service in compliance with state and federal laws.

The Company shall not be liable for interruptions, delays, errors, or defects in
transmission, or for any injury whatsoever, caused by the Customer, or the
Customer's agents, servants, employees, or customers, or by services, facilities or
equipment provided by the Customer or such agents, servants, employees, or
customers.

The Company shall not be liable for unlawful use, or use by any unauthorized person,
or its service, or for any claim arising out of a breach in the privacy or security of
communications transmitted by the Company. The Company is not liable for any
damages, including toll usage charges, the Customer may incur as a result of the
unauthorized use of its telecommunications facilities. Such unauthorized use of its
telecommunications facilities includes, but is not limited to, the placement of calls
through Customer-provided equipment which are transmitted or carried on the
Company’s network. The Customer is responsible for controlling access to, and the
use of, its own telecommunications facilities.

Issued:

Issued By:

Effective:

Dorothy L. Jones, Acting Director - Regulatory
Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc.
1320 N. Courthouse Road, 9th Floor
Arlington, Virginia 22201 sdo9900




BELL ATLANTIC COMMUNICATIONS, INC. South Dakota Tariff No. 1
Original Page 15

SECTION 2 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS, (Cont'd.)

25 Limitation of Liabilities, (cont’d.)

255 WITH RESPECT TO SERVICE PROVIDED BY THE COMPANY. THE
COMPANY HEREBY EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ALIL WARRANTIES,
EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, NOT STATED IN THIS TARIFF. AND IN
PARTICULAR DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY
OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.

Issued: Effective:

Issued By: Dorothy L. Jones, Acting Director - Regulatory
Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc.
1320 N. Courthouse Road, 9th Floor
Arlington, Virginia 22201 sdo9900




BELL ATLANTIC COMMUNICATIONS, INC. South Dakota Tariff No. 1
Original Page 15

SECTION 2 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS, (Cont'd.)

25 Limitation of Liabilities, (cont’d.)

2.5.5 WITH RESPECT TO SERVICE PROVIDED BY THE COMPANY, THE
COMPANY HEREBY EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES,
EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, NOT STATED IN THIS TARIFF, AND IN
PARTICULAR DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY
OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.

Issued: Effective:

Issued By: Dorothy L. Jones, Acting Director - Regulatory
Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc.
1320 N. Courthouse Road, 9th Floor
Arlington, Virginia 22201 1d09900
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210 N Park Ave. L ofebnury 24, 2000
Winter Park, FL e i
32789
P.O. Drawer 200 Mr. William Bullard, Jr.
Winter Park, FL Executive Director
32790-0200 South Dakota Public Utilities Commission
500 East Capitol
Pierre, South Dakota 57501

Tel: 4077408575

Fac 4077400613  Re:  T(C99-110; Registration of Bell Atlantic Communications, Inc. for Authority

tmi@tminc.com to Provide Intrastate Telecommunications Services within the State of South
Dakota - Bond Requirement

Dear Mr. Bullard:

Enclosed for filing are the original and ten (10) copies of the bond posted by Bell
Atlantic Communications, Inc. in response to the recommendation of Utility Analyst
Heather K. Forney.

Please return, date-stamped, the extra copy of this cover letter in the enclosed self-
addressed stamped envelope provided for this purpose.

Any questions you may have regarding the above filing should be directed to me at
(407) 740-8575.

Bell Atlantic (o

cc: John Broten, BACI
Calvin Whetstone, BACI
Heather Fomey

file: BACI-SD

tms: sdo9900b




INDEMNITY BOND
To the
PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA

Dond No. _ 8149-80-35

We, Bell Atlantic Commmications Incthe principal and applicant for a CERTIFICATE
OF AUTHORITY to resell long distance telecommunications services within the State of South
Dakota, and Federal Insurance Cogpany 8s an admitted surety insurer, bind ourselves unto the
Public Utilities Commission of the State of South Dakota and the consumers of South Dakota as
Obligee, in the sum of $25,000.00.

The conditions of the obligation are such that the principal, having been granted such
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY subject to the provision that said principal purchases this
Indemnity Bond, and if said principal shall in all respects fully and faithfully comply will all
applicable provisions of South Dakota State Law, and reimburse customers of Bell Atlantic
Communicatinns Inc.  forany prepayment or deposits they have made which may be unable
or unwilling to retum to said customers as a result of insnlvency or other business failure, then this
obligation shall be void, discharged and forever exonerated, otherwise 1o remain in (ull (orce and
effect.

This bond shall take effect as of the date hereon and shall remain in force and effect until
the surety is released from liability by the written order of the Public Utilitics Commission,
provided that the surcty may cancel this Bond and be relieved of further liability hereunder by
delivering thirty (30) days written notice to the Public Utilitics Commission. Such cancellation
shall not affect any liability incurred or accrued hereunder prior to the termination of said thirty
(30) day period.

Datcd this ___14th day of February , 2000.
To be effective this _14¢th day of February » 2000.

By Federal Insurance Company..

By ool
Attomey in ¥act, Frank J. Niestadt




Chubb POWER ~Federal Insurance Company Attn.: Surety Department
OF Vigilant insurance Company 15 Mountain View Road

Surety  A1TORNEY Pacific Indemnity Company Warren, NJ 07059

MHWMMMMWW.UMWMWWM.IMYM
corporstion, and PACIFIC INDEMNITY COMPANY, a Wisconsin corporation, do each hereby constitute and appoint  Barbara Guzzardo,
Betty Calderon, Glenn Pelletiere, Vivian Carti, Debra A. Deming, Thomas Branigan,
Caroline Scotto, Frank J. Niestadt, Robert P. McDonough and Marisol Plaza of New York,

New York

each as their trus and lawful Altomey-in-Fact to exscute under such designation in their names and to affix their corporate seals to and deliver for and
on their behalf as surety thereon or otherwise, bonds and undertakings and other writings obligatory in the nature thereof (other than bail bonds) given
or emcuted in the course of business, and any instruments amending or altering the same, and consents to the modification or alterstion of any

Irstrument referred 10 in said bonds or obligations.

In Witness Whereo!, said FEDERAL INSURANCE COMPANY, VIGLLANT INSURANCE COMPANY, and PACIFIC INDEMNITY COMPANY have each
excuted and stiested these presents and affoed their corporste seais onthis 24 th dayof September, 1999.

(
Lrd ittt b ot

STATE OF NEW JERSEY
Cowvy of Somarast

Oamia 24th deyof September, 1999 . batore ma_ @ Notary Public of New Jersey, personally came Kenneth C Wendel,
o me bnown 10 be Assistan! Secretary of FEDERAL INSURANCE COMPANY, VIGIANT INSURANCE COMPANY, snd PACIFIC INDEMNITY COMPANY, the

Extract from the By-Laws of FEDERAL INSURANCE COMPANY, VIGILANT INSURANCE COMPANY, and PACIFIC INDEMNITY COMPANY:

“All powers of sttomey for and on behalf of the Company mey and shall be executed in the name and on behalfl of the Company, ether by the
Chainman or the President or a Vice Presicent or an Assistant Vice President, jointly wth the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary, under ther
respective desipnations. The signature of such officers mey be engraved, printed or ithographed. The signature of each of the fallowing
officers: Chairman, Presicient, any Vice President, any Assistant Vice President, any Secretary, any Assistant Secratary and the seal of the

Company may be afftesd by facsimile to any power of stiomey or 1o any certificate relating thereto appointing Assistant Secretaries or

Allorneys-in-Fact for purposes only of executing and atlesting bonds and undertakings and other writings cbiigatory in the nature thereof, and

any such power of stiorney or cartificate bearing such facsimile signature or facsimile seal shall be valld and binding upon the Company and

any such power 0 @mculed and certified by such facsimile signature and facsimile seal shall be vaiid and binding upon the Company with
respect (o any bond or undertaking o which R is attached.”
I, Kanneth C. Wendel, Assistant Secretary of FEDERAL INSURANCE COMPANY, VIGILANT INSURANCE COMPANY, and PACIFIC INDEMNITY
COMPANY (the “Companies”) do hereby certify that

M the foregoing mdract of the By-Laws of the Companies is true and cormect,

(¥) he Companiss sre duly lcensed and suthorized 1 fansact surety business in all S0 of the Uniled States of Amarica and the District of
Columbia and are 51 hortzed by the U. S. Tressury Department, Rather, Federal and Vighant are icensed in Pusro Rico and the U. S. Vigin
Isiancis, and Federal is fcersad in American Semos, Guam, and each of the Provinces of Caneds exceapt Prince Edward lsland, and

(W) the foregoing Power of Altorney is trus, correct and in full force and effect.

Given under my hand and seals of said Companies st Wammen, NJ this ___14th  deyof February, 2000

%

IN THE EVENT YOU WISH TO NOTIFY US OF A CLAIM, VERIFY THE AUTHENTICITY OF THIS BOND OR
NOTIFY US OF ANY OTHER MATTER, PLEASE CONTACT US AT ADDRESS LISTED ABOVE, OR BY
Telephone (908) 903-3485 Fax (908) 903-3856 e-mail: surety@chubb.com




FEDERAL INSURANCE COMPANY
STATEMENT OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND SURPLUS TO POLICYNOLDERS

Statutory Basis
DECEMBER 31, 1990

(in thousands of doliars)

8,918,108

545,749 Capital Stock 132,967

Great Northem Iinsursnce Company ........ 143234  Unassigned Funds 2.262.121
Chubb Insurance Company of Europe...... 101,771 Unreaiized Apprecistion of investments ....... 133.221
CC Cane ‘s Holdings Lid. s zz
Other At-2ates 1 SURPLUS TO POLICYHOLDERS ...........
Net Premiums Receiveble 541,838 ]
619,842

TOTALADMITTED ASSETS oo

Investments are valued in accordance with requirements of the National Association of insurance Commissioners.
Investments velued at $23,771 sre deposited with govemment authorities a8 required by lsw.

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SURPLUS
$ 11,386,701 TO POUCYHOLDERS ... $ 11,386,701

State, County & City of New York, — sg:

Subscribed and swom 10 before me

e__lith  deyol February, 2000

swom, ‘eposes and thet the foregoing Statement of Assets, Liabilites and Surpius %o Palicyhoiders of said
wWMszm.lﬂhmmm“h.mmdnmmdﬂ

Company as fled with the Secretary of the Treasury of the United States for the 12

ELBA SANTIAGO
"No. Ot T




e .,

24.20008 11:57AM ) * ¥ ¥

Sl TMB“ISSIMEQLTREP&T(FEB.
71
DATE TIME ADDRESS MODE TIME PAGE RESLT  PERS. NAE FILE
703 526 3624 TES g P.5 XK 269

& : BATCH C : CONFIDENTIAL s : TRANSFER P : POLLING
M : MEMORY L: LATER @ : FORWARDING E=Eg

S : STANDARD D AIL F: FINE >3 ION
—




BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION OF ) ORDER GRANTING
BELL ATLANTIC COMMUNICATIONS, INC. ) CERTIFICATE OF
FOR A CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY TO ) AUTHORITY
PROVIDE TELECOMMUNICATIONS )

SERVICES IN SOUTH DAKOTA ) TC99-110

On November 29, 1999, the Public Utilities Commission (Commission), in accordance with
SDCL 49-31-3 and ARSD 20:10:24:02, received an application for a certificate of authonty from Bell
Atlantic Communications, Inc. (Bell Atlantic).

Bell Atlantic proposes to offer intrastate interexchange telecommunications services,
including outbound intrastate toll service (presubscribed), operator services and travel card services.
A proposed tariff was filed by Bell Atlantic. The Commission has classified long distance service as
fully competitive.

On Jecember 2, 1999, the Commission electronically transmitted notice of the filing and the
intervention deadline of December 17, 1999, to interested individuals and entities. No petitions to
intervene or comments were filed and at its March 14, 2000, meeting, the Commission considered
Bell Atlantic's request for a certificate of authority. Commission Staff recommended granting a
certificate of authority, subject to a continuous $25,000 surety bond.

The Commission finds that it has jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to SDCL Chapter 49-
31, specifically 49-31-3 and ARSD 20:10:24:02 and 20:10:24:03. The Commission finds that Bell
Atlantic has met the legal requirements established for the granting of a certificate of authority. Bell
Atlantic has, in accordance with SDCL 49-31-3, demonstrated sufficient technical, financial and
managerial capabilities to offer telecommunications services in South Dakota. The Commission
approves Bell Atlantic's application for a certificate of authonty, subject to a continuous $25,000
surety bond. As the Commission's final decision in this matter, it is therefore

ORDERED, that Bell Atlantic's application for a certificate of authonty is hereby granted,
subject to 2 continuous $25,000 surety bond. Itis

FURTHER ORDERED, that Bell Atlantic shall file informational copies of tanff changes with
the Commission as the changes occur.

Dated at Pierre, South Dakota, this qﬂedday of March, 2000

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE BY ORDER OF THE COMMISSION:
The undersigned hereby certifies that this

mmmm ;memqmd W//
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envelopes, % ﬂMES A BURG, Chairman /
l, A bt
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SOUTH DAKOTA PUBLIC UTILITIES
COMMISSION

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

To Conduct Business As A Telecommunications Company
Within The State Of South Dakota

Authority was Granted March 14, 2000
Docket No. TC99-110

This is to certify that

BELL ATLANTIC COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

is authonized to provide telecommunications services in South Dakota.

This certificate is issued in accordance with SDCL 49-31-3 and ARSD
20:10:24:02, and is subject to all of the conditions and limitations contained in
the rules and statutes governing its conduct of offering telecommunications
services.

Dated at Pierre, South Dakota, this 2¢ t day of M 2000.

SOUTH DAKOTA PUBLIC
UTILITIES COMMISSION:

i) %7

émss A. BURG, Chairman

SKA SCHOENFELDER, %missnoner\






